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                        TEAMSTAFF, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
                             (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 
                                  (PAGE 1 OF 2) 
 
 
 
                                                                      DECEMBER 31,           SEPTEMBER 30, 
ASSETS                                                                    2005                    2005 
- ------                                                             -------------------    --------------------- 
                                                                      (unaudited) 
 
CURRENT ASSETS: 
   Cash and cash equivalents                                                  $247                 $1,304 
   Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful 
     accounts of $103 and $41 at December 31, 2005 
     and September 30, 2005, respectively                                   10,857                  9,470 
   Deferred tax asset                                                          717                    634 
   Prepaid workers' compensation                                             1,480                  1,461 
   Other current assets                                                      1,448                  1,155 
                                                                   -------------------    --------------------- 
       Total current assets                                                 14,749                 14,024 
                                                                   -------------------    --------------------- 
EQUIPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS: 
   Furniture and equipment                                                   3,360                  3,360 
   Computer equipment                                                          522                    516 
   Computer software                                                         1,250                  1,250 
   Leasehold improvements                                                      172                    177 
                                                                   -------------------    --------------------- 
                                                                             5,304                  5,303 
   Less accumulated depreciation and amortization                           (4,144)                (4,037) 
                                                                   -------------------    --------------------- 
       Equipment and improvements, net                                       1,160                  1,266 
                                                                   -------------------    --------------------- 
DEFERRED TAX ASSET, net of current portion                                  17,771                 17,848 
TRADENAME                                                                    4,199                  4,199 
GOODWILL                                                                    10,281                 10,281 
OTHER ASSETS: 
      Prepaid workers' compensation, net of current portion                  2,200                  2,200 
      Other assets                                                             248                    236 
                                                                   -------------------    --------------------- 
          Total other assets                                                 2,448                  2,436 
                                                                   -------------------    --------------------- 
 TOTAL ASSETS                                                              $50,608                $50,054 
                                                                   ===================    ===================== 
 

 
 
 
           The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
           are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets. 
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                        TEAMSTAFF, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
                             (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 
                                  (PAGE 2 OF 2) 
 
 
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY                                   DECEMBER 31,            SEPTEMBER 30, 
- ------------------------------------                                      2005                     2005 
                                                                   --------------------    ---------------------- 
                                                                       (unaudited) 
 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
   Bank line of credit                                                     $5,419                  $4,006 
   Notes payable                                                            1,790                   1,543 
   Current portion of capital lease obligations                               122                     120 



   Accrued workers' compensation                                            1,750                   2,050 
   Accrued payroll                                                          1,535                   1,512 
   Accrued pension liability                                                  210                     294 
   Accounts payable                                                         1,276                   1,537 
   Accrued expenses and other current liabilities                           1,681                   1,960 
                                                                   --------------------    ---------------------- 
     Total current liabilities                                             13,783                  13,022 
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS, net of current portion                             189                     220 
NOTES PAYABLE, net of current portion                                       1,500                   1,500 
ACCRUED PENSION LIABILITY, net of current portion                             444                     578 
LIABILITIES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS                                      348                     422 
                                                                   --------------------    ---------------------- 
        Total liabilities                                                  16,264                  15,742 
                                                                   --------------------    ---------------------- 
 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
   Preferred stock, $.10 par value; authorized 5,000 shares; 
     0 issued and outstanding                                                   -                       - 
   Common stock, $.001 par value; authorized 40,000 shares; 
     issued 19,285 at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005; 
     outstanding 19,278 at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005            19                      19 
   Additional paid-in capital                                              68,620                  68,615 
   Retained (deficit)                                                     (34,158)                (34,140) 
   Accumulated comprehensive losses                                          (113)                   (158) 
   Treasury stock, 7 shares at cost at December 31, 2005 and 
     September 30, 2005                                                       (24)                    (24) 
                                                                   --------------------    ---------------------- 
        Total shareholders' equity                                         34,344                  34,312 
                                                                   --------------------    ---------------------- 
         TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY                       $50,608                 $50,054 
                                                                   ====================    ====================== 

 
 
 
           The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
           are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets. 
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                        TEAMSTAFF, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 
                (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 
 
 
 
                                                                            For the three months ended 
                                                                                   December 31, 
                                                                          2005                      2004 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
 
REVENUES                                                                    $20,883                  $10,201 
DIRECT EXPENSES                                                              16,572                    7,612 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
     Gross profit                                                             4,311                    2,589 
OPERATING EXPENSES                                                            4,052                    3,134 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION                                                   122                      148 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
     Income (loss) from operations                                              137                     (693) 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 
   Interest income                                                                3                       20 
   Interest expense                                                            (177)                     (20) 
   Other income                                                                  39                       60 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
                                                                               (135)                      60 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
     Income (loss) from continuing operations before tax                          2                     (633) 
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) BENEFIT                                                     (1)                     239 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
     Income (loss) from continuing operations                                     1                     (394) 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS: 
   Loss from operations, net of tax benefit of $12 and $115 for 
     quarters ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively                    (19)                    (186) 
   Income from disposal, net of tax benefit of $0 for quarter 
     ended December 31, 2004                                                      -                        1 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
                                                                                (19)                    (185) 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
       Net loss                                                                 (18)                    (579) 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS): 
   Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax                              45                       58 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)                                                     $27                    $(521) 
                                                                   ====================     ===================== 
LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 
   Loss from continuing operations                                            $0.00                   $(0.02) 
   Loss from discontinued operations                                           0.00                    (0.01) 
                                                                   --------------------     --------------------- 
   Net loss                                                                   $0.00                   $(0.03) 
                                                                   ====================     ===================== 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF 
   COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING - BASIC                                         19,278                   17,040 
                                                                   ====================     ===================== 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF 
   COMMON SHARES AND EQUIVALENTS 
   OUTSTANDING - DILUTED                                                     19,278                   17,040 
                                                                   ====================     ===================== 

 
 
 
           The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
             are an integral part of these consolidated statements. 
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                        TEAMSTAFF, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                 UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                             (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 
                                  (PAGE 1 OF 2) 
 
 
 
                                                                            For the three months ended 
                                                                                   December 31, 
                                                                          2005                  2004 
                                                                   ------------------    ------------------ 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net income (loss) from continuing operations                                 $1                 $(394) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net 
   cash (used in) operating activities, net of acquired businesses: 
   Deferred income taxes                                                     (6)                 (343) 
   Depreciation and amortization                                            122                   148 
   Compensation expense related to director stock option grants               5                     - 
   Provision for doubtful accounts                                           51                    17 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquired 
   businesses: 
   (Increase) in accounts receivable                                     (1,438)               (1,566) 
   Decrease (increase) in other current assets                               85                   (16) 
   (Increase) in other assets                                               (12)                  (26) 
   (Decrease) in accounts payable, accrued payroll, accrued 
      expenses and other current liabilities                               (817)                 (131) 
   (Decrease) in pension liability                                         (218)                 (215) 
   Change in net assets from disposal of discontinued operations            (93)                 (382) 
                                                                   ------------------    ------------------ 
            Net cash used in operating activities                        (2,320)               (2,908) 
                                                                   ------------------    ------------------ 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of equipment, leasehold improvements and software                 (17)                  (25) 
Payment for acquisition of Nursing Innovations                                -                (1,850) 
                                                                   ------------------    ------------------ 
            Net cash used in investing activities                           (17)               (1,875) 
                                                                   ------------------    ------------------ 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Borrowings on revolving line of credit                                   21,450                     - 
Payments on revolving line of credit                                    (20,037)                    - 
Principal payments on notes payable                                        (149)                    - 
Repayments on capital leases obligations                                    (29)                  (64) 
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of expense                    -                 3,973 
Net comprehensive income on pension                                          45                    58 
                                                                   ------------------    ------------------ 
            Net cash provided by financing activities                     1,280                 3,967 
                                                                   ------------------    ------------------ 
            Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                  (1,057)                 (816) 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD                          1,304                 3,060 
                                                                   ------------------    ------------------ 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD                                 $247                $2,244 
                                                                   ==================    ================== 

 
 
 
           The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
             are an integral part of these consolidated statements. 
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                        TEAMSTAFF, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                 UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                             (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 
                                  (PAGE 2 OF 2) 
 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 
   Cash paid during the period for- 
   Interest                                     $177                $20 
                                          ===============     =============== 
    Income taxes                                 $24                $60 
                                          ===============     =============== 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON CASH FINANCING ACTIVITY: 
 
The Company recorded $396,000 in notes payable related to the funding of the RS 
Staffing workers' compensation insurance policy renewal during the three months 
ended December 31, 2005. 
 
 
           The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
             are an integral part of these consolidated statements. 
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                        TEAMSTAFF, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 



                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                          DECEMBER 31, 2005(UNAUDITED) 
 
(1) ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS: 
 
TeamStaff, Inc., a New Jersey corporation ("TeamStaff" or the "Company"), was 
founded in 1969 as a payroll service company and has evolved into a national 
provider of payroll and temporary and permanent medical and administrative 
staffing services. TeamStaff's corporate headquarters is in Somerset, New 
Jersey. TeamStaff has offices located in Clearwater, Florida, Memphis, 
Tennessee, Monroe, Georgia and Atlanta, Georgia. 
 
When we use the term "TeamStaff," or the "Company" we mean TeamStaff and its 
subsidiaries. Currently, we operate only through the parent corporation, 
TeamStaff, Inc. (including its DSI Payroll Services division), and our TeamStaff 
Rx, Inc. (including its Nursing Innovations division) and RS Staffing Services, 
Inc. wholly-owned subsidiaries. TeamStaff's other wholly-owned subsidiaries 
include DSI Staff ConnXions Northeast, Inc., DSI Staff ConnXions Southwest, 
Inc., TeamStaff Solutions, Inc., TeamStaff I, Inc., TeamStaff II, Inc., 
TeamStaff III, Inc., TeamStaff IV, Inc., TeamStaff V, Inc., TeamStaff VI, Inc., 
TeamStaff Insurance Services, Inc., TeamStaff VIII, Inc., Employer Support 
Services, Inc., TeamStaff IX, Inc., Digital Insurance Services, Inc., HR2, Inc. 
and BrightLane.com, Inc. As a result of the sale of our PEO business in fiscal 
year 2004, most of these subsidiaries are not actively operating. 
 
TeamStaff provides specialized medical, nursing and administrative staffing and 
payroll administration services. TeamStaff provides allied healthcare and 
nursing professionals and administrative personnel through three staffing units. 
The Company's TeamStaff Rx subsidiary operates throughout the United States and 
specializes in providing allied medical employees and nurses, especially 
"travel" staff (typically on a thirteen-week assignment basis). Allied medical 
staff includes MRI technicians, mammographers, dosimetrists, ultrasound staff 
and physicists. TeamStaff Rx places temporary employees for over 250 clients. 
TeamStaff Rx's Nursing Innovations unit provides travel nursing, per diem 
nursing, temporary-to-permanent nursing and permanent nursing placement 
services. Nursing Innovations places temporary employees for over 85 clients. 
The Company's RS Staffing subsidiary specializes in providing medical and office 
administration/technical professionals through nationwide Schedule contracts 
with both the General Services Administration and Veterans Affairs. RS Staffing 
places temporary employees at over 75 facilities. 
 
Through its DSI Payroll Services division, TeamStaff provides customized payroll 
management and tax services, primarily to the construction industry. DSI's 
service offerings include payroll check processing via web, phone or fax, 
federal and state quarterly and year-end tax compliance reports, W-2 processing 
and financial management reports, including certified payroll reports and custom 
software interfaces. DSI processes payrolls for over 700 clients that have more 
than 30,000 employees. 
 
TeamStaff, Inc. was organized under the laws of the State of New Jersey on 
November 25, 1969 and maintains its executive offices at 300 Atrium Drive, 
Somerset, New Jersey 08873 where its telephone number is (732) 748-1700. 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION: 
 
The consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared by 
TeamStaff, without audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission. Certain information and footnote disclosures 
normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such 
rules and regulations. TeamStaff believes that the disclosures are adequate to 
make the information presented not misleading. These consolidated financial 
statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial 
statements and the notes thereto included in TeamStaff's latest annual report on 
Form 10-K. This financial information reflects, in the opinion of management, 
all adjustments necessary (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) to 
present fairly the results for the interim periods. The results of operations 
for such interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for the 
full year. 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
TeamStaff, Inc., and its subsidiaries as of the date of acquisition, all of 
which are wholly owned. All significant intercompany balances and transactions 
have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassed to conform to current year 
presentation. 
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(2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AFFECTING THE COMPANY: 
 
In April 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued FASB 
Interpretation No. 47 ("FIN 47"), "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement 
Obligations -- An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143." FIN 47 clarifies 
the terms of FASB Statement No. 143 and requires an entity to recognize a 
liability for a conditional asset retirement obligation if the entity has 
sufficient information to reasonably estimate its fair value. FIN 47 is 
effective no later than the end of fiscal years ending after December 15, 2005. 
The Company believes that the adoption of FIN 47 will have no material impact on 
its financial statements. 
 
In June 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, "Accounting Changes and Error 
Corrections" - a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 (Accounting Changes) and FASB 
No. 3 (Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements), which 
changed the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in 
accounting principle. This statement requires retrospective application to prior 
periods' financial statements of changes in accounting principle unless it is 
impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative 
effect of the change. When it is impracticable to determine the period- specific 
effects of an accounting change on one or more individual prior periods 
presented, this statement requires that the new accounting principle be applied 
to the balances of assets and liabilities as of the beginning of the earliest 
period for which retrospective application is practicable and that a 
corresponding adjustment be made to the opening balance of retained earnings (or 
other appropriate components of equity or net assets in the statement of 
financial position) for that period rather than being reported in an income 
statement. When it is impracticable to determine the cumulative effect of 
applying a change in accounting principle to all prior periods, this statement 
requires the new accounting principle be applied as if it were adopted 
prospectively from the earliest date practicable. Statement No. 154 is effective 
for accounting changes and error corrections made in fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2005. The Company will comply with the provisions of FAS 154 
although the impact of such adoption is not determinable at this time. 
 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
REVENUE RECOGNITION 
 
TeamStaff accounts for its revenues in accordance with EITF 99-19, Reporting 
Revenues Gross as a Principal Versus Net as an Agent and SAB 104, Revenue 
Recognition. TeamStaff recognizes all amounts billed to its temporary staffing 
customers as gross revenue because, among other things, TeamStaff is the primary 
obligor in the temporary staffing arrangement; TeamStaff has pricing latitude; 
TeamStaff selects temporary employees for a given assignment from a broad pool 
of individuals; TeamStaff is at risk for the payment of its direct costs; and, 
TeamStaff assumes a significant amount of other risks and liabilities as an 
employer of its temporary employees, and therefore, is deemed to be a principal 
in regard to these services. TeamStaff also recognizes as gross revenue and as 
unbilled receivables, on an accrual basis, any such amounts that relate to 
services performed by temporary employees which have not yet been billed to the 
customer as of the end of the accounting period. 
 
Staffing (whether medical or administrative) revenue is recognized as service is 
rendered. TeamStaff typically bills its clients for staffing services based on 
an hourly rate. The hourly rate is intended to cover TeamStaff's direct labor 
costs of the temporary employees, plus an estimate to cover overhead expenses 
and a profit margin. Additionally, commissions from permanent placements are 
included in revenue related to Medical Staffing. Commissions from permanent 
placements result from the successful placement of a medical staffing employee 
to a customer's workforce as a permanent employee. 
 
Payroll Services revenue is recognized as service is rendered and consists 
primarily of administrative service fees charged to clients for the processing 
of paychecks as well as preparing quarterly and annual payroll related reports. 
 
Direct costs of services are reflected in TeamStaff's Statement of Operations as 
"direct expenses" and are reflective of the type of revenue being generated. 
Direct costs of the temporary staffing business include wages, employment 
related taxes and reimbursable expenses. Payroll services' direct costs include 
salaries and supplies associated with the processing of the payroll service. 
 
STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 
 
Effective October 1, 2005, the Company's 2000 Employee Stock Option Plan and 
2000 Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan are accounted for in accordance 
with the recognition and measurement provisions of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards ("FAS") No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment ("FAS 
123(R)"), which 
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replaces FAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supercedes 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion ("APB") No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued 
to Employees, and related interpretations. FAS 123 (R) requires compensation 
costs related to share-based payment transactions, including employee stock 
options, to be recognized in the financial statements. In addition, the Company 
adheres to the guidance set forth within Securities and Exchange Commission 
("SEC") Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 107, which provides the Staff's 
views regarding the interaction between SFAS No. 123(R) and certain SEC rules 
and regulations and provides interpretations with respect to the valuation of 
share-based payments for public companies. 
 
Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company accounted for similar transactions in 
accordance with APB No. 25 which employed the intrinsic value method of 
measuring compensation cost. Accordingly, compensation expense was not 
recognized for fixed stock options if the exercise price of the option equaled 
or exceeded the fair value of the underlying stock at the grant date. 
 
While FAS No. 123 encouraged recognition of the fair value of all stock-based 
awards on the date of grant as expense over the vesting period, companies were 
permitted to continue to apply the intrinsic value-based method of accounting 
prescribed by APB No. 25 and disclose certain pro-forma amounts as if the fair 
value approach of SFAS No. 123 had been applied. In December 2002, FAS No. 148, 
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure, an amendment 
of SFAS No. 123, was issued, which, in addition to providing alternative methods 
of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting for 
stock-based employee compensation, required more prominent pro-forma disclosures 
in both the annual and interim financial statements. The Company complied with 
these disclosure requirements for all applicable periods prior to October 1, 
2005. 
 
In adopting FAS 123(R), the Company applied the modified prospective approach to 
transition. Under the modified prospective approach, the provisions of FAS 123 
(R) are to be applied to new awards and to awards modified, repurchased, or 
cancelled after the required effective date. Additionally, compensation cost for 
the portion of awards for which the requisite service has not been rendered that 
are outstanding as of the required effective date shall be recognized as the 
requisite service is rendered on or after the required effective date. The 
compensation cost for that portion of awards shall be based on the grant-date 
fair value of those awards as calculated for either recognition or pro-forma 
disclosures under FAS 123. 
 
As a result of the adoption of FAS 123 (R), the Company's results for the three 
month period ended December 31, 2005 include share-based compensation expense 
totaling approximately $5,000. Such amounts have been included in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations within operating expenses. During the 
three month period ended December 31, 2005, the Company recognized related tax 
benefits associated with its share-based compensation arrangements totaling 
approximately $2,000. 
 
The following table addresses the additional disclosure requirements of 123(R) 
in the period of adoption. The table illustrates the effect on net income and 
earnings per share as if the fair value recognition provisions of FAS No. 123 
had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in the prior year 
comparable period. 
 
                                                              Three Months Ended 
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)                 December 31, 2004 
                                                              ------------------ 
Net loss, as reported                                               $(579) 
 
Add:  Total stock-based employee compensation expense included 
in reported net income, net of related tax effects                     - 
 
Deduct:  Total stock-based employee compensation expense 
determined under fair value based method for all awards, 
net of related tax effects                                            (64) 
 
Pro forma net loss                                                  $(643) 
Loss per share: 
   Basic and diluted-as reported                                   $(0.03) 
   Basic and diluted-pro forma                                     $(0.04) 
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 
 
Basic earnings per share ("Basic EPS") is calculated by dividing income 
available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of shares of 
common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share ("Diluted 
EPS") is calculated by dividing income available to common shareholders by the 
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period adjusted to 
reflect potentially dilutive securities. 
 
In accordance with SFAS 128, the following table reconciles basic shares 
outstanding to fully diluted shares outstanding: 
 
                                                           Three Months Ended 
                                                              December 31, 
(Amounts in thousands)                                      2005         2004 
                                                         ------------  --------- 
Weighted average number of common shares 
   outstanding-basic                                        19,278      17,040 
Incremental shares for assumed conversion of stock 
   options/warrants                                              -           - 
Weighted average number of common shares 
   outstanding-diluted                                      19,278      17,040 
 
Stock options and warrants outstanding at December 31, 2005 to purchase 
1,932,000 shares of common stock and at December 31, 2004 to purchase 1,943,742 
shares of common stock were not included in the computation of diluted earnings 
per share as they were antidilutive. 
 
INCOME TAXES 
 
TeamStaff has recorded an $18.5 million deferred tax asset at December 31, 2005 
and September 30, 2005, respectively. This represents management's estimate of 
the income tax benefits to be realized upon utilization of its net operating 
losses and tax credits as well as temporary differences between the financial 
statement and tax bases of certain assets and liabilities, for which management 
believes utilization to be more likely than not. Management believes TeamStaff's 
operations can generate sufficient taxable income to realize this deferred tax 
asset as a result of historical profitability and its ability to generate 
operating income in the future. The acquisitions of RS Staffing and Nursing 
Innovations, two historically profitable companies, coupled with an improving 
business climate for temporary medical staffing will help drive TeamStaff's 
return to profitability. Management believes it will generate enough future 
profits to utilize the carrying value of its deferred tax asset. 
 
ACCUMULATED COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AND MINIMUM PENSION LIABILITY ADJUSTMENT 
 
A minimum pension liability adjustment is required when the actuarial present 
value of accumulated benefit obligation exceeds the plan assets and accrued 
pension liabilities. The minimum pension liability adjustment, net of income 
taxes, is recorded as a component of "Accumulated comprehensive income" on the 
balance sheet and is reflected in Statement of Comprehensive Income as "Minimum 
pension liability adjustment, net of tax". The Company used a discount rate of 
3.0% each to calculate the projected benefit obligation and the periodic benefit 
cost calculation for the three months ended December 31, 2005. The Company 
recorded a gain from such adjustment, net of tax of $45,000 and $58,000 for the 
three month period ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At December 
31, 2005 and September 30, 2005, accumulated comprehensive loss on the balance 
sheet reflects the cumulative balance due to the minimum pension liability 
adjustment. 
 
(3) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS: 
 
ACQUISITION OF RS STAFFING SERVICES, INC.: 
 
On June 8, 2005 TeamStaff, Inc. completed its acquisition of RS Staffing 
Services, Inc., a privately held Georgia corporation, pursuant to the terms of a 
Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of May 26, 2005. RS Staffing, headquartered in 
Monroe, GA, specializes in providing medical and office administration/technical 
professionals through nationwide Schedule contracts with both the General 
Services Administration ("GSA") and Veterans Affairs ("VA"). Closing of the 
transaction was completed for accounting purposes as of June 4, 2005. TeamStaff 
acquired all of the capital stock of RS Staffing for a purchase price of $8 
million consisting of $3.25 million in cash, $3 million in a 2-year note, and 
$1.75 million in TeamStaff common stock (1,206,896 shares). The shares are 
restricted shares and can only be sold in accordance with the provisions of Rule 
144 of the Securities Act of 1933. The Sellers guaranteed a minimum net worth of 
$1.4 million and any amounts above or below this amount after a 
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finalized accounting are subject to a purchase price adjustment. In addition, 
there is a one-year earn out of up to $2 million based upon the achievement of 
specified performance targets for the business. Principals of RS Staffing, 
namely Roger Staggs and Barry Durham, initially continued as management of RS 
pursuant to employment agreements with each of them. Barry Durham resigned his 
position effective as of December, 2005. The acquisition agreement also provided 
for mutual indemnification for breaches of representations and warranties. 
Further, the note issued by TeamStaff as part of the purchase price bears 
interest at 5% per annum, is payable one half in one year and the remainder in 
two years, and is secured by a lien on certain assets of the business, 
subordinate to any liens granted in connection with financing for the 
transaction. In connection with the acquisition, TeamStaff obtained financing 
from PNC Bank, National Association. 
 
The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed: 
 
(Amounts in thousands) 
Current assets                                $5,865 
Property, plant, and equipment                   204 
Goodwill                                       6,890 
Other assets                                      75 
                                         ------------ 
Total assets acquired                         13,034 
                                         ------------ 
Current liabilities                            4,680 
Long term liabilities                             39 
                                         ------------ 
Total liabilities assumed                      4,719 
                                         ------------ 
Net assets acquired                           $8,315 
                                         ============ 
 
Included in Goodwill is $315,000 of expenses directly related to the 
acquisition. 
 
ACQUISITION OF CERTAIN ASSETS OF NURSING INNOVATIONS, INC.: 
 
On November 14, 2004, TeamStaff's medical staffing subsidiary, TeamStaff Rx, 
Inc. acquired the assets of the staffing business of Nursing Innovations, Inc., 
a Memphis, Tennessee-based provider of travel and per diem nurses. The terms of 
the agreement provided for TeamStaff Rx to acquire certain assets from Nursing 
Innovations and its primary shareholder. The combined purchase price was 
approximately $1.8 million, of which $180,000 was held in an escrow account for 
a period of one year to provide security for the sellers' indemnification 
obligations. The purchase price was subject to downward adjustment based upon 
the percentage of former Nursing Innovations business that successfully 
transferred to TeamStaff Rx. It was determined that no additional purchase price 
adjustment was due after the first year and on November 18, 2005, we authorized 
the release of the $180,000 of funds held in escrow to the sellers. In addition, 
there are certain deferred purchase price provisions which may increase the 
total purchase price based upon the performance of the former Nursing 
Innovations business during the two years following closing of the transaction. 
It was determined that no additional purchase price was due for year one of the 
two year earn-out period. 
 
The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed: 
 
(Amounts in thousands) 
Property, plant, and equipment             $ 185 
Goodwill                                   1,681 
                                    ------------- 
Total assets acquired                      1,866 
                                    ------------- 
Total liabilities assumed                      - 
                                    ------------- 
Net assets acquired                       $1,866 
                                    ============= 
 
Included in Goodwill is $66,000 of expenses directly related to the acquisition. 
 
The following unaudited pro forma information presents a summary of consolidated 
financial results of operations of the Company and acquired companies as if the 
acquisitions had occurred on October 1, 2004, the beginning of the earliest 
period presented. The unaudited pro forma results are not necessarily indicative 
of what would have actually occurred had the acquisitions been in effect for the 
period presented. 
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(Amounts in thousands, except per share data).        Three Months Ended 
                                                       December 31, 2004 
                                                      ------------------ 
Revenues                                                  $24,711 
Net loss                                                    $(400) 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted                     $(0.02) 
 
The number of common shares outstanding used to calculate pro forma earnings per 
share have been adjusted to include 2,392,000 shares issued as the source of 
financing for the Nursing Innovations acquisition and 1,206,896 shares issued as 
part of the RS Staffing Services acquisition, as if these shares had been 
outstanding as of the earliest period presented. 
 
This table does not reflect cost savings of approximately $77,000 for the three 
months ended December 31, 2004 that would have potentially been eliminated due 
to cost synergies between the companies as part of the acquisition. 
 
(4) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS: 
 
Effective November 17, 2003, TeamStaff sold certain of the assets of the 
subsidiaries through which it operated its professional employer organization 
("PEO") business to Gevity HR, Inc. ("Gevity") for the sum of $9.5 million in 
cash, $2.5 million of which had been placed in escrow. 
 
On April 23, 2004, TeamStaff and Gevity agreed that TeamStaff's share of the 
$2.5 million placed in escrow was $2.25 million. That amount was released from 
escrow for TeamStaff's benefit. When added to the $7.0 million previously paid 
by Gevity, the total purchase price paid was $9.25 million. Concurrently, 
TeamStaff settled obligations to Gevity related to payroll for TeamStaff's 
internal employees under a co-employment arrangement of $1.2 million, and 
settled obligations predominantly related to PEO client payments received by 
TeamStaff during the period following the sale, offset in part by invoices paid 
by TeamStaff on Gevity's behalf, totaling $1.1 million. Additionally, effective 
May 2, 2004, TeamStaff sold certain of the assets of TeamStaff Solutions, Inc., 
the subsidiary through which it operated its temporary technical staffing 
business, to Metro Tech Consulting Services, Inc. for the sum of $65,000. 
 
There were no revenues for the PEO segment for the three months ended December 
31, 2005 and 2004. 
 
The following chart details assets and liabilities from discontinued operations: 
 
 
 
                                                     December 31,       September 30, 
(amounts in thousands)                                   2005                2005 
- ----------------------                             ---------------     -------------- 
 
ASSETS                                                        $ -                $ - 
- ------                                             ===============     ============== 
 
LIABILITIES 
- ----------- 
 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities               $348               $422 
                                                   ---------------     -------------- 
  Total current liabilities                                   348                422 
                                                   ---------------     -------------- 
  Total liabilities                                          $348               $422 
                                                   ===============     ============== 
 
  Liability Balances                                September 30,        Expensed          Paid This         December 31, 
  (amounts in thousands)                            2005 Balance       This Quarter         Quarter         2005 Balance 
                                                   ---------------     --------------    --------------    --------------- 
  Accrued expenses and other current liabilities             $422                $31            $(105)               $348 
                                                   ---------------     --------------    --------------    --------------- 
  Total                                                      $422                $31            $(105)               $348 
                                                   ===============     ==============    ==============    =============== 

 
 
(5) COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCY: 
 
NEW LEASE AGREEMENT: 
 
On November 18, 2005, TeamStaff, Inc., as tenant, and One Peachtree Pointe 
Associates, LLC, as landlord, entered into a lease for approximately 2,998 
rentable square feet located at 1545 Peachtree St NE, Atlanta, Georgia. The 
lease is for a sixty-five month term, with an anticipated commencement date of 
February 1, 2006. The premises will be used primarily as office space for 
TeamStaff's corporate executive and information technology staff. The total 
value of the commitment over the life of the lease is approximately $450,000. 
The Company is also responsible for its share in increase to Operating Costs (as 
defined in the Lease) after the first lease year. TeamStaff's current office 
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lease in Atlanta, Georgia expired on November 30, 2005 but was extended on a 
month to month basis until January 31, 2006. 
 
PAYROLL TAXES: 
 
TeamStaff has received notices from the IRS claiming taxes, interest and 
penalties due related to payroll taxes predominantly from its former PEO 
operations. TeamStaff has also received notices from the IRS reporting 
overpayments of taxes. Management believes that these notices are predominantly 
the result of misapplication of payroll tax payments between its legal entities. 
If not resolved favorably, the Company may incur interest and penalties. Until 
the sale of certain assets as described in Note 4, TeamStaff operated through 17 
subsidiaries, and management believes that the IRS has not correctly identified 
payments made through certain of the different entities, therefore leading to 
the notices. To date, TeamStaff has been working with the IRS to resolve these 
discrepancies and has had certain interest and penalty claims abated. TeamStaff 
has also received notices from the Social Security Administration claiming 
variances in wage reporting compared to IRS transcripts. TeamStaff believes the 
notices from the Social Security Administration are directly related to the IRS 
notices received. TeamStaff has retained the services of Ernst & Young LLP as a 
consultant to assist it in resolving certain of these matters with the IRS and 
Social Security Administration. TeamStaff believes that after the IRS applies 
all the funds correctly, any significant interest and penalties will be abated; 
however, there can be no assurance that each of these matters will be resolved 
favorably. 
 
(6) WORKERS' COMPENSATION: 
 
PREPAID WORKERS' COMPENSATION: 
 
TeamStaff's current workers' compensation insurance program is provided by 
Zurich American Insurance Company. The Zurich program originally covered the 
period from March 22, 2002 through March 31, 2003, inclusive. On March 28, 2003, 
TeamStaff renewed its workers' compensation program with Zurich for the period 
from April 1, 2003, through March 31, 2004, inclusive. The renewal program 
contained a large deductible feature of $0.5 million for each claim, with a 
maximum liability cap of the greater of 104.41% of manual premium or $15.6 
million. The premium for the program was paid monthly based upon estimated 
payroll for the year and was subject to a policy year-end audit. The renewal 
program was collateralized by a letter of credit inuring to the benefit of 
Zurich, and cash held in a trust account by a third party. A letter of credit 
for $3.5 million was secured through Fleet Bank, as part of TeamStaff's line of 
credit. Effective March 31, 2004, Zurich agreed to a reduction in the amount of 
the letter of credit to $1.8 million. As a result, on March 31, 2004, TeamStaff 
secured a new letter of credit in the amount of $1.8 million with SunTrust Bank. 
Effective March 31, 2005, Zurich withdrew the requirement for a letter of credit 
and $1.8 million of restricted cash held in the form of a certificate of deposit 
at SunTrust Bank was released to TeamStaff. Payments were made to the trust 
monthly based on projected claims for the year. Interest on all assets held in 
the trust is credited to TeamStaff. Payments for claims and claims expenses are 
made from the trust. Assets in the trust may be adjusted from time to time based 
on program experience. GAB Robins, a third party administrator, provides claims 
handling services for the program. In conjunction with the sale of its PEO 
assets to GevityHR, Inc., TeamStaff requested and received a pro rata 
cancellation of the policy described immediately above as of November 17, 2003. 
On May 12, 2004, TeamStaff received $963,000 in return premiums from Zurich for 
the policy period April 1, 2002 through November 17, 2003. A reduction of the 
prepaid asset in the amount of $0.5 million was recorded in the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2005 as a result of adverse claims development for the 
period April 1, 2002 through November 17, 2003. This write-down was 
predominantly driven by one claim that caused the Company to increase its 
maximum exposure to equal the policy deductible. At December 31, 2005, TeamStaff 
has a prepaid asset of $3.6 million for the premiums and the prepayments made to 
the trust for both years of the Zurich plan TeamStaff estimates that, of the 
remaining prepaid asset, approximately an additional $1.4 million in return 
premiums will be received within the next twelve months, and this is reflected 
on the balance sheet at December 31, 2005 as a current asset. 
 
Effective November 17, 2003, TeamStaff then entered into a new workers' 
compensation program with Zurich covering TeamStaff's temporary employees and, 
as of January 1, 2004, its corporate employees. The program is managed by Cedar 
Hill and GAB Robins provide claims handling services. This program was a fully 
insured, guaranteed cost program that contained no deductible or retention 
feature (the "Zurich Policy"). The Zurich Policy expired April 1, 2004. 
Effective April 1, 2004, TeamStaff entered into a new workers' compensation 
program with Zurich for the period April 1, 2004 through March 31, 2005 
identical to the Zurich Policy. Effective April 1, 2005, TeamStaff renewed its 
workers' compensation program with Zurich for the period from April 1, 2005 



through March 31, 2006. This renewal is also identical to the Zurich Policy. 
 
As of December 31, 2005, the adequacy of the workers' compensation reserves was 
determined, in management's opinion, to be reasonable. In determining our 
reserves we rely in part upon information regarding loss data received 
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from our workers' compensation insurance carriers that may include loss data for 
claims incurred during prior policy periods. In addition, these reserves are for 
claims that have not been sufficiently developed due to their relatively young 
age, and such variables as timing of payments and investment returns thereon are 
uncertain or unknown, therefore actual results may vary from current estimates. 
TeamStaff will continue to monitor the development of these reserves, the actual 
payments made against the claims incurred, the timing of these payments, the 
interest accumulated in TeamStaff's prepayments and adjust the reserves as 
deemed appropriate. 
 
ACCRUED WORKERS' COMPENSATION: 
 
As was previously reported in TeamStaff's Exchange Act filing on Form 8-K, filed 
on October 20, 2005, the Company settled certain disputed workers' compensation 
insurance premium and loss claims totaling nearly $4.4 million for $2.05 million 
payable over two (2) years (subject to certain prepayment requirements), and was 
fully reserved as of the Company's June 30, 2005 balance sheet. The settlement 
was entered on or about October 10, 2005. In or about January, 2001, TeamStaff 
purchased from Transportation Insurance Company ("TPIC"), Transcontinental 
Insurance Company ("TCIC"), Continental Casualty Company ("CCC"), CNA Claimplus, 
Inc. ("ClaimPlus") and North Rock Insurance Company Limited ("North Rock") 
(together, the "CNA Entities") a workers' compensation insurance program to 
provide workers' compensation insurance and claims services for TeamStaff's 
professional employee operations nationwide (the "Program"). The Program 
provided TeamStaff with workers' compensation insurance coverage and claims 
services for all covered claims incurred during the period from January 22, 2001 
to January 22, 2002 (the "Initial Policy Term"). TeamStaff secured its 
obligations under the Program through its February 5, 2001 purchase of an 
Exposure Buyback Policy numbered EBP 006/001 from North Rock (the "Exposure 
Buyback Policy"), also covering the period from January 22, 2001 to January 22, 
2002. On or around January 22, 2002, TeamStaff purchased from TCIC and RSKCo an 
extension of the Program (the "Program Extension"). The Program Extension 
provided TeamStaff with workers' compensation insurance coverage and claims 
services for all covered claims incurred during the period from January 22, 2002 
to March 22, 2002 (the "Extended Policy Term"). 
 
TeamStaff contested the CNA Entities' accounting of the amount due and owing 
under the Program, the Program Extension and the Exposure Buyback Policy, and of 
the ultimate losses projected to be due from TeamStaff. TeamStaff additionally 
asserted that the CNA Entities committed certain errors in claims management 
which unjustifiably increased the losses incurred under the Program and the 
Program Extension, and inappropriately included certain non-recoverable items in 
the premium calculations for both the Program and the Program Extension, thereby 
entitling TeamStaff to a credit against the amounts ultimately due and owing 
under the Program, the Program Extension and the Exposure Buyback Policy. The 
CNA Entities maintained that there was due and owing from TeamStaff the sum of 
$1,824,975 in premiums, deductibles, claims services fees, losses and allocated 
loss adjustment expenses under the Program and the Program Extension, and 
$835,596 in premiums and losses under the Exposure Buyback Policy. The CNA 
Entities projected that TeamStaff would be liable for an additional $1,181,301 
of losses under the Program and the Program Extension, and an additional 
$556,176 of losses under the Exposure Buyback Policy. The aggregate amounts 
totaled $4,398,048. 
 
The settlement fully and completely resolves, without litigation, all of the 
issues addressed above on the material terms described below and in the 
Agreement, without admitting and, in fact, expressly denying, the allegations 
and claims each party could have made against the other. Under the settlement, 
TeamStaff will pay the CNA Entities the sum of $2,050,000, plus interest at a 
rate of 6.0%, as follows: (1) $300,000 upon execution of the Agreement; (2) 
$250,000 every 90 days thereafter, plus interest on the unpaid sum at a rate of 
6.0% from the date of the preceding payment, for a total of eight (8) payments. 
TeamStaff made the first $250,000 payment on or about January 20, 2006. The 
$300,000 payment made at execution was in settlement of the outstanding 
premiums, deductibles, claims services fees, losses and allocated loss 
adjustment expenses due and owing under the Program, the Program Extension and 
the Exposure Buyback Policy. The second through eighth payments are in 
settlement of liabilities that become due and/or may become due under the 
Program, the Program Extension and the Exposure Buyback Policy, including but 
not limited to, premiums, deductibles, claims services fees, losses and 
allocated loss adjustment expenses. It was also agreed that the payment schedule 



would be accelerated by and in the amount of any and all payments TeamStaff 
receives from Zurich North American in settlement of the receivable TeamStaff is 
carrying from its prior years' workers compensation insurance programs, up and 
to the then outstanding balance due the CNA Entities. 
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(7) OTHER CURRENT ASSETS: 
 
Other current assets at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005 consist of the 
following- (amounts in thousands) 
 
 
 
                                                                    December 31,   September 30, 
                                                                        2005           2005 
                                                                   -------------  -------------- 
 
     Miscellaneous receivables                                           $561          $516 
     Security deposits                                                    136           181 
     Prepaid insurance                                                    601           283 
     Miscellaneous prepaid expense                                        109           126 
     Other miscellaneous current assets                                    41            49 
                                                                   -------------  -------------- 
                                                                       $1,448        $1,155 
                                                                   =============  ============== 

 
 
(8) ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities at December 31, 2005 and 
September 30, 2005 consist of the following- (Amounts in thousands) 
 
 
 
                                                                    December 31,   September 30, 
                                                                        2005           2005 
                                                                   -------------  -------------- 
 
     Accrued bonus and commission                                       $189           $528 
     Accrued medical insurance and employee benefit expense              276            420 
     Accrued audit and tax fees                                          156            222 
     Accrued subcontracting expense                                      325            168 
     Accrued rebates                                                     128            128 
     Accrued interest expense                                            142             74 
     Accrued payroll taxes and workers' compensation                     109             74 
     Accrued occupancy expense                                           179             34 
     Accrued professional fees                                             8             33 
     Other miscellaneous accrued expenses                                169            279 
                                                                   -------------  -------------- 
                                                                      $1,681         $1,960 
                                                                   =============  ============== 

 
 
 
(9) DEBT: 
 
In connection with the acquisition of RS Staffing Services, Inc. (see Note 3), 
TeamStaff secured financing with PNC Bank, National Association in the form of a 
$7.0 million revolving credit facility. The credit facility was provided by PNC 
Bank effective on June 8, 2005 to (i) provide for the acquisition of RS 
Staffing; (ii) refinance an outstanding senior loan facility; and (iii) provide 
ongoing working capital. Revolving Credit advances under the credit facility 
will bear interest at either a PNC Bank internal rate that approximates the 
Prime Rate plus 25 basis points or LIBOR plus 275 basis points, whichever is 
higher. The facility has a three-year life and contains term and line of credit 
borrowing options. The facility is subject to certain restrictive covenants, 
including minimum EBITDA, and minimum consolidated debt service coverage ratio. 
For the three month period ended December 31, 2005, TeamStaff was in compliance 
with these covenants. The facility is subject to acceleration upon non-payment 
or various other standard default clauses. In addition, we granted PNC a lien 
and security interest on all of our assets. At December 31, 2005, the 
outstanding balance of the credit facility was $5.4 million and there was $1.2 
million of unused availability under the line, based on billed accounts 
receivable. The average daily outstanding balance since the date of inception on 
June 8, 2005 through December 31, 2005, was $4.4 million. TeamStaff is currently 
in discussions with PNC Bank to obtain an additional $1.0 million of borrowing 
capacity. The increase in line availability would be utilized to fund growth in 
RS Staffing. The weighted average interest rate on advances since the date of 
inception on June 8, 2005 through December 31, 2005, was 6.84%. The interest 
rate effective as of December 31, 2005 was 7.5%. 
 
In connection with the acquisition of RS Staffing, TeamStaff issued two 
promissory notes to the former owners of RS Staffing as part of the acquisition 
price, in the aggregate principal amount of $3.0 million. The notes bear 
interest at 5% per annum, and are subordinate to the financing provided by PNC 
Bank described above. One half of the principal and interest is due on June 8, 
2006 and the remaining is due in June 2007. 
 
TeamStaff has several short term notes payable with AI Credit Corp in connection 



with the financing of various RS Staffing insurance premiums. As of December 31, 
2005, the remaining principal balance on these notes was approximately $290,000. 
Interest rates range from 6.0% to 6.75% with maturity dates ranging from August 
2005 through July 2006. 
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Notes payable at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005 consists of the 
following- (Amounts in thousands) 
 
                                      December 31,        September 31, 
                                          2005                 2005 
                                   ------------------    ---------------- 
     Notes payable                       $3,290               $3,043 
     Less- Current portion               (1,790)              (1,543) 
                                   ------------------    ---------------- 
     Long-term debt                      $1,500               $1,500 
                                   ==================    ================ 
 
Maturities of notes payable as of September 30, 2006 are as follows- (Amounts in 
thousands) 
 
                   Years Ending 
                   September 30, 
                -------------------- 
                       2007                $1,500 
                                      -------------- 
                       Total               $1,500 
                                      ============== 
 
(10) STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS: 
 
During the quarter ended December 31, 2005, TeamStaff did not grant any options, 
no options expired or were cancelled unexercised, and no options were exercised. 
During the quarter ended December 31, 2004, TeamStaff granted 180,000 options at 
an average price of $2.07, 87,199 options expired or were cancelled unexercised, 
and no options were exercised. 
 
During the quarter ended December 31, 2005, no warrants were issued, 10,000 
warrants expired unexercised, and no warrants were exercised. During the quarter 
ended December 31, 2004, TeamStaff granted warrants to purchase 598,000 shares 
of common stock in conjunction with a private placement stock offering. The cash 
received from the transaction has been allocated among common stock and warrants 
based on the relative fair market value of the components. During the quarter 
ended December 31, 2004 no warrants expired unexercised, and no warrants were 
exercised. 
 
(11) SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLAN: 
 
Effective October 1, 2000, TeamStaff adopted a non-qualified Supplemental 
Retirement Plan (SERP) covering certain TeamStaff corporate officers. 
TeamStaff's former President and Chief Executive Officer and its former Chief 
Financial Officer were the only SERP participants. No current employees are 
covered under the SERP. SERP participants also were provided with a split dollar 
life insurance policy, insuring the life of the participant. Each participant 
collaterally assigned his policy to TeamStaff to secure repayment of policy 
premiums. In connection with the change in their employment status, TeamStaff 
engaged in negotiations with its former President and Chief Executive Officer 
and the former Chief Financial Officer regarding the payment of certain 
severance benefits and the satisfaction of TeamStaff's obligations to each of 
them under the SERP and the split dollar life insurance arrangements. 
 
On December 31, 2003, TeamStaff executed an agreement with its former President 
and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to which TeamStaff agreed to, among other 
things, release the collateral assignment of the split dollar life insurance 
policy as of December 31, 2003 and to accelerate the payment of certain agreed 
upon payments under the SERP in complete satisfaction of TeamStaff's obligations 
under the SERP. 
 
TeamStaff entered into a similar agreement with its former Chief Financial 
Officer effective as of December 30, 2003 in complete satisfaction of 
TeamStaff's obligations under the SERP. That agreement also provided for the 
payment of severance and other benefits over time in complete satisfaction of 
TeamStaff's obligations to its former Chief Financial Officer under his 
severance agreement effective May 22, 2002. 
 
Cash payments aggregating $0.2 million have been made to the former President 
and Chief Executive Officer and the former Chief Financial Officer during the 
first three months of fiscal 2006. 



 
COMPONENTS OF NET PERIODIC BENEFIT COST: 
 
                                                Three Months Ended 
                                                   December 31, 
(amounts in thousands)                             2005         2004 
                                             -----------   ---------- 
Interest cost                                        $5           $9 
Amortization of net loss                             11           19 
Settlement charges                                   65           78 
                                             -----------   ---------- 
Total pension cost                                  $81         $106 
                                             ===========   ========== 
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(12) SEGMENT REPORTING: 
 
As a part of continuing operations, TeamStaff operates two different lines of 
business: staffing (principally medical staffing) and payroll services. 
TeamStaff provides nursing and allied healthcare professionals and operates 
through three medical staffing units. TeamStaff's RS Staffing subsidiary 
specializes in providing medical and office administration/technical 
professionals through nationwide schedule contracts with both the General 
Services Administration and Veterans Affairs, among other customers. The 
TeamStaff Rx subsidiary operates throughout the US and specializes in the supply 
of allied medical employees and nurses, especially "travel" staff (typically 13 
week assignments). Allied medical staff includes MRI technicians, mammographers, 
dosimetrists, ultrasound staff and physicists. TeamStaff's Nursing Innovations 
unit provides travel nursing, per diem nursing, temporary-to-permanent nursing 
and permanent nursing placement services. All TeamStaff Rx and Nursing 
Innovations revenues, and approximately two-thirds of RS Staffing revenues, are 
derived from medical staffing. 
 
Through its DSI Payroll Services division, TeamStaff provides customized payroll 
management and tax services, primarily to the construction industry. DSI's 
service offerings include payroll check processing via web, phone or fax, 
federal and state quarterly and year-end tax compliance reports, W-2 processing 
and financial management reports, including certified payroll reports and custom 
software interfaces. DSI processes payrolls for approximately 700 clients that 
have more than 30,000 employees. 
 
All corporate expenses, interest expense, as well as depreciation on corporate 
assets and miscellaneous charges, are reflected in a separate unit called 
Corporate. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those 
described in the summary of significant accounting policies. TeamStaff evaluates 
the performance of its business lines based on pre-tax income. TeamStaff has no 
revenue derived from outside the United States. 
 
The following table represents the financial information for each of TeamStaff's 
segments: 
 
                                 Three Months Ended 
                                     December 31, 
(In thousands)                  2005             2004 
                            ------------     ----------- 
 STAFFING SERVICES: 
                 Revenues:      $19,426          $8,897 
        Income before tax:         $855            $291 
             Total assets:      $21,656          $8,582 
     Capital expenditures:          $11              $- 
 
PAYROLL SERVICES: 
                 Revenues:       $1,457          $1,304 
        Income before tax:         $686            $579 
             Total assets:       $1,268          $1,101 
     Capital expenditures:           $-              $- 
 
CORPORATE: 
                 Revenues:           $-              $- 
          Loss before tax:     $(1,539)        $(1,503) 
             Total assets:      $27,684         $30,972 
     Capital expenditures:           $6             $25 
 
CONSOLIDATED: 
                 Revenues:      $20,883         $10,201 
          Loss before tax:           $2          $(633) 
             Total assets:      $50,608         $40,655 
     Capital expenditures:          $17             $25 
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ITEM 2:           MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
                  FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
FORWARD LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS 
- ----------------------------------------- 
 
Certain statements contained herein constitute "forward-looking statements" 
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the 
"1995 Reform Act"). TeamStaff, Inc. desires to avail itself of certain "safe 
harbor" provisions of the 1995 Reform Act and is therefore including this 
special note to enable TeamStaff to do so. Forward-looking statements included 
in this report involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors 
which could cause TeamStaff's actual results, performance (financial or 
operating) or achievements to differ from the future results, performance 
(financial or operating) or achievements expressed or implied by such 
forward-looking statements. Such future results are managements best estimates 
based upon current conditions and the most recent results of operations. These 
risks include, but are not limited to, risks associated with risks undertaken in 
connection with acquisitions, risks from potential workers' compensation claims, 
increased insurance costs and required payments, risks from employer/employee 
related suits such as discrimination or wrongful termination, risk associated 
with medical professional liability claims, risks associated with payroll and 
employee related taxes which may require unanticipated payments by TeamStaff, 
liabilities associated with TeamStaff's status under certain federal and state 
employment laws as a co-employer, effects of competition, TeamStaff's ability to 
implement its internet based business and technological changes and dependence 
upon key personnel. These and other risks are stated in detail in our Report on 
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 and other reports and 
filings made by TeamStaff. 
 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES 
- ------------------------------------------ 
 
TeamStaff believes the accounting policies below represent its critical 
accounting policies due to the significance or estimation process involved in 
each. See Note 2 of TeamStaff's 2005 annual report on Form 10-K as well as 
"Critical Accounting Policies" contained therein for a detailed discussion on 
the application of these and other accounting policies. 
 
REVENUE RECOGNITION 
- ------------------- 
 
As of and for the period ended December 31, 2005, TeamStaff operated two 
different lines of business from which it derived substantially all of its 
revenue: temporary and permanent staffing and payroll services. 
 
TeamStaff accounts for its revenues in accordance with EITF 99-19, Reporting 
Revenues Gross as a Principal Versus Net as an Agent and SAB 104, Revenue 
Recognition. TeamStaff recognizes all amounts billed to its temporary staffing 
customers as gross revenue because, among other things, TeamStaff is the primary 
obligor in the temporary staffing arrangement; TeamStaff has pricing latitude; 
TeamStaff selects temporary employees for a given assignment from a broad pool 
of individuals; TeamStaff is at risk for the payment of its direct costs; and, 
TeamStaff assumes a significant amount of other risks and liabilities as an 
employer of its temporary employees, and therefore, is deemed to be a principal 
in regard to these services. TeamStaff also recognizes as gross revenue and as 
unbilled receivables, on an accrual basis, any such amounts that relate to 
services performed by temporary employees which have not yet been billed to the 
customer as of the end of the accounting period. 
 
Staffing (whether medical or administrative) revenue is recognized as service is 
rendered. TeamStaff bills its clients based on an hourly rate. The hourly rate 
is intended to cover TeamStaff's direct labor costs of the temporary employees, 
plus an estimate to cover overhead expenses and a profit margin. Additionally, 
commissions from permanent placements are included in revenue related to Medical 
Staffing. Commissions from permanent placements result from the successful 
placement of a medical staffing employee to a customer's workforce as a 
permanent employee. 
 
Payroll Services revenue is recognized as service is rendered and consists 
primarily of administrative service fees charged to clients for the processing 
of paychecks as well as preparing quarterly and annual payroll related reports. 
 
Direct costs of services are reflected in TeamStaff's Statement of Operations as 
"direct expenses" and are reflective of the type of revenue being generated. 
Direct costs of the temporary staffing business include wages, employment 



related taxes and reimbursable expenses. Payroll services' direct costs include 
salaries and supplies associated with the processing of the payroll service. 
 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION 
- --------------------- 
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PREPAID WORKERS' COMPENSATION: 
 
TeamStaff's current workers' compensation insurance program is provided by 
Zurich American Insurance Company. The Zurich program originally covered the 
period from March 22, 2002 through March 31, 2003, inclusive. On March 28, 2003, 
TeamStaff renewed its workers' compensation program with Zurich for the period 
from April 1, 2003, through March 31, 2004, inclusive. The renewal program 
contained a large deductible feature of $0.5 million for each claim, with a 
maximum liability cap of the greater of 104.41% of manual premium or $15.6 
million. The premium for the program was paid monthly based upon estimated 
payroll for the year and was subject to a policy year-end audit. The renewal 
program was collateralized by a letter of credit inuring to the benefit of 
Zurich, and cash held in a trust account by a third party. A letter of credit 
for $3.5 million was secured through Fleet Bank, as part of TeamStaff's line of 
credit. Effective March 31, 2004, Zurich agreed to a reduction in the amount of 
the letter of credit to $1.8 million. As a result, on March 31, 2004, TeamStaff 
secured a new letter of credit in the amount of $1.8 million with SunTrust Bank. 
Effective March 31, 2005, Zurich withdrew the requirement for a letter of credit 
and $1.8 million of restricted cash held in the form of a certificate of deposit 
at SunTrust Bank was released to TeamStaff. Payments were made to the trust 
monthly based on projected claims for the year. Interest on all assets held in 
the trust is credited to TeamStaff. Payments for claims and claims expenses are 
made from the trust. Assets in the trust may be adjusted from time to time based 
on program experience. GAB Robins, a third party administrator, provides claims 
handling services for the program. In conjunction with the sale of its PEO 
assets to GevityHR, Inc., TeamStaff requested and received a pro rata 
cancellation of the policy described immediately above as of November 17, 2003. 
On May 12, 2004, TeamStaff received $963,000 in return premiums from Zurich for 
the policy period April 1, 2002 through November 17, 2003. A reduction of the 
prepaid asset in the amount of $0.5 million was recorded in the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2005 as a result of adverse claims development for the 
period April 1, 2002 through November 17, 2003. This write-down was 
predominantly driven by one claim that caused the Company to increase its 
maximum exposure to equal the policy deductible. At December 31, 2005, TeamStaff 
has a prepaid asset of $3.6 million for the premiums and the prepayments made to 
the trust for both years of the Zurich plan TeamStaff estimates that, of the 
remaining prepaid asset, approximately an additional $1.4 million in return 
premiums will be received within the next twelve months, and this is reflected 
on the balance sheet at December 31, 2005 as a current asset. 
 
Effective November 17, 2003, TeamStaff then entered into a new workers' 
compensation program with Zurich covering TeamStaff's temporary employees and, 
as of January 1, 2004, its corporate employees. The program is managed by Cedar 
Hill and GAB Robins provide claims handling services. This program was a fully 
insured, guaranteed cost program that contained no deductible or retention 
feature (the "Zurich Policy"). The Zurich Policy expired April 1, 2004. 
Effective April 1, 2004, TeamStaff entered into a new workers' compensation 
program with Zurich for the period April 1, 2004 through March 31, 2005 
identical to the Zurich Policy. Effective April 1, 2005, TeamStaff renewed its 
workers' compensation program with Zurich for the period from April 1, 2005 
through March 31, 2006. This renewal is also identical to the Zurich Policy. 
 
As of December 31, 2005, the adequacy of the workers' compensation reserves was 
determined, in management's opinion, to be reasonable. In determining our 
reserves we rely in part upon information regarding loss data received from our 
workers' compensation insurance carriers that may include loss data for claims 
incurred during prior policy periods. In addition, these reserves are for claims 
that have not been sufficiently developed due to their relatively young age, and 
such variables as timing of payments and investment returns thereon are 
uncertain or unknown, therefore actual results may vary from current estimates. 
TeamStaff will continue to monitor the development of these reserves, the actual 
payments made against the claims incurred, the timing of these payments, the 
interest accumulated in TeamStaff's prepayments and adjust the reserves as 
deemed appropriate. 
 
ACCRUED WORKERS' COMPENSATION: 
 
As was previously reported in TeamStaff's Exchange Act filing on Form 8-K, filed 
on October 20, 2005, the Company settled certain disputed workers' compensation 
insurance premium and loss claims totaling nearly $4.4 million for $2.05 million 
payable over two (2) years (subject to certain prepayment requirements), and was 
fully reserved as of the Company's June 30, 2005 balance sheet. The settlement 



was entered on or about October 10, 2005. In or about January, 2001, TeamStaff 
purchased from Transportation Insurance Company ("TPIC"), Transcontinental 
Insurance Company ("TCIC"), Continental Casualty Company ("CCC"), CNA Claimplus, 
Inc. ("ClaimPlus") and North Rock Insurance Company Limited ("North Rock") 
(together, the "CNA Entities") a workers' compensation insurance program to 
provide workers' compensation insurance and claims services for TeamStaff's 
professional employee operations nationwide (the "Program"). The Program 
provided TeamStaff with workers' compensation insurance coverage and claims 
services for all covered claims incurred during the period from January 22, 2001 
to January 22, 2002 (the "Initial Policy Term"). TeamStaff secured its 
obligations under the Program through its February 5, 2001 purchase of an 
Exposure Buyback Policy numbered EBP 006/001 from North Rock (the "Exposure 
Buyback Policy"), also covering the period from January 22, 2001 to January 22, 
2002. On or around January 22, 2002, TeamStaff purchased from TCIC and RSKCo an 
extension of the Program (the "Program 
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Extension"). The Program Extension provided TeamStaff with workers' compensation 
insurance coverage and claims services for all covered claims incurred during 
the period from January 22, 2002 to March 22, 2002 (the "Extended Policy Term"). 
 
TeamStaff contested the CNA Entities' accounting of the amount due and owing 
under the Program, the Program Extension and the Exposure Buyback Policy, and of 
the ultimate losses projected to be due from TeamStaff. TeamStaff additionally 
asserted that the CNA Entities committed certain errors in claims management 
which unjustifiably increased the losses incurred under the Program and the 
Program Extension, and inappropriately included certain non-recoverable items in 
the premium calculations for both the Program and the Program Extension, thereby 
entitling TeamStaff to a credit against the amounts ultimately due and owing 
under the Program, the Program Extension and the Exposure Buyback Policy. The 
CNA Entities maintained that there was due and owing from TeamStaff the sum of 
$1,824,975 in premiums, deductibles, claims services fees, losses and allocated 
loss adjustment expenses under the Program and the Program Extension, and 
$835,596 in premiums and losses under the Exposure Buyback Policy. The CNA 
Entities projected that TeamStaff would be liable for an additional $1,181,301 
of losses under the Program and the Program Extension, and an additional 
$556,176 of losses under the Exposure Buyback Policy. The aggregate amounts 
totaled $4,398,048. 
 
The settlement fully and completely resolves, without litigation, all of the 
issues addressed above on the material terms described below and in the 
Agreement, without admitting and, in fact, expressly denying, the allegations 
and claims each party could have made against the other. Under the settlement, 
TeamStaff will pay the CNA Entities the sum of $2,050,000, plus interest at a 
rate of 6.0%, as follows: (1) $300,000 upon execution of the Agreement; (2) 
$250,000 every 90 days thereafter, plus interest on the unpaid sum at a rate of 
6.0% from the date of the preceding payment, for a total of eight (8) payments. 
TeamStaff made the first $250,000 payment on or about January 20, 2006. The 
$300,000 payment made at execution was in settlement of the outstanding 
premiums, deductibles, claims services fees, losses and allocated loss 
adjustment expenses due and owing under the Program, the Program Extension and 
the Exposure Buyback Policy. The second through eighth payments are in 
settlement of liabilities that become due and/or may become due under the 
Program, the Program Extension and the Exposure Buyback Policy, including but 
not limited to, premiums, deductibles, claims services fees, losses and 
allocated loss adjustment expenses. It was also agreed that the payment schedule 
would be accelerated by and in the amount of any and all payments TeamStaff 
receives from Zurich North American in settlement of the receivable TeamStaff is 
carrying from its prior years' workers compensation insurance programs, up and 
to the then outstanding balance due the CNA Entities. 
 
DEFERRED TAXES 
- -------------- 
 
TeamStaff accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes." Under SFAS No. 109, 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference 
between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities, using 
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected 
to reverse. Deferred tax assets are reflected on the balance sheet when it is 
determined that it is more likely than not that the asset will be realized. 
 
RESULTS OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
- -------------------------------- 
 
TeamStaff's revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were 
$20.9 million and $10.2 million, respectively, which represents an increase of 
$10.7 million, or 104.7%, from first fiscal quarter 2005 to first fiscal quarter 



2006. Revenues from staffing services for the three months ended December 31, 
2005 and 2004 were $19.4 million and $8.9 million, respectively, which 
represents an increase of $10.5 million, or 118.3%, from first fiscal quarter 
2005 to first fiscal quarter 2006. Revenues for first fiscal quarter 2006 
include $3.1 million related to the acquisition of Nursing Innovations, a 
Memphis, Tennessee-based provider of travel and per diem nurses effective as of 
November 14, 2004 (See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). 
Revenues related to Nursing Innovations for first fiscal quarter 2005, which 
includes revenue from the date of acquisition effective November 14, 2004 to 
December 31, 2004, was $1.6 million. $11.0 million related to the acquisition of 
RS Staffing Services, a Monroe, Georgia-based provider of medical and office 
administration/technical professionals effective as of June 4, 2005 (See Note 3 
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.) These acquisitions helped offset 
a decrease in the revenues of the allied healthcare portion of our Staffing 
Services division from first fiscal quarter 2005 to first fiscal quarter 2006 of 
$1.8 million. The Payroll Services division revenues for the three months ended 
December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $1.5 million and $1.3 million, respectively, 
which represents an increase of $0.2 million, or 11.5%, from first fiscal 
quarter 2005 to first fiscal quarter 2006. 
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In the second half of calendar 2005, before the normal seasonal holiday 
downturn, we saw an increase in demand for our travel nurses as well as an 
increase in applicants entering the travel segment. This increase, however, was 
not experienced in our travel allied division as we continued to see hospitals 
focus on containing cost in this higher priced business segment by placing 
greater reliance on permanent staff. We believe that since the business 
fundamentals of allied health are similar to those in the nursing segment, that 
the allied sector will eventually experience a sustained rebound. 
 
Longer term, we believe the demand for temporary medical personnel will 
increase. Key drivers in our major business segments include an aging 
population, a strong employment environment and growth in hospital admissions. 
We believe demand will also increase as more states introduce legislation for 
mandatory minimum nurse to patient ratios and overtime limitations. The 
acquisition of Nursing Innovations in the first quarter of last fiscal year 
provided TeamStaff with the opportunity to benefit from these industry changes 
that, we believe, impact our temporary nurse staffing business most 
significantly. Our acquisition of RS Staffing completed in early June 2005 gives 
us a strong presence in the government sector and provides us with an 
opportunity to cross sell to our nursing and allied divisions. Revenues in the 
RS Staffing division grew 10% sequentially from the fourth fiscal quarter of 
2005 to the first fiscal quarter of 2006. We continue to focus on our sales and 
marketing efforts throughout the divisions in order to increase our contact with 
current and prospective clients. 
 
Direct expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $16.6 
million and $7.6 million, respectively, which represents an increase of $9.0 
million, or 117.7%, from first fiscal quarter 2005 to first fiscal quarter 2006. 
This increase is a direct result of increased revenues. As a percentage of 
revenue, direct expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 
were 79.4% and 74.6%, respectively. This increase is a result of a higher volume 
of teaming partner (subcontractor) costs due to the inclusion of RS Staffing. 
Teaming is a business practice expected by government entities who prefer their 
suppliers to provide more of a master vendor service where the supplier looks to 
outside sources when needed to fill open staffing positions. 
 
Gross profits for the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $4.3 
million and $2.6 million, respectively, which represents an increase of $1.7 
million, or 66.5%, from first fiscal quarter 2005 to first fiscal quarter 2006. 
This increase is attributable to the growth by acquisition of our staffing 
business as well as more prudent expense management and selected price increases 
in the Payroll Services division. Gross profits, as a percentage of revenue, 
decreased to 20.6% from 25.4%, for the first fiscal quarter ended December 31, 
2005 and 2004, respectively. This decrease is primarily due to the inclusion of 
RS Staffing in the 2006 revenues and costs related to staffing teaming partners. 
 
Operating expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were 
$4.0 million and $3.1 million, respectively, which represents an increase of 
$0.9 million, or 29.3%. Operating expenses related to Nursing Innovations for 7 
weeks of operations in first fiscal quarter 2005 were $0.2 million, compared to 
$0.6 million for 13 weeks of operations in first fiscal quarter 2006. Operating 
expenses related to RS Staffing for first fiscal quarter 2006 were $0.8 million. 
After adjusting for operating expenses due to the acquisitions of Nursing 
Innovations and RS Staffing, expenses decreased 8% from first fiscal quarter 
2005 to first fiscal quarter 2006. Operating expenses, as a percentage of 
revenue, were 19.4% and 30.7%, for the fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2005 
and 2004, respectively. 



 
Depreciation and amortization for the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 
2004 was approximately $122,000 and $148,000, respectively. Although there was 
an increase from first fiscal quarter 2004 to first fiscal quarter 2005, due to 
additional fixed assets acquired as part of the acquisitions of Nursing 
Innovations and RS Staffing, this increase was offset by a reduction in 
depreciation expense caused by several asset groups becoming fully depreciated 
during the prior fiscal year. 
 
Other income, which is comprised of interest income and late fee income, for the 
three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $39,000 and 
$60,000, respectively, representing a decrease of $21,000. Late fee income is 
earned only in the allied healthcare division and the decrease is a result of 
lower revenues. 
 
Interest expense for the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was 
approximately $177,000 and $20,000, respectively, representing an increase of 
$157,000. This increase is primarily a result of interest expense related to the 
revolving credit facility effective as of June 8, 2005, as well as interest 
expense from the notes payable related to the acquisition of RS Staffing 
effective as of June 4, 2005. 
 
Income tax expense from continuing operations for three months ended December 
31, 2005 was virtually zero, compared to income tax benefit of $0.2 million for 
the three months ended December 31, 2004. These tax benefits in the prior fiscal 
year were a result of losses from operations. Management believes that due to 
the acquisitions of 
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RS Staffing and Nursing Innovations, two historically profitable companies, 
coupled with an improving business climate for temporary staffing, the Company 
will be able to utilize the recorded deferred tax asset. 
 
Income from continuing operations for the three months ended December 31, 2005 
was breakeven, or $0.00 per fully diluted share, as compared to loss from 
continuing operations for the three months ended December 31, 2004 of $0.4 
million, or $(0.02) per fully diluted share. 
 
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, for the three months ended 
December 31, 2005 was $0.02 million, or $0.00 per fully diluted share, as 
compared to loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, for the three months 
ended December 31, 2004 of $0.2 million, or $(0.01) per fully diluted share. In 
fiscal 2005, the loss was due to previously unbilled legal fees and 
non-cancelable software licenses related to the discontinued business unit. 
 
Net loss for the three months ended December 31, 2005 was $0.02 million, or 
$0.00 per fully diluted share, as compared to a net loss of $0.6 million, or 
$(0.03) per fully diluted share, for the three months ended December 31, 2004. 
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
- ------------------------------- 
 
Net cash used in operating activities for the three months ended December 31, 
2005 was $2.3 million compared to $2.9 million for the three months ended 
December 31, 2004. Use of cash during first fiscal quarter 2006 includes 
increased accounts receivable of $1.4 million due to the increased sales in the 
RS Staffing division, as well as the recurring annual slowdown in collections 
due to the holiday season, and $0.8 million due to a decrease in accounts 
payable, accrued payroll and other accrued expenses. Use of cash during first 
fiscal quarter 2005 includes increased accounts receivable of $1.6 million 
primarily due to the operations of Nursing Innovations subsequent to the 
acquisition on November 13, 2004, and losses in continuing and discontinued 
operations. 
 
Cash used in investing activities for the three months ended December 31, 2005 
was $0.02 million compared to $1.9 million for the three months ended December 
31, 2004. Use of cash in first fiscal quarter 2006 was for the purchase of 
equipment and leasehold improvements. Use of cash in first fiscal quarter 2005 
was primarily for the purchase of certain of the assets of Nursing Innovations 
for $1.9 million. 
 
Cash provided by financing activities for the three months ended December 31, 
2005 was $1.3 million compared to $4.0 million for the three months ended 
December 31, 2004. Effective June 8, 2005, TeamStaff, Inc. entered into a $7.0 
million revolving credit facility provided by PNC Bank to (i) provide for the 
acquisition of RS Staffing; (ii) refinance an outstanding senior loan facility; 
and (iii) provide ongoing working capital. Revolving Credit advances bear 
interest at either the Prime Rate plus 25 basis points or LIBOR plus 275 basis 
points, whichever is higher. The facility has a three-year life and contains 



term and line of credit borrowing options. The facility is subject to certain 
restrictive covenants, including minimum EBITDA and a minimum consolidated debt 
service coverage ratio. For the period ended December 31, 2005, TeamStaff was in 
compliance with these covenants. The facility is subject to acceleration upon 
non-payment or various other standard default clauses. In addition, we granted 
PNC a lien and security interest on all of our assets. As of December 31, 2005, 
there was $5.4 million debt outstanding under the Credit Facility and $1.2 
million of unused availability under the line, based on billed accounts 
receivable. The interest rate effective as of December 31, 2005 was 7.5%. 
 
Availability under the PNC line of credit is directly related to the successful 
assignment of certain accounts receivable. Certain government accounts of RS 
Staffing Services are required to execute "Acknowledgements of Assignment." 
There can be no assurance that every RS Staffing government account will execute 
the documentation to effectuate the assignment and secure availability. The 
failure of government third parties to sign the required documentation could 
result in a decrease in availability under the line of credit. 
 
During the first fiscal quarter of 2005, TeamStaff entered into Securities 
Purchase Agreements with several accredited investors for the private sale under 
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 and/or Regulation D of securities for 
an aggregate purchase price of $4.3 million. TeamStaff received net proceeds of 
approximately $4.0 million, after payment of commissions and related offering 
expenses. 
 
As of December 31, 2005, TeamStaff had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of 
$0.2 million and net accounts receivable of $10.9 million. TeamStaff also had 
$1.2 million of unused availability under the revolving credit facility provided 
by PNC Bank. As of December 31, 2005, TeamStaff had working capital of $0.97 
million. The Company has requested from PNC Bank an increase in line 
availability of $1.0 million. This increase would be used to fund growth in the 
RS Staffing business segment. In addition, due to strong January collections, 
line availability increased to $1.7 million as of February 6, 2006. Management 
believes its existing cash, liquidity provided by the 
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Company's revolving line of credit and funds generated by operations will be 
sufficient to support cash needs for at least the next twelve months. 
 
Obligations 
(Amounts in thousands)                         Payments Due By Period 
                                               ---------------------- 
                                       Less than        1-3 
                         Total         1 year           years         4-5 years 
                       -----------   --------------   -----------   ------------ 
 
Long-term debt (1)       $10,770          $8,331        $2,439             $- 
Operating leases (2)       3,066             772         1,804            490 
Pension liability (3)        654             210           308            136 
                       -----------   --------------   -----------   ------------ 
Total Obligations        $14,490          $9,313        $4,551           $626 
                       ===========   ==============   ===========   ============ 
 
(1) Represents bank line of credit, notes payable related to acquisition of RS 
Staffing, CNA settlement, and capital lease obligations. Bank line of credit has 
a 3-year life but is classified as short term because it is subject to 
acceleration upon non-payment or various other standard default clauses. 
Additionally, the CNA settlement is classified as short term because it contains 
an acceleration clause not to exceed amounts received from Zurich American 
Insurance Company. 
 
(2) Represents lease payments net of sublease income. 
 
(3) Represents pension liability for the former CEO and former CFO. 
 
EFFECTS OF INFLATION 
- -------------------- 
 
Inflation and changing prices have not had a material effect on TeamStaff's net 
revenues and results of operations, as TeamStaff has been able to modify its 
prices and cost structure to respond to inflation and changing prices. 
 
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
 
TeamStaff does not undertake trading practices in securities or other financial 
instruments and therefore does not have any material exposure to interest rate 
risk, foreign currency exchange rate risk, commodity price risk or other similar 
risks, which might otherwise result from such practices. TeamStaff is not 
materially subject to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, commodity prices 



or other market rates or prices from market sensitive instruments. TeamStaff has 
a material interest rate risk with respect to our prior workers' compensation 
programs. In connection with TeamStaff's prior workers' compensation programs, 
prepayments of future claims were deposited into trust funds for possible future 
payments of these claims in accordance with the policies. The interest income 
resulting from these prepayments is for the benefit of TeamStaff, and is used to 
offset workers' compensation expense. If interest rates in these periods' 
decrease, TeamStaff's workers' compensation expense would increase because 
TeamStaff would be entitled to less interest income on the deposited funds. 
Further, and as discussed elsewhere in this filing, TeamStaff, Inc. completed a 
$7.0 million revolving credit facility by PNC Bank effective on June 8, 2005. 
Revolving Credit advances bear interest at either the Prime Rate plus 25 basis 
points or LIBOR plus 275 basis points, whichever is higher. The facility has a 
three-year life and contains term and line of credit borrowing options. The 
facility is subject to certain restrictive covenants, including minimum EBITDA 
and a minimum consolidated debt service coverage ratio. The facility is subject 
to acceleration upon non-payment or various other standard default clauses. 
Material increases in the Prime or LIBOR rate could have a material adverse 
effect on our results of operations, the status of the Revolving Credit Facility 
as well as interest costs. TeamStaff is currently in discussions with PNC Bank 
to obtain an additional $1.0 million of borrowing capacity. The increase in line 
availability would be utilized to fund growth in RS Staffing. 
 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
 
EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES: 
 
Our management, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (who serves as our principal 
accounting officer), conducted an evaluation of our "disclosure controls and 
procedures" (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-14(c)) 
as of the end of the period (December 31, 2005) ("Evaluation Date") covered by 
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Based on their evaluation, our Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (who serves as our principal 
accounting officer) have concluded that as of the Evaluation Date, our 
disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that all material 
information required to be filed in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q has been 
made known to them. 
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CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS: 
 
There have been no significant changes, including corrective actions with regard 
to significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, in our internal controls or 
in other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to 
the Evaluation Date set forth above. 
 
PART II - OTHER INFORMATION 
 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
In July 2000, TeamStaff made claims for indemnification against the selling 
shareholders of the TeamStaff Companies (the Sellers), which were acquired by 
TeamStaff in January 1999. The claims consisted of various potential liabilities 
and expenses incurred based on breaches of representations and warranties 
contained in the acquisition agreement. The Sellers disputed these claims and 
attempted to assert claims of their own. On January 12, 2001, TeamStaff entered 
into a settlement agreement with the Sellers. Under the settlement agreement, 
the Sellers agreed to be liable and responsible for certain potential 
liabilities estimated at approximately $0.5 million and agreed that 55,000 
shares of TeamStaff common stock, which had been held in escrow since the 
acquisition, were to be cancelled. TeamStaff also agreed to release 29,915 
escrow shares to the Sellers. TeamStaff retains 75,000 shares in escrow to 
provide security for the Seller's obligations. Each party agreed to release each 
other from all other claims under the acquisition agreements. No third parties 
have contacted TeamStaff seeking payment in the last fiscal year for these 
potential liabilities. In the event that TeamStaff incurs liability to third 
parties with respect to the claims, TeamStaff would declare an event of default 
under the settlement agreement and seek collection from the Sellers. 
 
TeamStaff's subsidiary, BrightLane, is party to a suit brought by one of its 
former shareholders (Atomic Fusion, Inc. v. BrightLane.com, Inc. Civil Action No 
ONS02246OE, Fulton County State Court, Georgia). The plaintiff seeks damages for 
alleged unpaid contractual services provided to BrightLane, alleging that the 
shares (both in number and value) of BrightLane stock provided to the plaintiff 
in payment of services were inadequate to pay for the alleged agreed upon value 
of services. In connection with TeamStaff's acquisition of BrightLane, the 
former shareholders of BrightLane were required to place approximately 158,000 



shares in escrow to provide indemnification for any claims made by TeamStaff 
under the acquisition agreement, subject to a $0.3 million threshold. Some or 
all of these shares may be canceled in an amount equal to the amount of any 
claim or expense in excess of the threshold. Under the terms of the agreements 
between TeamStaff and BrightLane, the value of the shares held in escrow is 
$8.10 per share. On November 20, 2003, the Fulton County Superior Court (to 
which the action was transferred) awarded summary judgment in BrightLane's favor 
on all counts of Atomic Fusion's complaint except for a beach of contract claim. 
In August, 2004, a trial was held on Atomic Fusion's breach of contract claim 
before a jury. The jury returned a verdict in Atomic Fusion's favor, awarding 
$534,246 in damages and $116,849 in attorney's fees, for a total verdict of 
$651,095, including interest and costs. BrightLane filed a motion for judgment 
notwithstanding the verdict, which was denied by the court. BrightLane believes 
that the jury's award of damages and attorney's fees is not supported by Georgia 
law, and BrightLane also believes the trial court erred in denying its motion 
for judgment notwithstanding the verdict. Therefore, BrightLane has filed 
appeals on both the jury's verdict on liability and damages and the denial of 
the motion for judgment notwithstanding the verdict. BrightLane also has filed a 
motion to recover certain of its attorneys' fees expended in pursuing its motion 
for summary judgment. This motion also is pending before the court. BrightLane 
is no longer an operating entity and has minimal assets. 
 
In connection with TeamStaff's acquisition of BrightLane effective as of August 
31, 2001, persons holding BrightLane options to acquire approximately 2.1 
million BrightLane shares (the equivalent of approximately 481,000 TeamStaff 
shares) exercised their options. BrightLane made recourse loans of approximately 
$1.0 million principal amount to the holders of these options to assist them in 
payment of tax obligations incurred with exercise of the options. The loans were 
repayable upon the earlier of (i) sale of the TeamStaff shares or (ii) three 
years. The shares that were received for the option exercise secured the loans. 
As of September 30, 2005 all of these loans have been repaid or forgiven. All 
loans were to be repaid in cash with the exception of one loan. Under the terms 
of TeamStaff's employment agreement with a former executive officer of 
TeamStaff's BrightLane subsidiary, the loan ($131,000) was forgiven over a 
two-year period of time. We previously commenced litigation against two of the 
persons who received loans, and these persons filed counterclaims against 
BrightLane and our Chairman. Both of the actions were settled. Pursuant to one 
of the settlements, the shareholder returned all shares of TeamStaff stock and 
the note was forgiven. This settlement has been completed. The other action was 
settled on identical terms. However, TeamStaff is awaiting delivery of the 
shares to be returned and at that time the accounting with respect to the return 
of the shares will be completed. TeamStaff recognized an expense in the amount 
of $190,000 in the second fiscal quarter of 2005, representing a partial 
write-down of the original principal amount of the loan. 
 
As a commercial enterprise and employer and with respect to its 
employment-related businesses in particular, 
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TeamStaff is engaged in litigation from time to time during the ordinary course 
of business in connection with employment-relations issues, workers' 
compensation and other matters. Generally, TeamStaff is entitled to 
indemnification or repayment from its former PEO clients for claims brought by 
worksite employees related to their employment. However, there can be no 
assurance that the client employer will have funds or insurance in amounts to 
cover any damages or awards, and as co-employer, TeamStaff may be subject to 
liability. Additionally, in connection with its medical staffing business, 
TeamStaff is exposed to potential liability for the acts, errors or omissions of 
its temporary medical employees. The professional liability insurance policy 
provides up to $5,000,000 aggregate coverage with a $2,000,000 per occurrence 
limit. Although TeamStaff believes the liability insurance is reasonable under 
the circumstances to protect it from liability for such claims, there can be no 
assurance that such insurance will be adequate to cover all potential claims. 
 
TeamStaff is engaged in no other litigation, the effect of which would be 
anticipated to have a material adverse impact on TeamStaff's financial condition 
or results of operations. 
 
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 
 
On July 22, 1999, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase up to 3% of 
the outstanding shares of TeamStaff's common stock. On November 19, 2002, the 
Board of Directors authorized an additional repurchase of up to $1.0 million in 
common stock. Since inception we have repurchased 581,470 shares at an average 
cost of $4.18 per share for a total cost of $2.4 million. No shares were 
repurchased during the quarter ended December 31, 2005. As of December 31, 2005, 
TeamStaff retired 574,470 of the 581,470 shares of treasury stock. We do not 
currently have any plans to repurchase our securities. 
 



The Registrant previously reported the sale of equity securities on Form 8-K 
dated November 12, 2004. See the description contained in the Form 8-K or also 
in the notes to financial statements above which are incorporated by reference 
to this Item 2. 
 
In connection with the acquisition of RS Staffing Services described above, 
TeamStaff issued to the shareholders of RS Staffing Services an aggregate of 
1,206,896 shares of its Common Stock. The shares are restricted securities and 
may be sold only pursuant to Rule 144. Teamstaff relied upon the exemption from 
registration under the Securities Act of 1993 provided by Section 4(2) of the 
Securities Act in issuing the shares. 
 
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES 
 
None. 
 
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 
 
None. TeamStaff has scheduled its Annual Meeting of Shareholders for April 27, 
2006. 
 
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION 
 
None. 
 
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS 
 
     (a)  Exhibits 
 
     10.1 Form of Lease dated as of November 18, 2005 between TeamStaff, Inc. 
          and One Peachtree Pointe Associates, LLC 
 
     31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
          2002 
 
     31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
          2002 
 
     32.1 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
          2002 
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                                   SIGNATURES 
                                   ---------- 
 
         Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on 
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 
 
                                          TEAMSTAFF, INC. 
 
                                          /s/T. Kent Smith 
                                          ---------------- 
                                          T. Kent Smith 
                                          President and Chief Executive Officer 
 
                                          /s/ Rick Filippelli 
                                          Rick Filippelli 
                                          --------------- 
                                          Vice  President,  Finance  and Chief 
                                          Financial Officer 
 
Dated: February 14, 2006 
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                                 LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
                                     BETWEEN 
 
 
                      ONE PEACHTREE POINTE ASSOCIATES, LLC 
 
                                   AS LANDLORD 
 
 
 
 
 
                                       AND 
 
 
 
 
 
                                 TEAMSTAFF, INC. 
 
                                    AS TENANT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                         ------------------------------ 
                                  DATE OF LEASE 
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         THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ("Lease") is made and entered into as of the Date 
of Lease on the cover page, by and between: 
 
                  ONE PEACHTREE POINTE ASSOCIATES, LLC, a Georgia limited 
                  liability company (as "Landlord") 
 
                                       and 
 
                  TeamStaff, Inc., a New Jersey corporation (as "Tenant") 
 
         IN CONSIDERATION of the rents, covenants and agreements herein provided 
to be performed by Landlord and Tenant, Landlord hereby leases and demises to 
Tenant, and Tenant hereby rents from Landlord, that certain office premises as 
hereinafter defined (the "Premises") for the period of time (the "Lease Term") 
and upon the covenants, terms and conditions hereinafter stated: 
 
                                    ARTICLE I 
                 CERTAIN DEFINITIONS AND BASIC LEASE INFORMATION 
 



Section 1.1    In addition to other definitions provided in this Lease, for the 
purposes of this Lease the following initially capitalized terms shall have the 
meaning set forth below. 
 
A.       Premises: 2,998 of the third (3rd) floor of the Building, presently 
         known as Suite No. 340. Said space is identified by diagonal lines or 
         shaded area on the floor plans attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 
 
B.       Building:  The building  owned or being  constructed  by Landlord on a 
         portion of the Land, said building being known as 1545 Peachtree 
         Street, NE, Atlanta, Georgia 30309. 
 
C.       Land: The land described in Exhibit "B", attached hereto. 
 
D.       Parking Facilities: The parking structure which is adjacent to or near 
         the Building and any other parking structure or surface parking which 
         Landlord may make available to Tenant. 
 
E.       Project: The Land and all improvements thereon, including the Building, 
         the Parking Facilities, and Common Areas. 
 
F.       Lease Term: Five (5) years and five (5) months, beginning on the 
         Commencement Date (as defined in Section 3.1 below) and ending five (5) 
         years and five (5) months after the Commencement Date. The expiration 
         date shall occur on the last day of the month of the five (5) year and 
         five (5) month anniversary date of the Commencement Date (the 
         "Expiration Date," unless this Lease is sooner terminated or extended 
         as provided herein). 
 
G.       Commencement Date: Defined in Section 3.1. 
 
H.       Net Rentable Area of Premises: 2,998 square feet. This is based on 
         approximately 2,562 useable square feet within the Premises times a 
         factor of 1.17. The parties agree that the Net Rentable Area shall be 
         as stated herein unless the Premises is enlarged or reduced. 
 
I.       Net Rentable Area of the Building:  158,248 square feet, unless the 
         size of the Building is subsequently enlarged or reduced. 
 
J.       Tenant's Share: 1.89%, representing a fraction, the numerator of which 
         is the Net Rentable Area of the Premises and the denominator of which 
         is the Net Rentable Area of the Building, subject to future adjustment 
         pursuant to the provisions of Section 5.4 hereof. 
 
K.       Rent: The Base Rent and the Additional Rent. 
 
         (i) Base Rent: The Base Rent for the first five (5) months following 
         the Commencement Date shall be abated in full. Commencing on the first 
         (1st) day of the sixth (6th) month following the Commencement Date, and 
         ending on the last day of the twelfth (12th) month following the 
         Commencement Date, the Base Rent shall be $6,245.83 per month for said 
         six (6) month period ($25.00 per square foot on a per annum basis of 
         Net Rentable Area of the Premises, which includes Tenant's share of 
         Operating Costs, as defined below) and is payable in monthly 
         installments. The 
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         Base Rent shall be increased effective on the first day of the 
         thirteenth (13th) month of the Term, and on each subsequent 
         anniversary of the Lease Year (as defined in Section 4.3) thereof, and 
         shall be payable in monthly installments, in accordance with the 
         following schedule: 
 
         Lease Year          Annual Base Rent       Monthly Base Rent Payment 
         ----------          ----------------       ------------------------- 
         Months 1-5             $0.00                      $0.00 
         Months 6-12            $ N/A                      $6,245.83 
         Months 13-24           $77,198.40                 $6,433.20 
         Months 25-36           $79,514.40                 $6,626.20 
         Months 37-48           $81,899.88                 $6,824.99 



         Months 49-60           $84,356.88                 $7,029.74 
         Months 61-65           $86,887.56                 $7,240.63 
 
         (ii) Additional Rent: All other sums due and payable by Tenant under 
this Lease, including, but not limited to, Tenant's Share of the Operating Costs 
(as such term is defined in Article V hereof), over and above the Base Year 
Operating Cost, as defined below. Landlord's Operating Cost Estimate, as defined 
in Article V hereof, for the 2005 calendar year is $9.50 per Net Rentable Area 
of Premises. Upon Landlord's reconciliation of the 2005 actual Operating Costs, 
Tenant shall be provided with the actual base year amount ("Base Year Operating 
Cost"). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Operating Costs for the first five (5) 
months following the Commencement Date shall be abated in full. Further, 
Operating Costs are included in the Base Rent for months six (6) through twelve 
(12) of the Term and Base Year Operating Costs are included in the Base Rent for 
the entire Term thereafter, as further described in Article V. 
 
L.       Security Deposit: Seven Thousand Two Hundred Forty and 63/100 Dollars 
         ($7,240.63). 
 
M.       Landlord's Address for Notices:   One Peachtree Pointe Associates, LLC 
                                           One Peachtree Pointe 
                                           1545 Peachtree Street, NE, Suite 250 
                                           Atlanta, Georgia 30309 
 
         with a copy to:                   Dewberry Capital Corporation 
                                           One Peachtree Pointe 
                                           1545 Peachtree Street, NE. Suite 250 
                                           Atlanta, Georgia 30309 
                                           Attn: Douglas G. Dewberry, II 
 
M.       Landlord's Address for Payment:   One Peachtree Pointe Associates, LLC 
                                           1545 Peachtree Street, Suite 250 
                                           Atlanta, Georgia 30309 
 
N.       Tenant's Address for Notice:      T. Kent Smith, President 
                                           TeamStaff, Inc. 
                                           1545 Peachtree Street, Suite 340 
                                           Atlanta, Georgia  30309 
 
         with a copy to:                   James D. Houston, General Counsel 
                                           TeamStaff, Inc. 
                                           18167 US Hwy 19 North, Suite 400 
                                           Clearwater, Florida 33764 
 
O.       Common Areas: The Common Areas are those certain areas and facilities 
of the Building and the Parking Facilities and those certain improvements to the 
Land which are from time to time made available by the Landlord for the common 
use of tenants of the Building and their employees, clients, customers, 
licensees and invitees or for use by the public. Such facilities and 
improvements include the entrance lobbies, elevator lobbies, outside sitting 
areas, vending areas, sidewalks, walkways, tunnels, pedestrian ways, driveways, 
and the following areas unless they are reserved exclusively to a particular 
tenant or occupant: corridors and bathrooms. 
 
Section 1.2 The exhibits enumerated in this section (if used) and attached to 
this Lease are incorporated in this Lease by this reference and are to be 
construed as a part of this Lease. 
 
         (a) Exhibit "A" -      Premises 
             ----------- 
         (b) Exhibit "B" -      Legal Description 
             ----------- 
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         (c) Exhibit "C" -      Work Letter 
             ----------- 
         (d) Exhibit "D" -      Rules and Regulations 
             ----------- 
         (e) Exhibit "E" -      Special Stipulations 
             ----------- 
         (f) Exhibit "F" -      Form of Lease Guaranty 
             ----------- 
 
                                    ARTICLE 2 



                          PREMISES AND QUIET ENJOYMENT 
 
Section 2.1 Landlord has leased the Premises to Tenant, and Tenant accepted same 
from Landlord, for the Lease Term. During the Lease Term, Tenant shall have the 
right to use the Common Areas, as designated by Landlord from time to time, in 
common with others and in accordance with the rules and regulations, attached 
hereto as Exhibit "D" as the same may be amended ("Rules and Regulations"). 
 
Section 2.2 Provided that Tenant fully and timely performs all the terms of this 
Lease on Tenant's part to be performed, including payment by Tenant of all Rent, 
Tenant shall have, hold and enjoy the Premises during the Lease Term without 
hindrance or disturbance from or by Landlord; subject, however, to the terms, 
conditions and provisions of this Lease and any ground lessee, mortgage or deed 
to secure debt on the Project. 
 
Section 2.3 Landlord, or an affiliate, may construct or acquire an additional 
building or buildings in the vicinity of the Premises and operate all buildings 
as a complex of office buildings (the "Office Park"). In such case, Landlord 
shall have the right, but not the obligation, to obtain operating and 
maintenance services for the Office Park and allocate the costs thereof among 
the Buildings in the Office Park on any reasonable basis. Landlord may also 
aggregate Operating Costs (as defined in Section 5.2 hereof) for the Office Park 
and in such case Tenant's Share shall be determined by dividing the Net Rentable 
Area of the Premises by the net rentable area of all buildings within the Office 
Park, provided, however, that Tenant's Share of such aggregated costs will not 
exceed the Tenant's Share of Operating Costs attributable to the Building. 
Landlord discloses that Landlord or an affiliate of Landlord intends to 
construct another office building on a parcel of land located immediately North 
of the Land on which the Building sits. In such event the construction of the 
second building may cause noise, dust and other inconveniences to the tenants of 
the Building, but Landlord will use reasonable means to minimize such 
inconveniences, and reasonably respond to Tenant's requests should Tenant's 
quiet use and enjoyment of the Premises be interrupted for any reason relative 
to the construction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord shall not aggregate 
Operating Costs unless and until (a) certificates of occupancy are issued for 
any additional building or buildings within the Office Park; and (b) such 
aggregation is subject to the provisions of Section 5.3 hereof. 
 
                                    ARTICLE 3 
                         LEASE TERM; COMMENCEMENT DATE; 
                       DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE OF PREMISES 
 
Section 3.1 The commencement date shall be the earlier of (a) the date the 
Premises are deemed available for occupancy pursuant to Section 3.2 hereof or 
(b) the date Tenant, or anyone claiming by, through or under Tenant, occupies 
any portion of the Premises for the purpose of the conduct of Tenant's (or such 
other person's) business therein ("Commencement Date"). 
 
Section 3.2 Unless otherwise provided in this Lease, the Premises shall be 
deemed available for occupancy as soon as the following conditions have been 
met: (a) the Landlord's Work (as defined in Exhibit "C" attached hereto) has 
been substantially completed as reasonably determined by Landlord's architect or 
space planner in accordance with generally accepted building standards; and (b) 
either a certificate or certificates of occupancy (temporary or final) or other 
certificate permitting the lawful occupancy of the Premises has been issued for 
the Premises by the appropriate governmental authority; and (c) at least five 
(5) business days' notice of the occurrence or anticipated occurrence of the 
conditions in clauses (a) and (b) above has been given to Tenant. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if there is a delay in the availability for 
occupancy of the Premises due to Tenant Delay (as defined in Exhibit "C" hereof) 
then the Premises shall be deemed available for occupancy on the date on which 
the Premises would have been available for occupancy but for such Tenant Delay, 
even though a certificate of occupancy or other certificate permitting the 
lawful occupancy of the Premises has not been issued or the Leasehold 
Improvements have not been commenced or completed. 
 
Section 3.3 The Net Rentable Area of the Premises and the Building are as stated 
in Article I. The Net Rentable Area of the Premises shall be deemed to be 1.17 
times the floor or useable area within the Premises. If, due to changes in the 
Building or the Premises after the Commencement Date, the areas vary from that 
stated in Article I, Landlord may notify Tenant of the changed area and Base 
Rent and Tenant's 
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Share shall be recomputed based upon the actual Net Rentable Area of the 
Premises as so determined. The information in such notice shall be conclusive 
and binding on Tenant as to all matters set forth therein, unless within ten 
(10) days following delivery of such notice, Tenant contests any of the matters 
contained therein by notifying Landlord in writing of Tenant's objections and 
the reasons therefor. 
 
Section 3.4 Tenant may not occupy the Premises prior to the Commencement Date 
without Landlord's express written consent and any entry by Tenant shall be at 
Tenant's sole cost and risk and subject to all of the terms of this Lease; 
provided however, that no such early entry shall change the Commencement Date or 
the Expiration Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall be entitled to 
enter the Premises upon prior verbal approval by Landlord. 
 
Section 3.5 Occupancy of the Premises or any portion thereof by Tenant or anyone 
claiming through or under Tenant for the conduct of Tenant's, or such other 
person's business therein shall be conclusive evidence that Tenant and all 
parties claiming through or under Tenant (a) have accepted the Premises as 
suitable for the purposes for which the Premises are leased hereunder, and (b) 
have waived any defects in the Premises, except for punchlist items identified 
to Landlord within thirty (30) days following the Commencement Date; provided 
however, that, if Landlord's Work has been constructed and installed by to 
prepare the Premises for Tenant's occupancy, Tenant's acceptance of the Premises 
as set forth above, shall occur upon Landlord's substantial completion of 
Landlord's Work, in the Premises in accordance with the terms of Exhibit "C" 
hereof. Landlord shall have no liability, except for the negligence or willful 
misconduct of Landlord, its agents, employees, representatives or contractors to 
Tenant or any of Tenant's agents, employees, licensees, servants or invitees for 
any injury or damage to any person or property due to the condition or design 
of, or any defect in, the Premises or the Project, including any electrical, 
plumbing or mechanical systems and equipment of the Premises or the Project and 
the condition of or any defect in the Land; and Tenant, for itself and its 
agents, employees, licensees, servants and invitees, expressly assumes all risks 
of injury or damage to person or property, either proximate or remote, resulting 
from the condition of the Premises or the Project, and agrees to rely on 
insurance to cover such risks. 
 
                                    ARTICLE 4 
                                      RENT 
 
Section 4.1 Tenant shall pay to Landlord, without notice, demand, offset or 
deduction, except as expressly provided herein, in lawful money of the United 
States of America, at Landlord's Address for Payment, or at such other place as 
Landlord shall designate in writing from time to time: (a) the Base Rent and the 
Additional Rent in equal monthly installments, in advance, on the first day of 
each calendar month during the Lease Term, except that the first monthly 
installment of Base Rent and Additional Rent shall be paid in advance on the 
date of Tenant's execution of this Lease and applied to the first installments 
of Base Rent and such Additional Rent coming due under this Lease. If either the 
Commencement Date or the Expiration Date falls on a date other than the first 
day of a calendar month, the Rent due for such fractional month shall be 
prorated on a per diem basis between Landlord and Tenant so as to charge Tenant 
only for the portion of such fractional month falling within the Lease Term. 
 
Section 4.2 If any Rent is not paid to and received by Landlord within five (5) 
days after the date it is due, and such late payment occurs more than once in 
any twelve (12) month period, Tenant shall pay to Landlord a late charge equal 
to four (4%) percent of the amount of the late payment or $100.00, whichever is 
more, in order to cover the agreed administrative expense and inconvenience to 
Landlord of processing and dealing with late payments. This late payment shall 
apply to the second and all subsequent late payments in any twelve (12) month 
period. In addition all delinquent payments of Rent shall bear interest until 
paid at a rate per annum (the "Interest Rate") equal to the greater of: (i) 
twelve percent (12%), (ii) two percent (2%) above the prime rate of interest 
from time to time publicly announced by SunTrust Bank, Atlanta, Georgia, or any 
successor thereof, provided that if either Section 4.2(i) or (ii) or both is at 
any time greater than the maximum rate permitted under applicable law, the 
Interest Rate shall be the maximum rate permitted under applicable law. 
 
Section 4.3 A "Lease Year" shall mean a 12 month period commencing on first day 
of the month in which the Commencement Date occurs and any anniversary thereof 
and running for a period of one year, except that: (a) if the Commencement Date 
does not occur on the first day of a month, then the first Lease Year shall not 
include the period from the first day of the month in which the Commencement 
Date occurs until the Commencement Date, and (b) the final Lease Year shall end 
on the Expiration Date. If the first or last Lease Year is less than twelve (12) 
months, all amounts shall be prorated based upon a 365-day year. 
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                                    ARTICLE 5 
                                 OPERATING COSTS 
 
 
Section 5. 1 Tenant shall pay to Landlord, as Additional Rent, for each year or 
fractional year of the Lease Term, Tenant's share of the Operating Costs (as 
defined in Section 5.2 hereof)("Tenant's Operating Cost Payment"), which payment 
shall be calculated and paid as follows: 
 
A. Commencing as of the first day of the Commencement Date, and as of the first 
day of January of each year during the Lease Term thereafter, (or as soon after 
as is practicable), Landlord shall furnish Tenant with a statement ("Landlord's 
Operating Cost Estimate") setting forth Landlord's reasonable estimate of 
Operating Costs for the forthcoming year and Tenant's Operating Cost Payment. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord shall only furnish Tenant with the 
Landlord's Operating Cost Estimate in the event that said statement reflects an 
increase in the Tenant's Operating Cost Payment from the preceding calendar 
year. Except during the first twelve (12) months of the Term (where Operating 
Costs are abated or included in the Base Rent), on the first day of each 
calendar month during such year, Tenant shall pay to Landlord one-twelfth 
(1/12th) of Tenant's Operating Cost Payment over and above the Base Year 
Operating Cost, in addition to Tenant's share of Operating Cost already included 
in the Base Rent pursuant to Section 1.1(K) of the Lease, based on Landlord's 
Operating Cost Estimate. If for any reason Landlord has not provided Tenant with 
Landlord's Operating Cost Estimate on the first day of January of any year 
during the Lease Term, then (a) until the first day of the calendar month 
following the month in which Tenant is given Landlord's Operating Cost Estimate, 
Tenant shall continue to pay to Landlord on the first day of each calendar month 
the sum, payable by Tenant under this Section 5.1 for the month of December of 
the preceding year and, (b) promptly after Landlord's Operating Cost Estimate is 
furnished to Tenant, if required as set forth above, Landlord shall give notice 
to Tenant if the installments of Tenant's Operating Cost Payments previously 
made for such year were greater than the installments of Tenant's Operating 
Costs Payments to be made for such year in accordance with Landlord's Operating 
Cost Estimate, and (a) if there shall be a deficiency, Tenant shall pay the 
amount thereof to Landlord within ten (10) days after the delivery of Landlord's 
Operating Cost Estimate, and (ii) on the first day of the calendar month 
following the month in which Landlord's Operating Cost Estimate is given to 
Tenant and on the first day of each calendar month throughout the remainder of 
such year and continuing until Landlord's Operating Cost Estimate for the 
following year is received, Tenant shall pay to Landlord an amount equal to 
one-twelfth (1/12th) of Tenant's Operating Cost Payment. The foregoing 
notwithstanding, Landlord shall have the right from time to time during any year 
(but no more frequently than twice during any calendar year) to notify Tenant in 
writing of any change in Landlord's Operating Cost Estimate, in which event 
Tenant's Operating Cost Payment, as previously estimated, shall be adjusted to 
reflect the amount shown in such notice and shall be effective, and due from 
Tenant, on the first day of the month following Landlord's giving of such 
notice. 
 
B. In the event that the actual Operating Costs exceed Tenant's Operating Cost 
Payments for the preceding calendar year, commencing on the first day of March 
of the year 2007, and on the first day of March of each year during the Lease 
Term thereafter (or as soon after as is practicable), Landlord shall furnish 
Tenant with a statement of the actual Operating Costs, and Tenant's Operating 
Cost Payments for the preceding calendar year. Within thirty (30) days after 
Landlord's giving of such statement, Tenant shall make a lump sum payment to 
Landlord in the amount, if any, by which Tenant's Operating Costs Payment for 
such preceding year as shown on such Landlord's statement exceeds the aggregate 
of the monthly installments of Tenant's Operating Costs Payment actually paid 
during such preceding year. 
 
C. If the Lease Term ends on a date other than the last day of December, the 
actual Operating Costs for the year in which the Expiration Date occurs, shall 
be prorated so that Tenant shall pay that portion of Tenant's Operating Cost 
Payment for such year represented by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be 
the number of days during such fractional year falling within the Lease Term, 
and the denominator of which is 365 (or 366, in the case of a leap year). The 
provisions of this Section 5.1 shall survive the Expiration Date or any sooner 
termination provided for in this Lease. 
 
Section 5.2. Operating Costs: "Operating Costs," as that term is used herein, 



shall consist of all reasonable, actual expenses and costs (but excluding 
specific charges separately billed or chargeable to specific tenants) of every 
kind and nature which Landlord shall pay or incur because of or in connection 
with the ownership, maintenance, operation, management and repair of the 
Project, determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
consistently applied. 
 
     A. Operating Costs shall include, but not be limited, to the following: 
 
         (a) Wages and salaries of personnel or entities (exclusive of 
Landlord's executive personnel but including the building manager and all on 
site personnel whether full time or part time) and all costs and fees of 
personnel and entities engaged in the operation, repair, maintenance, or 
security of the Project, and payroll taxes, insurance, and benefits relating to 
employees working on or for the Project, prorated to the extent they work at the 
Project. 
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         (b) The costs of all inventory, supplies, repair parts, furniture and 
materials (including work clothes and uniforms) used or reasonably needed for 
the operation, repair and maintenance of the Project. 
 
         (c) The cost of performance by Landlord's personnel, or of service 
contractors under service or other agreements for, maintenance, janitorial 
services, security, access control, alarm service, window cleaning, elevator 
maintenance and landscaping for the Project, landscaping for any land controlled 
by Landlord in the immediate vicinity of the Project, and landscaping for any 
land within adjacent public rights-of-way which Landlord performs, but as to any 
service contractors owned by or affiliated with Landlord, only to the extent 
such fees do not exceed costs available from unaffiliated third-party 
contractors. 
 
         (d) All utilities for the Project, including water, sewer, power, 
electricity, gas, fuel, lighting, telephone, cable and all other utilities; and 
all costs of providing air conditioning, heating and ventilation for the 
Building. 
 
         (e) The cost of all insurance carried on or related to the Project by 
or for Landlord, including property, casualty and liability insurance applicable 
to any part of the Project and to Landlord's equipment, fixtures and personal 
property used in connection therewith, including rent loss or business 
interruption insurance providing indemnity against such perils as are commonly 
insured against by prudent landlords, and such other insurance as may be 
required by any ground lessor or mortgagee of Landlord or which Landlord 
reasonably considers necessary in the operation of the Project, together with 
all appraisal and consultants' fees in connection with such insurance. 
 
         (f) "Taxes" which for purposes of this Lease shall mean (i) all 
property taxes, assessments, and other governmental charges, applicable to or 
assessed against the Project or any portion thereof, or applicable to or 
assessed against Landlord's personal property used in connection therewith, 
whether federal, state, county, or municipal and whether assessed by taxing 
districts or authorities presently taxing the Project or the operation thereof 
or by other taxing authorities subsequently created, or otherwise, and any other 
taxes and assessments attributable to or assessed against all or any part of the 
Project or its operation, and (ii) any reasonable expenses, including fees and 
disbursements of attorneys, tax consultants, arbitrators, appraisers, experts 
and other witnesses, incurred by Landlord in contesting any taxes or the 
assessed valuation of all or any part of the Project. If at any time during the 
Lease Term there shall be levied, assessed, or imposed on Landlord or all or any 
part of the Project by any governmental entity any general or special ad valorem 
or other charge or tax directly upon rents received under leases, or if any fee, 
tax, assessment, or other charge is imposed which is measured by or based, in 
whole or in part, upon such rents, or if any charge or tax is made based 
directly or indirectly upon the transactions represented by leases or the 
occupancy or use of the Project or any portion thereof, such taxes, fees, 
assessments or other charges shall be deemed to be Taxes. Nevertheless, the 
following shall not be included within the Taxes to be reimbursed by Tenant as 
part of the Operating Costs: (i) franchise, corporation, income or net profits 
tax, unless substituted for real estate taxes or imposed as additional charges 
in connection with the ownership of the Project, which may be assessed against 
Landlord or the Project or both, (ii) transfer taxes assessed against Landlord 
or the Project or both, (iii) penalties or interest on any late payments of 



Landlord and (iv) personal property taxes of Tenant or other tenants in the 
Project. 
 
         (g) Legal and accounting costs incurred by Landlord or paid by Landlord 
to third parties (exclusive of legal fees with respect to disputes with 
individual tenants, negotiations of tenant leases, or with respect to the 
ownership rather than the operation of the Project), appraisal fees, consulting 
fees, all other professional fees and disbursements and all association dues. 
 
         (h) The cost of upkeep, repairs and maintenance of the Project as a 
first class office building (excluding repairs and general maintenance paid or 
reimbursed by proceeds of insurance or by Tenant, other tenants of the Project 
or other third parties). 
 
         (i) Amortization of the cost of improvements or equipment which are 
capital in nature and which are intended to reduce or avoid increases in 
Operating Costs of the Project, or in the reasonable estimation of Landlord, 
enhance the Project for the general benefit of tenants or occupants thereof, or 
are required by any governmental authority subsequent to the date of this Lease. 
All such costs, including actual interest, shall be amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the useful life of the capital investment, as reasonably determined 
by Landlord. 
 
         (j) The Project management office rent or rental value. 
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         (k) Management fees and all items reimbursable to the Project manager, 
if any, pursuant to any management contract for the Project, in no event, 
however, to exceed five (5%) percent of gross receipts. 
 
 
         B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Operating Costs shall not include: 
 
         (a)   Reserves or expenses for any capital replacements or 
improvements; except as described in Paragraph 5.2 above; 
 
         (b)   Costs of special services rendered to individual tenants for 
which a special charge is made. 
 
         (c)   Interest and principal payments on loans or indebtedness secured 
by the Building; 
 
         (d)   Cost of improvements for other tenants of the Building; 
 
         (e)   Legal fees, brokerage commissions, advertising costs, or other 
related expenses incurred by Landlord in connection with the leasing of space to 
individual tenants in the Building or in procuring tenants for the Building; 
 
         (f)   Repairs, alterations, additions, improvements, or replacements 
made to rectify or correct any defect in the original design, materials or 
workmanship of the Building or common areas; 
 
         (g)   Damage and repairs attributable to fire or other casualty; 
 
         (h)   Damage and repairs necessitated by the gross negligence or 
willful misconduct of Landlord, or its employees, contractors or agents; 
 
         (i)   Salaries, wages, bonuses, or payments of any other kind to 
officers and executives of Landlord and to any employees or building staff above 
the position of Building Manager to the extend that said personnel do not 
perform direct services in connection with the management, operation, repair of 
maintenance of the Building; 
 
         (j)   Landlord's general overhead expenses not related to the Building 
including, but not limited to, the cost of Landlord's office space located in 
the Building; 
 
         (k)   Legal fees, accountant's fees and other expenses incurred in 
connection with disputes with tenants or other occupants of the Building or 
associated with the enforcement of the terms of any leases with tenants or the 
defense of Landlord's title to or interest in the Building or any part thereof; 
 
         (l)   Costs (including permit, license and inspection fees) incurred in 



renovation or otherwise improving, decorating or painting, or altering space for 
individual tenants or vacant space in the Building; 
 
         (m)   Costs  incurred due to a violation by Landlord or any other 
tenant of the Building of the terms and conditions of a lease; 
 
         (n)   Any other expense which, under generally accepted accounting 
principles, would not be considered a reasonable maintenance or operating 
expense related to the Building; 
 
         (o)   Expenses for repair, replacements and general maintenance paid by 
the proceeds of insurance or by Tenant or third parties, or through 
condemnations awards; 
 
         (p)   Any cost or expense for which Landlord is entitled to be 
separately reimbursed or for which Landlord received a credit from any other 
party; and 
 
         (q)   Any excess operating expenses incurred with respect to the 
parking facilities for any special tenant requirements (e.g. night parking for a 
restaurant in the Building) or for special services required for non-tenant 
users of the parking facility. 
 
Section 5.3 If the Building is not fully occupied (meaning that less than ninety 
five (95%) percent of the Net Rentable Area of the Building is occupied by 
tenants paying rent, inclusive of management office) during any full or 
fractional year of the Lease Term, the actual variable components (e.g. 
electrical, janitorial) of 
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Operating Costs shall be adjusted for such year or period to an amount which 
Landlord estimates would have been incurred in Landlord's reasonable judgment 
had the Building been so occupied, and the adjusted amount will be used to 
determine Tenant's Operating Cost Payment. This adjustment will also be 
applicable to any Operating Cost aggregation relative to the Office Park as set 
forth in Section 2.3. 
 
Section 5.4 If during the Lease Term any change occurs in either the number of 
square feet of the Net Rentable Area of the Premises or of the Net Rentable Area 
of the Building, Tenant's Share of Operating Costs (as defined in Section 1.J. 
hereof) shall be adjusted, effective as of the date of any such change. Landlord 
shall promptly notify Tenant in writing of such change and the reason therefor. 
Any changes made pursuant to this Section 5.4 shall not alter the computation of 
Operating Costs as provided in this Article 5, but, on and after the date of any 
such change, Tenant's Operating Costs Payment pursuant to Section 5. 1 A. shall 
be computed upon Tenant's Share thereof, as adjusted. If such estimated payments 
of Tenant's Share are so adjusted during a year, a reconciliation payment for 
Tenant's Operating Cost Payments pursuant to this Article 5 for the calendar 
year in which such change occurs shall be computed pursuant to the method set 
forth in Section 5. 1 B, such computation to take into account the daily 
weighted average of Tenant's Share during such year. 
 
                                    ARTICLE 6 
                                     PARKING 
 
Section 6.1 Landlord hereby grants to Tenant a license to use in common with 
other tenants and with the public the Parking Facilities. Tenant shall be 
entitled and obligated to purchase no less than two (2) parking spaces in the 
Parking Facilities for each 1,000 square feet of useable area of the Premises 
leased by Tenant (any fraction to be rounded down), said spaces of which shall 
be either unassigned or reserved spaces. Landlord may, but shall not be 
obligated to, offer Tenant any additional parking spaces, at additional fees to 
be determined by Landlord. If Tenant fails to observe the Rules and Regulations 
with respect to the Parking Facilities, then Landlord, at its option, shall have 
the right to treat such failure as a default under this Lease. Furthermore, if 
any of Tenant's employees, licensees or invitees or other person using the 
Parking Facilities with the authorization of Tenant violates the Rules and 
Regulations established from time to time by Landlord relative to the use of the 
Parking Facilities, or parks a vehicle so as to block another parking space, or 
parks in reserved or handicapped spaces without authorization, or damages the 
Parking Facilities or leaves trash or debris in the Parking Facilities and 
repeats such misconduct after oral or written warning (which may be by warning 



notice placed on a windshield) then Landlord may tow or otherwise remove the 
vehicle of the offender and terminate such offender's right to utilize the 
Parking Facilities. 
 
Section 6.2 The fees for parking in unassigned spaces in the Parking facilities 
shall be determined by Landlord based on Landlord's estimate of the market price 
for covered, secured parking in the vicinity, and shall be paid monthly. Such 
fees may vary from time to time. Landlord may also make reserved parking spaces 
available from time to time subject to availability and at an increased fee as 
determined by Landlord. As of the Date of Lease, the monetary parking fee is 
$75.00 for unassigned parking spaces and $120.00 for reserved spaces. 
 
Section 6.3 If all or any portion of the Parking Facilities shall be damaged or 
rendered unusable by fire or other casualty or any taking pursuant to eminent 
domain proceeding (or deed in lieu thereof), and as a result thereof Landlord or 
the operator of the Parking Facilities is unable to make available to Tenant the 
parking provided for herein, then the number of cars which Tenant shall be 
entitled to park hereunder shall be proportionately reduced so that the number 
of cars which Tenant may park in the Parking Facilities after the casualty or 
condemnation in question shall bear the same ratio to the total number of cars 
which can be parked in the Parking Facilities at such time as the number of cars 
Tenant had the right to park in the Parking Facilities prior to such casualty or 
condemnation bore to the aggregate number of cars which could be parked therein 
at that time. 
 
6.4 Section 6.4 Tenant and all of its employees, principals, licensees and 
invitees shall use the Parking Facilities at their sole risk, and Landlord 
assumes no responsibility for loss or damage to vehicles using the Parking 
Facilities. 
 
                                    ARTICLE 7 
                                    SERVICES 
 
Section 7.1 A. During the Lease Term, Landlord shall furnish Tenant with the 
following services, subject to the Rules and Regulations: (a) hot and cold water 
in building standard bathrooms and chilled water in building standard drinking 
fountains; (b) electrical power sufficient for lighting the Premises and for the 
operation therein of typewriters, voice writers, calculating machines, word 
processing equipment, copying 
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machines, personal computers, and similar items of business equipment which 
consume, in the aggregate, less than five (5) watts per square foot of Net 
Rentable Area of the Premises and require a voltage of 120 volts single phase or 
less, (c) heating, ventilating or air-conditioning, as appropriate, during 
Business Hours (as defined in Section 7.1.D. herein) at such temperatures and in 
such amounts as customarily and seasonally provided to tenants occupying 
comparable space in office buildings in the Atlanta, Georgia suburban area; (d) 
electric lighting for the Common Areas of the Project; (c) passenger elevator 
service (if the Premises requires elevator service), in common with others, for 
access to and from the Premises twenty four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days 
per week; provided, however, that Landlord shall have the right to limit the 
number of (but not cease to operate all) elevators to be operated after Business 
Hours and on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays; (f) janitorial cleaning services 
to standards established by Landlord, but excluding cleaning of dishes and 
cooking implements; (g) facilities for Tenant's loading, unloading, delivery and 
pick-up activities, including access thereto during Business Hours, subject such 
limitations as Landlord may impose; and (h) replacement, as necessary, of all 
building standard lamps and ballasts in building standard light fixtures within 
the Premises. All services referred to in this Section 7.1 A. shall be provided 
by Landlord and paid for by Tenant as part of Tenant's Operating Costs Payment. 
 
B. If Tenant requires air-conditioning, heating or other services, including 
cleaning services, routinely supplied by Landlord for hours or days in addition 
to the hours and days specified in Section 7.1 A., Landlord shall make 
reasonable efforts to provide such additional service after reasonable prior 
written request therefor from Tenant, and Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for 
the cost of such additional service; provided however, that, if any other 
tenants in the Building served by the equipment providing such additional 
service to the Premises request that Landlord concurrently provide such service 
to such other tenants, the cost of Landlord's providing such additional and 
concurrent service shall be prorated among all of the tenants requesting such 



service. Landlord shall have no obligation to provide any additional service to 
Tenant at any time Tenant is in default under this Lease beyond any applicable 
grace, notice or cure period provided with respect thereto by the terms hereof, 
unless Tenant pays to Landlord, in advance, the cost of such additional service. 
If any machinery or equipment which generates abnormal heat or otherwise creates 
unusual demands on the air-conditioning or heating system serving the Premises 
is used in the Premises and if Tenant has not, within five (5) days after demand 
from Landlord, taken such steps, at Tenant's expense, as shall be necessary to 
cease such adverse affect on the air-conditioning or heating system, Landlord 
shall have the right to install supplemental air-conditioning or heating units 
in the Premises, and the full cost of such supplemental units (including the 
cost of acquisition, installation, operation, use and maintenance thereof) shall 
be paid by Tenant to Landlord in advance or on demand. 
 
C. If Tenant's requirements for or consumption of electricity exceed the 
capacities specified in clause (b) of Section 7.1 A. hereof, Landlord shall, at 
Tenant's sole cost and expense, make reasonable efforts to supply such service 
through the then-existing feeders and risers serving the Building and the 
Premises and shall bill Tenant periodically for the actual cost incurred by 
Landlord in providing such additional service and Tenant shall pay each such 
bill with the installment of Rent next due. The degree of such additional 
consumption and potential consumption by Tenant shall be determined at 
Landlord's election, by either or both (a) a survey of standard or average 
tenant usage of electricity in the Building performed by a reputable consultant 
selected by Landlord and paid for by Tenant, and (b) a separate meter in the 
Premises to be installed, maintained, and read by Landlord, all at Tenant's sole 
cost and expense. Tenant shall not install any electrical equipment requiring 
special wiring unless approved in advance by Landlord. At no time shall use of 
electricity in the Premises exceed the capacity of existing feeders and risers 
to or wiring in the Premises. Any risers or wiring necessary to meet Tenant's 
excess electrical requirements shall, upon Tenant's written request, be 
installed by Landlord, at Tenant's sole cost, if, in Landlord's reasonable 
judgment, the same are necessary and shall not (i) cause permanent damage or 
injury to the Project, the Building or the Premises, (ii) cause or create a 
dangerous or hazardous condition, (iii) entail excessive or unreasonable 
alterations, repairs or expenses or (iv) unreasonably interfere with or disturb 
other tenants or occupants of the Building. 
 
D. For the purposes of this Lease "Business Hours" shall be from 8:00 a.m. to 
6:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday, and 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon on Saturdays, 
except for holidays designated by Landlord which shall be consistent with those 
holidays designated by landlords of similar office buildings in the Atlanta, 
Georgia area. 
 
Section 7.2 Landlord's obligation to furnish electrical and other utility 
services shall he subject to the rules and regulations of the supplier of such 
electricity or other utility services and the rules and regulations of any 
municipal or other governmental authority regulating the business of providing 
electricity and other utility services. Landlord shall have the right, at 
Landlord's option, upon not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to 
Tenant (provided such prior notice will be less if either the discontinuance of 
such service is required by applicable law or Landlord receives shorter notice 
from the utility company providing electricity or other utility service), to 
discontinue electric or other utility services to the Premises and 
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arrange for a direct connection thereof through a public utility supplying such 
service. If Landlord gives such notice of discontinuance, Landlord shall make 
all necessary arrangements with the public utility supplying electric or other 
utility service directly to the Building to furnish electric or other utility 
service to the Premises, and, unless prohibited by law or regulations of such 
public utility, Landlord shall not discontinue electric or other utility service 
to the Premises until such public utility is ready to supply service to the 
Premises. Tenant shall, however, be responsible for contracting promptly and 
directly with such public utility supplying such service and for paying all 
deposits for, and all costs relating to, such service. 
 
Section 7.3 No failure to furnish or any stoppage of the services referred to in 
this Article 7 resulting from any cause shall make Landlord liable in any 
respect for damages to any person, property or business, nor subject Landlord 
for liability to Tenant for any business loss or consequential damages. No such 
failure or stoppage be construed as an eviction of Tenant, or entitle Tenant to 



any abatement of Rent or other relief from any of Tenant's obligations under 
this Lease, except that in the event that any of the services required to be 
furnished by Landlord to the Premises (a) is interrupted by reason of the gross 
negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord and is not restored within five (5) 
business days, and if such interruption substantially and adversely affects the 
operation of Tenant's business in and from the Premises, then Tenant shall be 
entitled to cease operating in the Premises and receive an abatement of Base 
Rent for each full and/or partial day thereafter that such service is not 
restored and Tenant ceases to operate in the Premises until the date of 
restoration. Should any malfunction of any systems or facilities occur within 
the Project or should maintenance or alterations of such systems or facilities 
become necessary, Landlord shall make reasonable efforts to repair the same with 
reasonable diligence, and Tenant shall have no claim for rebate, abatement of 
Rent, or damages because of malfunctions or any such interruptions in service. 
Tenant shall not, however, be entitled to any abatement of Base Rent if the 
interruption or abatement in service or the failure by Landlord to furnish such 
service is the result of force majeure or is the result of an interruption or 
abatement in service of a public utility. By way of example only, there shall be 
no abatement of Base Rent if Landlord is unable to furnish water or electricity 
to the Premises if no water or electricity is then being made available to the 
Building by the supplying utility company or municipality. At the time of the 
loss of service, Tenant must give written notice promptly to Landlord of the 
loss of service and its claim for abatement and Tenant only shall be entitled to 
abatement of Base Rent in proportion to the area rendered unusable. Landlord may 
prevent or stop abatement by providing substantially the same service in similar 
quality and quantity by temporary or alternative means until the cause of the 
loss of service can be corrected. Such abatement shall be Tenant's sole remedy 
for loss of service and Tenant shall have no right to terminate this Lease. 
 
                                    ARTICLE 8 
                            ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 
 
Section 8.1 Except as expressly permitted herein or as approved by Landlord in 
writing, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, neither Tenant nor its 
legal representatives or successors in interest shall, by operation of law or 
otherwise, assign, mortgage, pledge, encumber or otherwise transfer: (i) this 
Lease or any part hereof, (ii) the interest of Tenant under this Lease, or (iii) 
the rent thereunder. The Premises or any part thereof shall not be sublet, 
occupied or used for any purpose by anyone other than Tenant, without Tenant's 
obtaining in each instance the prior written consent of Landlord in the manner 
hereinafter provided. Tenant shall not materially modify, extend, or amend a 
sublease previously consented to by Landlord without obtaining Landlord's prior 
written consent thereto. Landlord's consent to any assignment of this Lease or 
sublease of the Premises shall not waive, nor be deemed to waive the provisions 
of this Article 8 and all subsequent assignments and subleases shall require the 
prior written consent of Landlord in the manner hereinafter provided, such 
consent not to be unreasonably withheld. 
 
Section 8.2 An assignment of this Lease shall be deemed to have occurred (a) if 
in a single transaction or in a series of transactions more than a fifty (50%) 
percent ownership interest in Tenant, whether stock, partnership, interest or 
otherwise, is transferred, diluted, reduced, or otherwise affected with the 
result being that the present holder or owners of Tenant, have less than a fifty 
(50%) percent interest in Tenant, or (b) if Tenant's obligations under this 
Lease are taken over or assumed in consideration of Tenant leasing space in 
another office building. The transfer of the outstanding capital stock of any 
corporate Tenant, through the NASDAQ over-the-counter market or any recognized 
national securities exchange shall not be included in the calculation of such 
fifty (50%) percent interest. 
 
Section 8.3 Notwithstanding Sections 8.1 and 8.2, Tenant shall have the right, 
upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice to Landlord, to (a) sublet no more 
than fifty (50%) percent of the floor area of the Premises to any related 
corporation, successor corporation into which or with which Tenant is merged or 
consolidated or which acquired substantially all of Tenant's assets and 
property, or other entity which controls Tenant, is controlled by Tenant, or is 
under common control with Tenant (a "Permitted Transferee"); or (b) assign this 
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Lease to a Permitted Transferee; provided that (i) such successor corporation or 
other entity assumes all of the obligations and liabilities of Tenant and shall 
have assets, capitalization and net worth at least equal to the assets, 



capitalization and net worth of Tenant as of the date of this Lease as 
determined by generally accepted accounting principles, and (ii) Tenant shall 
provide in its notice to Landlord the information required in Section 8.4. For 
the purpose hereof "control" means ownership of more than fifty (50%) percent of 
all the voting stock or legal and equitable interest in such corporation or 
entity. 
 
Section 8.4 Should Tenant desire to assign this Lease or sublessee the Premises 
(or any part thereof) other than as permitted under Section 8.3, Tenant shall 
give Landlord written notice no later than thirty (30) days in advance of the 
proposed effective date of the proposed assignee or sublessee, specifying (a) 
the name, current address, and business of the proposed assignee or sublessee, 
(b) the amount and location of the space within the Premises proposed to be so 
subleased, (c) the proposed effective date and duration of the assignment or 
sublease, (d) the proposed rent and all consideration to be paid to Tenant by 
such assignee or sublessee, and (e) a financial statement, business resume and 
other information as Landlord may reasonably request to evaluate the proposed 
assignee or sublessee. Landlord shall have thirty (30) days following receipt of 
such notice and other information requested by Landlord to elect one of the 
following options: (i) to terminate this Lease as to the space so affected as of 
the proposed effective date set forth in Tenant's notice, in which event Tenant 
shall be relieved of all further obligations hereunder as to such space, except 
for obligations under Articles 17 and 22 and all other provisions of this Lease 
which expressly survive the termination hereof; provided, however, that Tenant 
may nullify Landlord's termination of this Lease by withdrawing its request for 
Landlord's consent to the proposed assignment or sublease in a written notice 
given to Landlord within seven (7) days following Landlord's notice of 
termination; or (ii) to permit Tenant to assign or sublease such space; 
provided, however, that, if the rent rate agreed upon between Tenant and its 
proposed sublessee or assignee is greater than the rent rate that Tenant must 
pay Landlord hereunder for that portion of the Premises, or if any consideration 
shall be promised to or received by Tenant in connection with such proposed 
assignment or sublease (in addition to rent), then one half of such excess rent 
and other consideration shall be considered Additional Rent owed by Tenant to 
Landlord (less brokerage commissions, attorneys fees and other disbursements 
reasonably incurred by Tenant for such assignment or sublease if reasonably 
acceptable evidence of such disbursements is delivered to Landlord), and shall 
be paid by Tenant to Landlord, in the case of excess rent, in the same manner 
that Tenant pays Base Rent and, in the case of any other consideration, within 
ten (10) business days after receipt thereof by Tenant; or (iii) to refuse, in 
Landlord's reasonable discretion, to consent to Tenant's assignment or 
subleasing of such space and to continue this Lease in full force and effect as 
to the entire Premises. The parties agree that Landlord may reasonably refuse to 
consent to an assignment or sublease if the proposed assignee or subtenant is 
not financially creditworthy, is a governmental authority or agency, an 
organization or person enjoying sovereign or diplomatic immunity, a medical or 
dental practice or health care provider or a user that will attract a volume, 
frequency or type of visitor or employee to the Building which is not consistent 
with the standards of a high quality office building or that will impose an 
excessive demand on or use of the facilities or services of the Building. It 
shall also be reasonable for Landlord to refuse to consent to any assignment or 
sublease if Tenant is then in default under this Lease, or such assignment or 
subletting would cause a default under another lease in the Building or under 
any ground lease, deed of trust, mortgage, restrictive covenant, easement or 
other encumbrance affecting the Project, or cause a violation of any applicable 
laws or regulations or insurance requirements affecting the Project, or in any 
way increase the risk of environmental damage to the Project, or if the proposed 
assignee or sublessee is at such time a tenant of the Building or a person or 
entity who or which is a prospective tenant of the Building or with whom or 
which Landlord is then dealing in connection with the leasing of space in the 
Building. If Landlord should fail to notify Tenant in writing of such election 
within the aforesaid thirty (30) day period, Landlord shall be deemed to have 
elected option (iii) above. Tenant agrees to reimburse Landlord for legal fees 
and any other reasonable costs incurred by Landlord in connection with any 
permitted assignment or sublease. Tenant shall deliver to Landlord copies of all 
documents executed in connection with any permitted assignment or subletting, 
which documents shall be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to 
Landlord and which shall require any assignee to assume performance of all terms 
of this Lease to be performed by Tenant or any subtenant to comply with all the 
terms of this Lease to be performed by Tenant. No acceptance by Landlord of any 
Rent or any other sum of money from any assignee, sublessee or other category of 
transferee shall be deemed to constitute Landlord's consent to any assignment, 
sublease, or transfer. 
 
Section 8.5 Any attempted assignment or sublease by Tenant in violation of the 
terms and provisions of this Article 8 shall be void and shall constitute a 
material breach of this Lease. In no event, shall any assignment, subletting or 
transfer, whether or not with Landlord's consent, relieve Tenant of its primary 
liability under this Lease for the entire Lease Term, and Tenant shall in no way 
be released from the full and complete performance of all the terms hereof. 
Further, Tenant's continuing primary liability for the Tenant's obligations 



under this Lease following an assignment or sublease shall not be released, 
impaired or 
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otherwise affected by Landlord's waiver of any provision of this Lease or 
Landlord's failure to enforce any provision of this Lease. If Landlord takes 
possession of the Premises before the expiration of the Lease Term of this 
Lease, Landlord shall have the right, at its option, to terminate all subleases, 
or to take over any sublease of the Premises or any portion thereof and such 
subtenant shall attorn to Landlord, as its landlord, under all the terms and 
obligations of such sublease occurring from and after such date, but excluding 
previous acts, omissions, negligence or defaults of Tenant and any repair or 
obligation in excess of available net insurance proceeds or condemnation award. 
 
Section 8.6 In any proceeding under Title 11 of the United States Bankruptcy 
Code relating to Bankruptcy, as amended (the "Bankruptcy Code"), Tenant, for 
itself and any Trustee in Bankruptcy or Debtor in Possession agrees as follows: 
 
A. The Debtor in Possession or Trustee in Bankruptcy shall not be entitled to 
seek, request or obtain an extension of time to assume or reject this Lease 
pursuant to 11 U.S.C. Section 365(d)(3). 
 
B. Adequate assurance of future performance pursuant to 11 U.S.C. Section 365(b) 
by a proposed assignee of this Lease shall include, at a minimum, that: (i) the 
Trustee or any other proposed assignee of this Lease shall deliver to Landlord a 
security deposit in an amount equal to at least three (3) months Rent accruing 
under the Lease; (ii) any proposed assignee of the Lease shall provide to 
Landlord an audited financial statement, dated no later than six (6) months 
prior to the effective date of such proposed assignment or sublease with no 
material change therein as of the effective date, which financial statement 
shall show the proposed assignee to have a net worth equal to at least thirty 
six (36) months Rent accruing under the Lease, or, in the alternative, the 
proposed assignee shall provide a guarantor of such proposed assignee's 
obligations under the Lease, which guarantor shall provide an audited financial 
statement meeting the requirements of (ii) above and shall execute and deliver 
to Landlord a guaranty agreement in form and substance acceptable to Landlord; 
and (iii) any proposed assignee shall grant to Landlord a security interest in 
favor of Landlord in all furniture, fixtures, and other personal property to be 
used by such proposed assignee in the Premises. 
 
C. The parties agree, that for the purposes of the Bankruptcy Code relating to 
(a) the obligation of the Trustee to provide adequate assurance that the Trustee 
will "promptly" cure defaults and compensate Landlord for actual pecuniary loss, 
the word "promptly" shall mean that cure of defaults and compensation will occur 
no later than sixty (60) days following the filing of any motion or application 
to assume this Lease; and (b) the obligation of the Trustee to compensate or to 
provide adequate assurance that the Trustee will promptly compensate Landlord 
for "actual pecuniary loss," the term "actual pecuniary loss" shall mean, in 
addition to any other provisions contained herein relating to Landlord's damages 
upon default, the immediate payment of all delinquent Rent and other payments 
due Landlord. 
 
Section 8.7 The term "Landlord," as used in this Lease, so far as covenants or 
obligations on the part of Landlord are concerned, shall be limited to mean and 
include only the owner or owners, at the time in question, of the fee title to, 
or a lessee's interest in a ground lease of, the Land or the Building. In the 
event of any transfer or conveyance of the Project by Landlord, the Landlord 
herein named (and in case of any subsequent transfers or conveyances, the then 
grantor) shall be relieved from and after the date of such transfer or 
conveyance of liability as respects the performance of any covenants or 
obligations on the part of Landlord contained in this Lease thereafter to be 
performed without further agreement. Nothing in this Lease shall impair 
Landlord's right to sell, assign or convey the Project, the Premises or its 
interest therein. 
 
                                    ARTICLE 9 
                                     REPAIRS 
 
Section 9.1 Except for ordinary wear and tear, casualty and condemnation and 
except as otherwise provided in Section 9.2, Landlord shall perform all 
maintenance and make all repairs and replacements to the Premises (including the 
Leasehold Improvements) and such costs shall be included within the Operating 



Cost. Nevertheless, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the actual and reasonable cost 
(including a fee equal to fifteen percent (15%) of actual costs to cover 
Landlord's overhead and manager) for maintenance, repairs and replacements 
within the Premises caused or necessitated by the willful misconduct or 
negligence of Tenant or its agents to the extent the cost thereof is not 
collectible under Landlord's insurance. Amounts payable by Tenant pursuant to 
this Section 9.1 shall be payable on demand after receipt of an invoice therefor 
from Landlord. Landlord has no obligation and has made no promise to maintain, 
improve, repair, decorate, or paint the Premises or any part thereof, except as 
specifically set forth in this Lease. Landlord shall have no obligation to 
maintain, repair or replace any furniture, furnishings, fixtures or personal 
property of Tenant. 
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Section 9.2 Tenant shall keep the Premises (including the Leasehold 
Improvements) in good order and in a safe, neat and clean condition. Except as 
provided in Section 10.1 or specifically consented to by Landlord, Tenant shall 
not perform any maintenance or repair work or make any replacement in or to the 
Premises (including the Leasehold Improvements) but rather shall promptly notify 
Landlord of the need for such maintenance, repair or replacement so that 
Landlord may proceed to perform the same pursuant to the provisions of Section 
9.1. In the event Landlord specifically consents to the performance of any 
maintenance or the making of any repairs or replacements by Tenant and Tenant 
fails to promptly commence and diligently pursue the performance of such 
maintenance or the making of such repairs or replacements, then Landlord, at its 
option, may perform such maintenance or make such repairs and Tenant shall 
reimburse Landlord, on demand after Tenant receives an invoice therefor, the 
actual cost thereof plus a fee equal to fifteen percent (15%) of the actual 
costs to cover overhead and a fee for Landlord's agent or manager. 
 
Section 9.3 All repairs made by Tenant pursuant to Section 9.2 shall be 
performed in a good and workmanlike manner by contractors or other repair 
personnel selected by Tenant from an approved list of contractors and repair 
personnel maintained by Landlord in the Project's management office; provided, 
however, that neither Tenant nor its contractors or repair personnel shall be 
permitted to do any work affecting the Central Areas of the Building. In no 
event shall such work be done for Landlord's account or in a manner which allows 
any liens to be filed in violation of Article 11. To the extent any repairs 
involve the making of alterations to the Premises, Tenant shall comply with the 
provisions of Article 10. 
 
Section 9.4 Subject to the other provisions of this Lease imposing obligations 
regarding repair upon Tenant, Landlord shall repair all machinery and equipment 
necessary to provide the services of Landlord described in Article 7 (provided 
that Tenant shall pay the costs of any repair to such systems or any part 
thereof damaged by the negligence or willful misconduct of Tenant or Tenant's 
employees, customers, clients, agents, licensees and invitees) and for repair of 
all portions of the Project which do not comprise a part of the Premises and are 
not leased to others. 
 
                                   ARTICLE 10 
                                   ALTERATIONS 
 
Section 10.1 Tenant shall not make any alterations or renovations to the 
Premises without first obtaining Landlord's written consent in each instance. 
Consent for merely "cosmetic" alterations is not required. If Landlord 
unreasonably withholds its consent after having been provided with full 
information and details as herein required, then Tenant may, as its sole remedy 
and at its sole cost and risk, proceed with the alteration or renovation at its 
sole risk and expense utilizing a contractor approved by Landlord as provided 
herein. Landlord shall not be deemed unreasonable by refusing to consent to any 
alteration which: (i) is or may be visible from the exterior of the Building or 
the Project, (ii) which may affect the building structure, exterior, load 
bearing members, walls, stairwells, escalators, or any electrical, mechanical, 
HVAC communication, alarm or other systems and equipment in the Building or 
Project or which are prohibited by any underlying ground lease or mortgage. 
Should Tenant desire to make any alterations to the Premises, Tenant shall 
submit all plans and specifications for such proposed alterations to Landlord 
for Landlord's review before Tenant allows any such work to commence, and 
Landlord shall approve or disapprove such plans and specifications for any of 
the reasons set forth in this Section 10.1 or for any other reason reasonably 
deemed sufficient by Landlord. Tenant shall select and use only contractors, 



subcontractors or other repair personnel from those listed on Landlord's 
approved list maintained by Landlord in the Project management office or 
otherwise approved by Landlord. Upon Tenant's receipt of written approval from 
Landlord and any required approval of any mortgagee or lessor of Landlord, and 
upon Tenant's payment to Landlord of (a) a reasonable fee prescribed by Landlord 
for the work of Landlord and Landlord's employees and representatives in 
reviewing and approving such plans and specifications and (b) the fees, if any 
charged by any mortgagee or lessor of Landlord for such review and approval, 
Tenant shall have the right to proceed with the construction of all approved 
alterations, but only so long as such alterations are in strict compliance with 
the plans and specifications so approved by Landlord and with the provisions of 
this Article 10. All alterations, whether directly or indirectly caused or 
necessitated by Tenant's alteration, shall be made at Tenant's sole cost and 
expense, either by Tenant's contractors or, at Landlord's option, by Landlord on 
terms reasonably satisfactory to Tenant, including a fee of fifteen percent 
(15%) of the actual costs of such work to cover Landlord's overhead and a fee 
for Landlord's agent or manager in supervising and coordinating such work. If 
Tenant's contractor performs such work, a fee of seven and one-half percent 
(7.5%) of the actual costs of such work shall be paid to Landlord as a fee for 
Landlord's agent or manager in supervising and coordinating such work to cover 
overhead and a fee for Landlord's agent or manager for supervising and 
coordinating such work. In no event, however, shall anyone other than Landlord 
or Landlord's employees or representatives perform work to be done which affects 
the Central Areas of the Building. 
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Section 10.2 All construction, alterations and repair work done by or for Tenant 
shall (a) be performed in such a manner as to maintain harmonious labor 
relations; (b) not adversely affect the safety of the Project, the Building or 
the Premises or the systems thereof and not affect the Central Areas of the 
Building; (c) comply with all building, safety, fire, plumbing, electrical, and 
other codes and governmental and insurance requirements; (d) not result in any 
usage in excess of building standard of water, electricity, gas, or other 
utilities or of heating, ventilating or air-conditioning (either during or after 
such work) unless prior written arrangements satisfactory to Landlord are made 
with respect thereto; (e) be completed promptly and in a good and workmanlike 
manner and in compliance with, and subject to, all of the provisions of Article 
F of Exhibit "C" hereof; and (f) not disturb Landlord or other tenants in the 
Building. After completion of any alterations to the Premises, Tenant will 
deliver to Landlord a copy of "as built" plans and specifications depicting and 
describing such alterations. 
 
Section 10.3 All Leasehold Improvements, alterations and other physical 
additions made to or installed by or for Tenant in the Premises shall be and 
remain Landlord's property (except for Tenant's furniture, personal property and 
movable trade fixtures) and shall not be removed without Landlord's written 
consent. Tenant agrees to remove, at its sole cost and expense, all of Tenant's 
furniture, personal property and movable trade fixtures, and, if directed to or 
permitted to do so by Landlord in writing, all, or any part of, the Leasehold 
Improvements, alterations and other physical additions made by or on behalf of 
Tenant to the Premises (including, without limitation, all cabling and wiring 
for computer systems, telephones and the like whether located above the finished 
ceiling or underneath the floor), on or before the Expiration Date or any 
earlier date of termination of this Lease. Tenant shall repair, or promptly 
reimburse Landlord for the cost of repairing all damage done to the Premises or 
the Building by such removal. Any Leasehold Improvements, alterations or 
physical additions made by or on behalf of Tenant which Landlord does not direct 
or permit Tenant to remove at any time during or at the end of the Lease Term 
shall become the property of Landlord at the end of the Lease Term without any 
payment to Tenant. If Tenant fails to remove any of Tenant's furniture, personal 
property or movable trade fixtures by the Expiration Date or any sooner date of 
termination of the Lease or, if Tenant fails to remove any Leasehold 
Improvements, alterations and other physical additions made by Tenant to the 
Premises which Landlord has in writing directed Tenant to remove (including, 
without limitation, all cabling and wiring for computer systems, telephones and 
the like whether located above the finished ceiling or underneath the floor), 
Landlord shall have the right, on the fifth (5th) day after Landlord's delivery 
of written notice to Tenant to deem such property abandoned by Tenant and to 
remove, store, sell, discard or otherwise deal with or dispose of such abandoned 
property in a commercially reasonable manner. Tenant shall be liable for all 
costs of such disposition of Tenant's abandoned property, and Landlord shall 
have no liability to Tenant in any respect regarding such property of Tenant. 
The provisions of this Section 10.3 shall survive the expiration or any earlier 



termination of this Lease. Tenant hereby appoints Landlord as the 
attorney-in-fact for Tenant and authorizes Landlord, as such attorney-in-fact, 
to execute on behalf of Tenant any bill of sale or other document which Landlord 
may deem necessary to evidence the conveyance of such property, and authorizes 
Landlord, as such attorney-in-fact, to execute on behalf of Tenant any bill of 
sale or other document which Landlord may deem necessary to evidence the 
conveyance of such property. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 11 
                                      LIENS 
 
Tenant shall keep the Project, the Building and the Premises and Landlord's 
interest therein from any liens arising from any work performed, materials 
furnished, or obligations incurred by, or on behalf of Tenant (other than by 
Landlord pursuant to Exhibit "C"). Notice is hereby given that neither Landlord 
nor any mortgagee or lessor of Landlord shall be liable for any labor or 
materials furnished to Tenant except as furnished to Tenant by Landlord pursuant 
to Exhibit "C". If any lien is filed for such work or materials, such lien shall 
encumber only Tenant's interest in Leasehold Improvements on the Premises. 
Within ten (10) days after Tenant learns of the filing of any such lien, Tenant 
shall notify Landlord of such lien and shall either pay and discharge such lien 
or post a bond sufficient under the laws of the State of Georgia to discharge 
the Project from such lien and any penalties, interest, attorneys' fees, court 
costs, and other legal expenses in connection therewith. If Tenant fails to so 
discharge or bond such lien within ten (10) calendar days after written demand 
from Landlord, Landlord shall have the right, at Landlord's option, to pay the 
full amount of such lien without inquiry into the validity thereof, and Landlord 
shall be promptly reimbursed by Tenant, as Additional Rent, for all amounts so 
paid by Landlord, including expenses, interest, and attorneys' fees. 
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                                   ARTICLE 12 
                          USE AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 
Section 12.1 Tenant may use the Premises for executive, professional and 
administrative offices for the conduct of Tenant's business in accordance with 
the provisions of this Lease, and for no other purpose. Provided, further, that 
no medical, dental or other professional office of a health care provider may be 
operated in the Premises and no governmental or quasi governmental agency office 
may be operated in the Premises unless, in either case, this Lease expressly 
grants permission for such use or Landlord consents to same in writing. Tenant 
shall use and maintain the Premises in a clean, careful, safe, lawful and proper 
manner and shall not allow within the Premises, any offensive noise, odor, 
conduct or private or public nuisance or permit Tenant's employees, agents, 
licensees or invitees to create a public or private nuisance or act in a 
disorderly manner within the Building or in the Project. Any statement as to the 
particular nature of the business to be conducted by Tenant in the Premises 
shall not constitute a representation or warranty by Landlord that such business 
or uses are lawful, except that Landlord represents that any certificate of 
occupancy issued with respect to the Premises shall allow use for executive and 
administrative offices. 
 
Section 12.2 Tenant shall, at Tenant's sole expense, (a) comply with all laws, 
orders, ordinances, and regulations of federal, state, county, and municipal 
authorities having jurisdiction over the Premises, including, without 
limitation, the Americans With Disabilities Act, (b) comply with any directive, 
order or citation made pursuant to law by any public officer requiring abatement 
of any nuisance or which imposes upon Landlord or Tenant any duty or obligation 
arising from Tenant's occupancy or use of the Premises or from conditions which 
have been created by or at the request or insistence of Tenant, or required by 
reason of a breach of any of Tenant's obligations hereunder or by or through 
other fault of Tenant, (c) comply with all insurance requirements applicable to 
the Premises and (d) indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from any loss, cost, 
claim or expense which Landlord incurs or suffers by reason of Tenant's failure 
to comply with its obligations under clauses (a), (b) or (c) above. If Tenant 
receives notice of any such directive, order or citation or of any violation of 
any law, order, ordinance, regulation or any insurance requirement, Tenant shall 
promptly notify Landlord in writing of such alleged violation and furnish 
Landlord with a copy of such notice. 



 
Section 12.3 Tenant shall not use or permit the use of the Premises or any 
portion of the Project for the storage, treatment, use, production or disposal 
of any hazardous substances or hazardous waste (as those terms are defined under 
CERCLA or RCRA or any other applicable federal, state or local environmental 
protection laws). Tenant does hereby indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from 
and against any and all damage to any property, penalties, expenses, claims, 
losses or liabilities or injury to or death of any person as a result of 
Tenant's violation of the foregoing provision. Tenant's indemnity shall include 
the obligation to reimburse Landlord for any and all costs and expenses 
(including reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred by Landlord, its agents or 
employees as a result of Tenant's violation. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 13 
                              DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 
Section 13.1 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall 
constitute an "Event of Default" (herein so called) of Tenant under this Lease: 
(a) if Tenant fails to pay any Rent hereunder as within five (5) days after it 
becomes due and such failure shall continue for more than five (5) days after 
Landlord gives Tenant notice of past due Rent; provided, however that if rent 
has been received after its due date and Landlord has given written notice of 
default for non-payment of Rent at any time during the twelve (12) month period 
before the occurrence of a rent delinquency, then no notice of default shall be 
required, and Landlord may treat the delinquency in Rent as an Event of Default 
without further notice (it being intended that Tenant's right to be given 
default notice for non-payment shall exist only once during a twelve (12) month 
period) or (b) if the Premises become vacant, deserted, or abandoned for more 
than thirty (30) consecutive business days (unless due to damage or destruction 
of the Premises) or if Tenant fails to take Possession of the Premises on the 
Commencement Date or promptly thereafter; or (c) if Tenant violates the 
provisions of Article 8 by attempting to make an unpermitted assignment or 
sublease; or (d) if Tenant fails to maintain in force all policies of insurance 
required by this Lease and such failure shall continue for more than ten (10) 
days after Landlord gives Tenant notice of such failure; or (e) if any petition 
is filed by or against Tenant or any guarantor of this Lease under any present 
or future section or chapter of the Bankruptcy Code, or under any similar law or 
statute of the United States or any state thereof (which, in the case of an 
involuntary proceeding, is not permanently discharged, dismissed, stayed, or 
vacated, as the case may be, within sixty (60) days of commencement), or if any 
order for relief shall be entered against Tenant or any guarantor of this Lease 
in any such proceedings; or (f) if Tenant or any guarantor of this Lease becomes 
insolvent or makes a transfer in fraud of creditors or makes an assignment for 
the benefit of creditors; or (g) if a receiver, custodian, or trustee is 
appointed for the Premises or for all or substantially all of the assets of 
Tenant or of any guarantor of this Lease, which appointment is not vacated 
within sixty (60) 
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days following the date of such appointment; or (h) if Tenant fails to perform 
or observe any other terms of this Lease and such failure shall continue for 
more than twenty (20) days after Landlord gives Tenant notice of such failure, 
or, if such failure cannot reasonably be corrected within said twenty (20) day 
period, if Tenant does not commence to correct such default period and 
thereafter diligently prosecute the correction of same to completion within a 
reasonable time (not to exceed ninety (90) days from the notice) and prior to 
the time a failure to complete such correction could cause Landlord to be 
subject to prosecution for violation of any law, rule, ordinance or regulation 
or causes, or could cause a default under any mortgage, underlying lease, other 
tenant lease or other agreements applicable to the Project. 
 
Section 13.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, Landlord shall have 
the right, at Landlord's option, to elect to do any one or more of the following 
without further notice or demand to Tenant: (a) terminate this Lease, in which 
event Tenant shall immediately surrender the Premises to Landlord, and, if 
Tenant fails to so surrender, Landlord shall have the right, without notice, to 
enter upon and take possession of the Premises and to expel or remove Tenant and 
its effects without being liable for prosecution or any claim for damages 
therefor; and Tenant shall, and hereby agrees to, indemnify Landlord for all 
loss and damage which Landlord suffers by reason of such termination, including 
damages in an amount equal to the total of (1) the costs of recovering the 



Premises and all other expenses incurred by Landlord in connection with Tenant's 
default; (2) the unpaid Rent earned as of the date of termination, plus interest 
at the Interest Rate; (3) all other sums of money and damages owing by Tenant to 
Landlord; or (b) enter upon and take possession of the Premises without 
terminating this Lease and without being liable to prosecution or any claim for 
damages therefor, and, if Landlord elects, relet the Premises on such terms as 
Landlord deems advisable, in which event Tenant shall pay to Landlord on demand 
the cost of repossession, renovating, repairing and altering the Premises for a 
new tenant or tenants and any broker's commission incurred with respect to 
obtaining such new tenants, and Tenant shall be liable to Landlord for any 
deficiency between the Rent payable hereunder and the rent paid under such 
reletting; provided, however, that Tenant shall not be entitled to any excess 
payments received by Landlord from such reletting. Landlord's failure to relet 
the Premises shall not release or affect Tenant's liability for Rent or for 
damages; or (c) enter the Premises without terminating this Lease and without 
being liable for prosecution or any claim for damages therefor and maintain the 
Premises and repair or replace any damage thereto or do anything for which 
Tenant is responsible hereunder. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord immediately 
upon demand for any expenses which Landlord incurs in thus effecting Tenant's 
compliance under this Lease, and Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant for any 
damages with respect thereto. 
 
Section 13.3 No agreement to accept a surrender of the Premises and no act or 
omission by Landlord or Landlord's agents during the Lease Term shall constitute 
an acceptance or surrender of the Premises unless made in writing and signed by 
Landlord. No re-entry or taking possession of the Premises by Landlord shall 
constitute an election by Landlord to terminate this Lease unless a written 
notice of such intention is given to Tenant. No provision of this Lease shall be 
construed as an obligation upon Landlord to re-let or to mitigate Landlord's 
damages under the Lease. 
 
Section 13.4 No provision of this Lease shall be deemed to have been waived by 
Landlord unless such waiver is in writing and signed by Landlord. Landlord's 
acceptance of Rent following an Event of Default hereunder shall not be 
construed as a waiver of such Event of Default. No custom or practice which may 
exist between the parties in connection with the terms of this Lease shall be 
construed to waive Landlord's right to insist upon strict performance of the 
terms of this Lease. 
 
Section 13.5 The rights granted to Landlord in this Article 13 shall be 
cumulative of every other right or remedy provided in this Lease or which 
Landlord may otherwise have at law or in equity, and the exercise of one or more 
rights or remedies shall not constitute an election of remedies, prejudice or 
impair the concurrent or subsequent exercise of other rights or remedies or a 
waiver of Rent or damages accruing to Landlord by reason of any Event of Default 
under this Lease. Tenant agrees to pay to Landlord all costs and expenses 
incurred by Landlord in the enforcement of this Lease, including all reasonable 
attorneys' fees incurred in connection with the collection of any sums due 
hereunder or the enforcement of any right or remedy of Landlord. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 14 
                                    INSURANCE 
 
Section 14. 1 A. Tenant, at its sole expense, shall obtain and keep in force 
during the Lease Term the following insurance: (a) "All Risk" insurance insuring 
the Leasehold Improvements, Tenant's interest in the Premises and all property 
located in the Premises, including furniture, equipment, fittings, 
installations, fixtures, supplies and any other personal property, leasehold 
improvements and alterations ("Tenant's 
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Property"), in an amount equal to the full replacement value, it being 
understood that no lack or inadequacy of insurance by Tenant shall in any event 
make Landlord subject to any claim by virtue of any theft of or loss or damage 
to any uninsured or inadequately insured property; (b) Business Interruption 
insurance in the amount that will reimburse Tenant for direct or indirect loss 
of earnings attributable to all perils insured against under Section 14.1 (a) or 
attributable to the prevention of access to the Premises by civil authority; and 
sufficient to reimburse Tenant for Rent in the event of a casualty to, or 
temporary taking of, the Building or the Premises; (c) Commercial general 
liability insurance written on an occurrence basis including personal injury, 



bodily injury, broad form property damage, operations hazard, owner's protective 
coverage, contractual liability, with a cross liability clause and a 
severability of interests clause to cover Tenant's indemnities set forth herein, 
and products and completed operations liability, in limits not less than 
$1,000,000.00 inclusive per occurrence or such higher limits as any mortagee or 
lessor of Landlord may require from time to time during the Lease Term; (d) 
Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability insurance, with a waiver of 
subrogation endorsement, in form and amount as required by applicable law; and 
(e) In the event Tenant performs any repairs or alterations in the Premises, 
Builder's Risk insurance on an "All Risk" basis (including collapse) on a 
completed value (non-reporting) form for full replacement value covering all 
work incorporated in the Building and all materials and equipment in or about 
the Premises; (f) Tenant's "All Risk" Legal Liability insurance for the 
replacement cost value of the Premises; and (g) any other form or forms of 
insurance or any changes or endorsements to the insurance required herein as 
Landlord, or any mortgagee or lessor of Landlord may require, from time to time, 
in form or in amount. 
 
B. Tenant shall have the right to include the insurance required by Section 14. 
1 A. under Tenant's policies of "blanket insurance," provided that no other loss 
which may also be insured by such blanket insurance shall affect the insurance 
coverages required hereby and further provided that Tenant delivers to Landlord 
a certificate specifically stating that such coverages apply to Landlord, the 
Premises and the Project. All such policies of insurance or certificates thereof 
shall name Landlord, Landlord's manager, and all mortgagees and lessors of 
Landlord, of which Tenant has been notified, as additional insureds, all as 
their respective interest may appear. All such policies or certificates shall be 
issued by insurers acceptable to Landlord and in a form satisfactory to 
Landlord. Tenant shall deliver to Landlord certificates with copies of policies, 
together with satisfactory evidence of payment of premiums for such policies, by 
the Commencement Date and, with respect to renewals of such policies, not later 
than thirty (30) days prior to the end of the expiring term of coverage. Upon 
Landlord's request Tenant shall deliver to Landlord certified copies of such 
policies. All policies of insurance shall be primary and Tenant shall not carry 
any separate or additional insurance concurrent in form or contributing in the 
event of any loss or damage with any insurance required to be maintained by 
Tenant under this Lease. All such policies and certificates shall contain an 
agreement by the insurers that the policies will not be invalidated as they 
affect the interests of Landlord and Landlord's mortgagees by reason of any 
breach or violation of warranties, representations, declarations or conditions 
contained in the policies and that the insurers shall notify Landlord and any 
mortgagee or lessor of Landlord in writing, by Registered U.S. mail, return 
receipt requested, not less than forty-rive (45) days before any material 
change, reduction in coverage, cancellation, including cancellation for 
non-payment of premium, or other termination thereof or change therein and shall 
include a clause or endorsement denying the insurer any rights or subrogation 
against Landlord, if such clause or endorsement is available without additional 
cost to Tenant. 
 
Section 14.2 Landlord shall insure the Building against damage with casualty and 
commercial general liability insurance, all in such amounts and with such 
deductible as Landlord reasonably deems appropriate. Notwithstanding any 
contribution by Tenant to the cost of insurance premiums, as provided 
hereinabove, Landlord shall not be required to carry insurance of any kind on 
Tenant's Property, and Tenant hereby agrees that Tenant shall have no right to 
receive any proceeds from any insurance policies carried by Landlord. 
 
Section 14.3 Tenant shall not knowingly conduct or permit to be conducted in the 
Premises any activity, or place any equipment in or about the Premises or the 
Building, which will invalidate the insurance coverage in effect or increase the 
rate of casualty insurance or other insurance on the Premises or the Building, 
and Tenant shall comply with all requirements and regulations of Landlord's 
casualty and liability insurer. If any invalidation of coverage or increase in 
the rate of casualty insurance or other insurance occurs or is threatened by any 
insurance company due to any act or omission by Tenant, or its agents, 
employees, representatives, or contractors, such statement or threat shall be 
conclusive evidence that the increase in such rate is due to such act of Tenant 
or the contents or equipment in or about the Premises, and, as a result thereof, 
Tenant shall be liable for such increase and such amount shall be considered 
Additional Rent payable with the next monthly installment of Base Rent due under 
this Lease. In no event shall Tenant introduce or permit to be kept on the 
Premises or brought into the Building any dangerous, noxious, radioactive or 
explosive substance. 
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Section 14.4 Landlord and Tenant each hereby waive any right of subrogation and 
right of recovery or cause of action for injury or loss to the extent that such 
injury or loss is covered by fire, extended coverage, "All Risk" or similar 
policies covering real property or personal property (or which would have been 
covered if Tenant was carrying the insurance required by this Lease). Said 
waivers shall be in addition to, and not in limitation or derogation or, any 
other waiver or release contained in this Lease. Written notice of the terms of 
the above mutual waivers shall be given to the insurance carriers of Landlord 
and Tenant and the parties' insurance policies shall be properly endorsed, if 
necessary, to prevent the invalidation of said policies by reason of such 
waivers. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 15 
                          DAMAGE BY FIRE OR OTHER CAUSE 
 
Section 15.1 If the Building or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed by 
any casualty to the extent that, in Landlord's reasonable judgment, (i) repair 
of such damage or destruction would not be economically feasible, or (b) the 
damage or destruction to the Building cannot be repaired within three hundred 
sixty (360) days after the date of such damage or destruction, or (ii) if the 
proceeds from insurance remaining after any required payment to any mortgagee or 
lessor of Landlord are insufficient to repair such damage or destruction, 
Landlord shall have the right, at Landlord's option, to terminate this Lease by 
giving Tenant notice of such termination, within sixty (60) days after the date 
of such damage or destruction. 
 
Section 15.2 If the Premises or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed by 
any casualty against which Tenant is required to be insured under Section 14.1, 
and if, in Landlord's reasonable opinion, the Premises cannot be rebuilt or made 
fit for Tenant's purposes within one hundred eighty days (180) after the date of 
such damage or destruction, or if the proceeds from the insurance Tenant is 
required to maintain pursuant to Article 14 hereof (or the amount of proceeds 
which would have been available if Tenant was carrying such insurance) are 
insufficient to repair such damage or destruction, then either Landlord or 
Tenant shall have the right, at its option, to terminate this Lease by giving 
the other written notice within sixty (60) days after such damage or 
destruction. 
 
Section 15.3 In the event of partial destruction or damage to the Building or 
the Premises which is not subject to Section 15.1 or 15.2 or which is subject to 
Section 15.1 or 15.2 but the applicable party (or parties) does not elect to 
terminate the Lease, but which renders the Premises partially but not wholly 
untenantable, this Lease shall not terminate and Rent shall be abated in 
proportion to the area of the Premises which, in Landlord's reasonable opinion, 
cannot be used or occupied by Tenant as a result of such casualty. Landlord 
shall in such event, within a reasonable time after the date of such destruction 
or damage, subject to force majeure (as defined in Section 25.6) or to Tenant 
Delay and to the extent and availability of insurance proceeds, restore the 
Premises to as near the same condition as existed prior to such partial damage 
or destruction, provided that Tenant pays to Landlord Tenant's insurance 
proceeds as required in Section 15.5. In no event shall Rent abate or shall any 
termination occur if damage to or destruction of the Premises is the result of 
the negligence or willful act of Tenant, or Tenant's agents, employees, 
representatives, contractors, successors, assigns, licensees or invitees. 
 
Section 15.4 If the Building or the Premises or any material portion thereof is 
destroyed by fire or other causes at any time during the last year of the Lease 
Term, then either Landlord or Tenant shall have the right, at the option of 
either party, to terminate this Lease by giving written notice to the other 
within sixty (60) days after the date of such destruction. 
 
Section 15.5 Landlord shall have no liability to Tenant for inconvenience, loss 
of business, or annoyance arising from any repair of any portion of the Premises 
or the Building. If Landlord is required by this Lease or by any mortgagee or 
lessor of Landlord to repair or if Landlord undertakes to repair, Tenant shall 
pay to Landlord that amount of Tenant's insurance proceeds (or the amount which 
would have been received by Tenant if Tenant was carrying the insurance required 
by this Lease) which insures such damage as a contribution towards such repair, 
and Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to have such repairs made promptly and 
in a manner which will not unnecessarily interfere with Tenant's occupancy. 
 
Section 15.6 In the event of termination of this Lease pursuant to Sections 
15.1, 15.2, or 15.4, then all Rent shall be apportioned and paid to the date on 
which possession is relinquished or the date of such damage, whichever last 
occurs, and Tenant shall immediately vacate the Premises according to such 
notice of termination provided, however, that those, provisions of this Lease 
which are designated to cover matters of termination and the period thereafter 



shall survive the termination. 
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                                   ARTICLE 16 
                                  CONDEMNATION 
 
Section 16.1 In the event the whole or substantially the whole of the Building 
or the Premises are taken or condemned by eminent domain or by any conveyance in 
lieu thereof (such taking, condemnation or conveyance in lieu thereof being 
hereinafter referred to as "condemnation"), the Lease Term shall cease and this 
Lease shall terminate on the earlier of the date the condemning authority takes 
possession or the date title vests in the condemning authority. 
 
Section 16.2 In the event any portion of the Building shall be taken by 
condemnation (whether or not such taking includes any portion of the Premises), 
which taking, in Landlord's judgment, is such that the Building cannot be 
restored in an economically feasible manner for use substantially as originally 
designed, then Landlord shall have the right, at Landlord's option, to terminate 
this Lease, effective as of the date specified by Landlord in a written notice 
of termination from Landlord to Tenant. 
 
Section 16.3 In the event any portion of the Parking Facilities shall be taken 
by condemnation, which taking in Landlord's judgment is such that the Parking 
Facilities cannot be restored in an economically feasible manner for use 
substantially as originally designed, including in such consideration the 
possible use of additional parking facilities in the vicinity of the Building, 
then Landlord shall have the right, at Landlord's option, to terminate this 
Lease, effective as of the date specified by Landlord in a written notice of 
termination from Landlord to Tenant. 
 
Section 16.4 In the event that a portion, but less than substantially the whole 
of the Premises shall be taken by condemnation, then either party may terminate 
this Lease, by written notice to the other given no later than ten (10) days 
after the date the condemning authority takes possession. 
 
Section 16.5 In the event of termination of this Lease pursuant to the 
provisions of Article 16, the Rent shall be apportioned as of such date of 
termination; provided, however, that those provisions of this Lease which are 
designated to cover matters of termination and the period thereafter shall 
survive the termination hereof. 
 
Section 16.6 All compensation awarded or paid upon a condemnation of any portion 
of the Project shall belong to and be the property of Landlord without 
participation by Tenant, and Tenant shall have no claim against Landlord or 
against the condemning authority for the value of its interest under this Lease 
or for the value of the Lease over the unexpired term. Nothing herein shall be 
construed, however, to preclude Tenant from prosecuting any claim directly 
against the condemning authority for loss of business, loss of good will, moving 
expenses, damage to, and cost of removal of, trade fixtures and personal 
property belonging to Tenant; provided, however, that Tenant shall make no claim 
which shall diminish or adversely affect any award claimed or received by 
Landlord. 
 
Section 16.7 If any portion of the Project other than the Building is taken by 
condemnation or if the temporary use or occupancy of all or any part of the 
Premises shall be taken by condemnation during the Lease Term, this Lease shall 
be and remain unaffected by such condemnation, and Tenant shall continue to pay 
in full the Rent payable hereunder. In the event of any such temporary taking 
for use or occupancy of all or any part of the Premises, Tenant shall be 
entitled to appear, claim, prove and receive the portion of the award for such 
taking that represents compensation for use or occupancy of the Premises during 
the Lease Term and Landlord shall be entitled to appear, claim, prove and 
receive the portion of the award that represents the cost of restoration of the 
Premises and the use or occupancy of the Premises after the end of the Lease 
Term hereof. In the event of any such condemnation of any portion of the Project 
other than the Building, Landlord shall be entitled to appear, claim, prove and 
receive all of that award. This Lease shall not be terminated by any partial or 
temporary condemnation except as provided in this Article 16. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 17 
                                 INDEMNIFICATION 
 



Section 17.1 Tenant hereby waives all claims against Landlord for damage to any 
property or injury to, or death of, any person in, upon, or about the Project, 
including the Premises, arising at any time and from any cause other than solely 
by reason of the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord, its agents, 
employees, representatives, or contractors. Tenant shall, and hereby agrees to, 
indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from any damage to any property or injury 
to, or death of, any person arising from the use or occupancy of the Common 
Areas and the Premises by Tenant, its agents, employees, representatives, 
contractors, 
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successors, assigns, licensees, or invitees, unless such damage is caused solely 
by the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord, its agents, employees, 
representatives, or contractors. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, Landlord shall not be liable for any injury or damage to persons or 
property resulting from the condition or design of, or any defect in, Building 
or its mechanical systems or equipment which may exist or occur or from any 
fire, explosion, falling plaster, steam, gas, electricity, water, rain, flood, 
snow, or leaks from any part of the Premises or from the pipes, appliances, 
plumbing works, roof, or subsurface of any floor or ceiling, or from the street 
or any other place, or by dampness or by any other similar cause unless the same 
is caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord, its 
agents, employees, representatives or contractors. Landlord shall not be liable 
for any such damage caused by other tenants or persons in the Building or by 
occupants of adjacent property thereto, or by the public, or caused by 
construction (unless caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of 
Landlord) or by any private, public or quasi-public work. Tenant, for itself and 
its agents, employees, representatives, contractors, successors, assigns, 
invitees and licensees, expressly assumes all risks of injury or damage to 
person or property, whether proximate or remote, resulting from the condition of 
the Project or any part thereof. Tenant's foregoing indemnity shall include 
attorneys' fees, investigation costs, and all other reasonable costs and 
expenses incurred by Landlord in connection therewith. The provisions of this 
Article 17 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease with 
respect to any damage, injury, or death occurring before such expiration or 
termination. If Landlord is made a party to any litigation commenced by or 
against Tenant or relating to this Lease or to the Premises, and provided that 
in any such litigation Landlord is not finally adjudicated to be solely at 
fault, then Tenant shall pay all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees 
and court costs, incurred by or imposed upon Landlord because of any such 
litigation, and the amount of all such costs and expenses, including attorneys' 
fees and court coats, shall be a demand obligation owing by Tenant to Landlord. 
Notwithstanding anything in this Article 17 to the contrary, Landlord shall not 
be liable to Tenant for any claims resulting from the negligence or willful 
misconduct of Landlord, its agents, employees, representatives, or contractors 
to the extent such claims are covered by the types of insurance Tenant is to 
maintain pursuant to Section 14.1. 
 
Section 17.2 Landlord shall, and hereby agrees to, indemnify and hold Tenant 
harmless from any damages in connection with loss of life, bodily or personal 
injury or property damage arising from any occurrence in the Common Areas of the 
Project when not solely the result of the negligence or willful misconduct of 
Tenant, and all willful or negligent acts of Landlord and Landlord's employees. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 18 
                     SUBORDINATION AND ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES 
 
Section 18.1 This Lease and all rights of Tenant hereunder are subject and 
subordinate to all underlying or ground leases now or hereafter in existence, 
and to any supplements, amendments, modifications, and extensions of such leases 
heretofore or hereafter made and to any deeds to secure debt, deeds of trust, 
mortgages, or other security instruments which now or hereafter cover all or any 
portion of the Building or the Project or any interest of Landlord therein, and 
to any advances made on the security thereof, and to any increases, renewals, 
modifications, consolidations, replacements, and extensions of any of such 
mortgages. This provision shall be self-operative and no further instrument 
shall be required to effect such subordination of this Lease. Upon demand, 
however, Tenant shall execute, acknowledge, and deliver to Landlord any further 
instruments and certificate evidencing such subordination as Landlord and any 
mortgagee or lessor of Landlord shall reasonably require, and if Tenant fails to 



so execute, acknowledge and deliver such instruments within ten (10) days after 
Landlord's request, Landlord is hereby empowered to do so in Tenant's name and 
on Tenant's behalf; Tenant hereby irrevocably appoints Landlord as Tenant's 
agent and attorney-in-fact for the purpose of executing, acknowledging, and 
delivering any such instruments and certificates. Tenant shall not unreasonably 
withhold, delay, or defer its written consent to reasonable modifications in 
this Lease which are a condition of any construction, interim or permanent 
financing for the Project or any reciprocal easement agreement with facilities 
in the vicinity of the Building, provided that such modifications do not 
increase the obligations of Tenant hereunder or materially and adversely affect 
Tenant's use and enjoyment of the Premises. 
 
Section 18.2 Notwithstanding Section 18.1, any mortgagee or lessor of Landlord 
shall have the right at any time to subordinate any such mortgage or underlying 
lease to this Lease, or to any of the provisions hereof, on such terms and 
subject to such conditions as such mortgagee or lessor of Landlord may consider 
appropriate in its discretion. At any time, before, during or after the 
institution of any proceedings for the foreclosure of any such mortgage, or the 
sale of the Building under any such mortgage, or the termination of any 
underlying lease, Tenant shall, upon request of such mortgagee or any person or 
entities succeeding to the interest of such mortgagee or the purchaser at any 
foreclosure sale ("Successor Landlord"), automatically become the Tenant (or if 
the Premises has been validly subleased, the subtenant) of the 
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Successor Landlord, without change in the terms or other provisions of this 
Lease (or, in the case of a permitted sublease, without change in this Lease or 
in the instrument setting forth the terms of such sublease); provided, however, 
that the Successor Landlord shall not be (i) bound by any payment made by Tenant 
of Rent or Additional Rent for more than one (1) month in advance, except for a 
Security Deposit previously paid to Landlord (and then only if such Security 
Deposit has been deposited with and is under the control of the Successor 
Landlord), (ii) bound by any termination, modification, amendment or surrender 
of the Lease done without the Successor Landlord's consent, (iii) liable for any 
damages or subject to any offset or defense by Tenant to the payment of Rent by 
reason of any act or omission of any prior landlord (including Landlord), or 
(iv) personally or corporately liable, in any event, beyond the limitations on 
landlord liability set forth in Section 25.5 of this Lease. This agreement of 
Tenant to attorn to a Successor Landlord shall survive any such foreclosure 
sale, trustee's sale conveyance in lieu thereof or termination of any underlying 
lease. Tenant shall upon demand at any time, before or after any such 
foreclosure or termination execute, acknowledge, and deliver to the Successor 
Landlord any written instruments and certificates evidencing such attornment as 
such Successor Landlord may reasonably require; provided, however, that Landlord 
shall use its reasonable efforts to require that such agreement provide that 
upon such attornment as long as Tenant is not in default hereunder, Tenant's 
possession of the Premises under this Lease shall not be disturbed. 
 
Section 18.3 Tenant shall, from time to time, within ten (10) days after request 
from Landlord, or from any mortgagee or lessor of Landlord, execute, acknowledge 
and deliver in recordable form a certificate certifying, to the extent true, 
that this Lease is in full force and effect and unmodified (or, if there have 
been modifications, that the same is in full force and effect as modified and 
stating the modifications); that the Lease Term has commenced and setting forth 
the full amount of the Rent then accruing hereunder; the dates to which the Rent 
has been paid; that Tenant has accepted possession of the Premises and that any 
improvements required by the terms of this Lease to be made by Landlord have 
been completed to the satisfaction of Tenant; the amount, if any, that Tenant 
has paid to Landlord as a Security Deposit; that no Rent under this Lease has 
been paid more than thirty (30) days in advance of its due date; that the 
address for notices to be sent to Tenant is as set forth in this Lease (or has 
been changed by notice duly given and is as set forth in the certificate); that 
Tenant, as of the date of such certificate, has no charge, lien, or claim of 
offset under this Lease or otherwise against Rent or other charges due or to 
become due hereunder; that, to the knowledge of Tenant, Landlord is not then in 
default under this Lease; and such other matters as may be reasonably requested 
by Landlord or any mortgagee or lessor of Landlord. Any such certificate may be 
relied upon by Landlord, any Successor Landlord, or any mortgagee or lessor of 
Landlord. Landlord agrees periodically to furnish, when reasonably requested in 
writing by Tenant, certificates signed by Landlord containing information 
similar to the foregoing information. 
 
Section 18.4 No act or failure to act on the part of Landlord which would 
entitle Tenant under the terms of this Lease, or by law, to be relieved of 



Tenant's obligations hereunder or to terminate this Lease, shall result in a 
release of such obligations or a termination of this Lease unless (a) Tenant has 
given notice by registered or certified mail to any mortgagee or lessor of 
Landlord whose address shall have been furnished to Tenant, and (b) Tenant 
offers such mortgagee or lessor of Landlord a reasonable opportunity to cure the 
default, including time to obtain possession of the Premises by power of sale or 
judicial foreclosure, if such should prove necessary to effect a cure. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 19 
                            SURRENDER OF THE PREMISES 
 
         Upon the Expiration Date or earlier termination of this Lease, or upon 
any re-entry of the Premises by Landlord without terminating this Lease pursuant 
to Section 13.2(b), Tenant, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, shall peacefully 
vacate and surrender the Premises to Landlord in good order, broom clean and in 
the same condition as at the beginning of the Lease Term or as the Premises may 
thereafter have been improved by Landlord or Tenant (provided that Tenant's 
improvements were made with Landlord's consent), reasonable use and wear thereof 
and repairs which are Landlord's obligations under Articles 9, 15 and 16 only 
excepted, and Tenant shall remove all of Tenant's Property (including, without 
limitation, all cabling and wiring for computer systems, telephones and the like 
whether located above the finished ceiling or underneath the floor), repair any 
damage resulting from such removal, and turn over all keys for the Premises to 
Landlord. Should Tenant continue to hold the Premises after the expiration or 
earlier termination of this Lease, such holding over, unless otherwise agreed to 
by Landlord in writing, shall constitute and be construed as a tenancy at 
sufferance at monthly installments of Rent equal to one hundred fifty percent 
(150%) of the monthly portion of Rent in effect as of the date of expiration or 
earlier termination, and subject to all of the other terms, charges and expenses 
set forth herein except any right to renew this Lease or to expand the Premises 
or any right to additional services. The foregoing sentence shall 
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in no event be construed to permit such holding over without Landlord's consent. 
Tenant shall also be liable to Landlord for all damages (including consequential 
damages) which Landlord suffers because of any holding over by Tenant, and 
Tenant shall indemnify Landlord against all claims made by any other tenant or 
prospective tenant against Landlord resulting from delay by Landlord in 
delivering possession of the Premises to such other tenant or prospective 
tenant. The provisions of this Article 19 shall survive the expiration or 
earlier termination of this Lease. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 20 
                           LANDLORD'S RIGHT TO INSPECT 
 
         Landlord shall retain duplicate keys to all doors of the Premises. 
Tenant shall provide Landlord with new keys should Tenant receive Landlord's 
consent to change the locks. Landlord or Landlord's agents shall have the right 
to enter the Premises at reasonable hours (or, in the event of an emergency, at 
any hour) (a) to exhibit the same to present or prospective mortgagees, lessors 
or purchasers during the Lease Term and to prospective tenants during the year 
immediately preceding the expiration of the Lease Term, (b) to inspect the 
Premises, (c) to confirm that Tenant is complying with all of Tenant's covenants 
and obligations under this Lease, (d) to clean or make repairs required of 
Landlord under the terms of this Lease, (c) to make repairs to or alter areas 
adjoining the Premises, and (f) to repair and service utility lines or other 
components of the Building; provided, however, Landlord shall use reasonable 
efforts to minimize interference with Tenant's business. Landlord shall not be 
liable to Tenant for the exercise of Landlord's rights under this Article 20 and 
Tenant hereby waives any claims for damages for any injury, inconvenience or 
interference with Tenant's business, any loss of occupancy or quiet enjoyment of 
the Premises, and any other loss occasioned thereby. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, Landlord shall be 
entitled to exhibit the Premises to prospective tenants. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 21 
                                SECURITY DEPOSIT 
 
         Any Security Deposit made by Tenant shall be held by Landlord, without 
liability for interest except to the extent required by law, as security for the 



performance of Tenant's obligations under this Lease. Unless required by 
applicable law, Landlord shall not be required to keep the Security Deposit 
segregated from other funds of Landlord. Tenant shall not assign or in a any way 
encumber the Security Deposit. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default by 
Tenant, Landlord shall have the right, without prejudice to any other remedy, to 
use the Security Deposit, or portions thereof, to the extent necessary to pay 
any arrearage in Rent, and any other damage, injury or expense. Following any 
such application of all or any portion of the Security Deposit, Tenant shall pay 
to Landlord, on demand, the amount so applied in order to restore the Security 
Deposit to its original amount. If Tenant is not in default at the termination 
of this Lease, any remaining balance of the Security Deposit shall be returned 
to Tenant, provided that Tenant surrenders the Premises without damage pursuant 
to Article 19 hereof. If Landlord transfers its interest in the Premises during 
the Lease Term, Landlord shall assign the Security Deposit to the transferee, 
and thereafter Landlord shall have no further liability to Tenant for the 
Security Deposit. In the event of a permitted assignment under this Lease by 
Tenant, the Security Deposit shall be held by Landlord as a deposit made by the 
permitted assignee and Landlord shall have no further liability with respect to 
the return of the Security Deposit to the original Tenant. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 22 
                                    BROKERAGE 
 
         Tenant and Landlord each represent and warrant to the other that it has 
not entered into any agreement with, or otherwise had any dealings with, any 
broker or agent in connection with the negotiation or execution of this Lease 
which could form the basis of any claim by any such broker or agent for it 
brokerage fee or commission, finder's fee, or any other compensation of any kind 
or nature in connection herewith, other than with the broker(s), disclosed to 
the other in writing (the "Brokers") and each party shall, and hereby agrees to, 
indemnify and hold the other harmless from all costs (including court costs, 
investigation costs, and attorneys' fees), expenses, or liability for 
commissions or other compensation claimed by any broker or agent with respect to 
this Lease which arise out of any agreement or dealings, or alleged agreement or 
dealings, between the indemnifying party and any such agent or broker, other 
than with Broker(s). This provision shall survive the expiration or earlier 
termination of this Lease. 
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                                   ARTICLE 23 
                       OBSERVANCE OF RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 
         Tenant and Tenant's servants employees, agents, visitors, and licensees 
shall observe faithfully and comply strictly with all Rules and Regulations as 
such Rules and Regulations may be changed from time to time. Landlord shall at 
all times have the right to make reasonable changes in and additions to such 
Rules and Regulations; provided Landlord gives Tenant prior notice of such 
changes and provided that such new rules and regulations or changes in existing 
rules and regulations do not conflict with this Lease, and do not materially 
interfere with the lawful conduct of Tenant's business in the Premises. Any 
failure by Landlord to enforce any of the Rules and Regulations now or hereafter 
in effect, either against Tenant or any other tenant in the Building, shall not 
constitute a waiver of any such Rules and Regulations. Landlord shall not be 
liable to Tenant for the failure or refusal by any other tenant, guest, invitee, 
visitor, or occupant of the Building to comply with any of the Rules and 
Regulations. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 24 
                                     NOTICES 
 
         All notices, consents, demands, requests, documents, or other 
communications (other than payment of Rent) required or permitted hereunder 
(collectively, "notices") shall be deemed given, whether actually received or 
not on the earlier of: (a) the date when delivered to the address of the party 
notified; (b) when delivered by next-day express courier (with signed receipts) 
to the other party, or (c) on the second business day after deposit in the 
United States mail, postage prepaid, certified, return receipt requested. The 
addresses of the parties for notices and payment of rent are those set forth in 
Article 1, however, any party may change its address for notices or payment of 
rent by giving a valid notice of address change to the other party in the manner 
specified in this Article. Tenant hereby designates and appoints as its agent to 
receive notice of all dispossessory or distraint proceedings the person in 



charge of the Premises at the time said notice is given or occupying the 
Premises at said time; and if no person is in charge or occupying the Premises, 
then such service or notice may be made by attaching the same, in lieu of 
mailing, on the main entrance to the Premises. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 25 
                                  MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Section 25.1 Professional Fees. In any action or proceeding brought by either 
party against the other under this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled 
to recover from the other party its reasonable professional fees for attorneys, 
appraisers and accountants, its investigation costs, and any other reasonable 
legal expenses and court costs incurred by the prevailing party in such action 
or proceeding. 
 
Section 25.2 Reimbursements. Wherever the Lease requires Tenant to reimburse 
Landlord for the cost of any item, such costs will be the reasonable and 
customary charge periodically established by Landlord for such item. Landlord 
shall keep in its on-site manager's office a schedule of such charges (which 
Landlord may periodically change) for Tenant's examination. The schedule of 
charges may include, at the discretion of Landlord, a reasonable allocation of 
overhead, administrative, and related costs and a reasonable fee for Landlord's 
agent or manager who performs such services or arranges for performance of such 
services. All such charges shall be payable upon demand as Additional Rent. 
 
Section 25.3 Severability. Every agreement contained in this Lease is, and shall 
be construed as, a separate and independent agreement. If any term of this Lease 
or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be deemed 
invalid or unenforceable, the remaining agreements contained in this Lease shall 
not be affected. 
 
Section 25.4 No Merger. There shall be no merger of this Lease with any ground 
leasehold interest or the fee estate in the Project or any part thereof by 
reason of the fact that the same person may acquire or hold, directly or 
indirectly, this Lease or any interest in this Lease as well as any ground 
leasehold interest or fee estate in the Project or any interest in such fee 
estate. 
 
Section 25.5 Landlord's Liability. Anything contained in this Lease to the 
contrary notwithstanding, Tenant agrees that Tenant shall look solely to the 
estate and property of Landlord in the Project for the collection of any 
judgment or other judicial process requiring the payment of money by Landlord 
for any default or breach by Landlord under this Lease, subject, however, to the 
prior rights of any mortgagee or lessor of the Project. No other assets of 
Landlord or any partners, or other principals of Landlord shall be subject to 
levy, 
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execution or other judicial process for the satisfaction of Tenant's claim. 
 
Section 25.6 Force Majeure. Whenever the period of time is herein prescribed for 
action to be taken by Landlord or Tenant, Landlord or Tenant shall not be liable 
or responsible for, and there shall be excluded from the computation for any 
such period of time, any delays due to force majeure, which term shall include 
strikes, riots, acts of God, shortages of labor or materials, war, governmental 
approvals, laws, regulations, or restrictions, or any other cause of any kind 
whatsoever which is beyond the reasonable control of Landlord or Tenant. Force 
Majeure shall not excuse or delay Tenant's obligation to pay Rent or any other 
amount due under this Lease. 
 
Section 25.7 Headings. The article headings contained in this Lease are for 
convenience only and shall not enlarge or limit the scope or meaning of the 
various and several articles hereof. Words in the singular number shall be held 
to include the plural, unless the context otherwise requires. All agreements and 
covenants herein contained shall be binding upon the respective heirs, personal 
representatives, and successors and assigns of the parties thereto. 
 
Section 25.8 Successors and Assigns. All agreements and covenants herein 
contained shall be binding upon the respective heirs, personal representatives, 
successors and assigns or the parties hereto. If there be more than one Tenant, 
the obligations hereunder imposed upon Tenant shall be joint and several. If 
there is a guarantor of Tenant's obligations hereunder, Tenant's obligations 



shall be joint and several obligations of Tenant and such guarantor, and 
Landlord need not first proceed against Tenant hereunder before proceeding 
against such guarantor, and any such guarantor shall not be released from its 
guarantee for any reason, including any amendment of this Lease, any forbearance 
by Landlord or waiver of any of Landlord's rights, the failure to give Tenant or 
such guarantor any notices, or the release of any party liable for the payment. 
 
Section 25.9 Landlord's Representations. Neither Landlord nor Landlord's agents 
or brokers have made any representations or promises with respect to the 
Premises, the Building, the Parking Facilities, the Land, or any other portions 
of the Project except as herein expressly set forth and all reliance with 
respect to any representations or promises is based solely on those contained 
herein. No rights, easements, or licenses are acquired by Tenant under this 
Lease by implication or otherwise except as, and unless, expressly set forth in 
this Lease. 
 
Section 25.10 Entire Agreement: Amendments. This Lease and the Exhibits and 
Riders attached hereto set forth the entire agreement between the parties and 
cancel all prior negotiations, arrangements, brochures, agreements, and 
understandings, if any, between Landlord and Tenant regarding the subject matter 
of this Lease. No amendment or modification of this Lease shall be binding or 
valid unless expressed in writing and executed by both parties hereto. 
 
Section 25.11 Tenant Authority. If Tenant signs as a corporation, limited 
partnership or limited liability company, execution hereof shall constitute a 
representation and warranty by Tenant and the persons signing for Tenant that 
Tenant is a duly organized and existing corporation, limited partnership or 
limited liability company, that Tenant has been and is qualified to do business 
in the State of Georgia and in good standing with the State of Georgia, that the 
corporation, limited partnership or limited liability company, has full right 
and authority to enter into this Lease, and that all persons signing on behalf 
of the corporation, limited partnership or limited liability company, were 
authorized to do so by appropriate corporate action. If Tenant signs as a 
general partnership, trust, or other legal entity, execution hereof shall 
constitute a representation and warranty by Tenant that Tenant has complied with 
applicable laws, rules, and governmental regulations relative to Tenant's right 
to do business in the State of Georgia, that such entity has the full right and 
authority to enter into this Lease, and that all persons signing on behalf of 
Tenant were authorized to do so by any and all necessary or appropriate general 
partnership, trust, or other actions. Upon the request of Landlord, Tenant shall 
deliver to Landlord documentation satisfactory to Landlord evidencing Tenant's 
compliance with this Article, and Tenant agrees to promptly execute all 
necessary and reasonable applications or documents as reasonably requested by 
Landlord which may be required by the jurisdiction in which the Project is 
located to permit the issuance of necessary permits and certificates for 
Tenant's use and occupancy of the Premises. 
 
Section 25.12 Governing Law. This Lease shall be governed by and construed under 
the laws of the State of Georgia. Any action brought to enforce or interpret 
this Lease shall be brought in the court of appropriate jurisdiction in the 
county where the Building is located. Should any provision of this Lease require 
judicial interpretation, Landlord and Tenant hereby agree and stipulate that the 
court interpreting or considering same shall not apply the presumption that the 
terms hereof shall be more strictly construed against a party by reason of any 
rule or conclusion that a document should be construed more strictly against the 
party who itself or through its agents prepared the same, it being agreed that 
all parties hereto have participated or had 
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full opportunity to participate in the preparation of this Lease, and that each 
party had full opportunity to consult legal counsel of its choice before the 
execution of this Lease. 
 
Section 25.13 Tenant's Use Of Name of the Building. Tenant shall not, without 
the prior written consent of Landlord, use the name of the Building for any 
purpose other than as the address of the business to be conducted by Tenant in 
the Premises, and Tenant shall not do or permit the doing of anything in 
connection with Tenant's business or advertising (including brokers' flyers 
promoting sublease space) which in the reasonable judgment of Landlord may 
reflect unfavorably on Landlord or the Building or confuse or mislead the public 
as to any apparent connection or relationship between Tenant and Landlord, the 
Building, or the Land. 



 
Section 25.14 No Easement for Light, Air or View. Any elimination or shutting 
off of light, air, or view by any structure which may be erected on lands 
adjacent to the Building shall in no way affect this Lease and Landlord shall 
have no liability to Tenant with respect thereto. 
 
Section 25.15 Changes to Project by Landlord. Landlord shall have the 
unrestricted right to make changes to all portions of the Project in Landlord's 
reasonable discretion for the purpose of improving access or security to the 
Project or the flow of pedestrian and vehicular traffic therein. Landlord shall 
have the right at any time, without the same constituting an actual or 
constructive eviction and without incurring any liability to Tenant therefor, to 
change the arrangement or location of entrances or passageways, doors and 
doorways, corridors, elevators, stairs, bathrooms, or any other Common Areas so 
long as reasonable access to the Premises remains available. Landlord shall also 
have the right to (a) rearrange, change, expand or contract portions of the 
Project constituting Common Areas and to add new improvements thereon (b) to use 
Common Areas while engaged in making improvements, repairs or alterations to the 
Project, or any portion thereof, and (c) to do and perform such other acts and 
make such other changes in to or with respect to the Project, or any portion 
thereof, as Landlord may, in the exercise of sound business judgment, deem to be 
appropriate. Landlord shall be entitled to change the name or address of the 
Building or the Project. Landlord shall have the right to close, from time to 
time, the Common Areas and other portions of the Project for such temporary 
periods as Landlord deems legally sufficient to evidence Landlord's ownership 
and control thereof and to prevent any claim of adverse possession by, or any 
implied or actual dedication to, the public or any party other than Landlord. 
 
Section 25.16  Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Lease. 
 
Section 25.17 Landlord's Acceptance of Lease. The submission of this Lease to 
Tenant shall not be construed as an offer and Tenant shall not have any rights 
with respect thereto unless said Lease is consented to by mortgagee, and any 
lessor of Landlord, to the extent such consent is required, and Landlord 
executes a copy of this Lease and delivers the same to Tenant. 
 
Section 25.18 Performance by Tenant. All covenants and agreements to be 
performed by Tenant under any of the terms of this Lease shall be performed by 
Tenant, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, and without any abatement of Rent. If 
Tenant shall fail to pay any Rent, other than Base Rent, required to be paid by 
it hereunder or shall fail to perform any other act on its part to be performed 
hereunder, and such failure shall continue for longer than the period of cure, 
if any, permitted in Section 13.1, Landlord may, at its option, without waiving 
or releasing Tenant from obligations of Tenant, make any such payment or perform 
any such other act on behalf of Tenant. All sums so paid by Landlord and all 
necessary incidental costs, together with interest thereon at the Interest Rate, 
from the date of such payment by Landlord, shall be payable to Landlord on 
demand. Tenant covenants to pay any such sums, and Landlord shall have (in 
addition to any other right or remedy of Landlord) the same rights and remedies 
in the event of the non-payment thereof by Tenant as in the case of default by 
Tenant in the payment of Rent. 
 
Section 25.19 Financial Statements. At any time during the term of this Lease, 
Tenant shall, upon ten (10) days prior written notice from Landlord, provide 
Landlord with a current financial statement and financial statements of the two 
(2) years prior to the current financial statement year. Such statement shall be 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and, if 
such is the normal practice of Tenant, shall be audited by an independent 
certified public accountant. 
 
Section 25.20 Confidentiality. Tenant hereby agrees with Landlord that Tenant 
shall not disclose in any manner to any third party (except its agents and 
advisors who have a reason to know related to Tenant's business and as may be 
required by law) the amount of the Rent due and payable by Tenant under this 
Lease. 
 
Section 25.21 Homestead. Tenant waives all homestead rights and exemptions which 
it may have under any 
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law as against any obligation owing under this Lease, and assigns to Landlord 
its homestead and exemptions to the extent necessary to secure payment and 



performance of its covenants and agreements hereunder. 
 
Section 25.22 Landlord's Lien. Tenant grants to Landlord a security interest and 
lien upon all of the personal property of Tenant situated in the Premises to 
secure payment of rent and other sums and charges due hereunder from Tenant to 
Landlord and to secure the performance by Tenant of each of the covenants and 
agreements of Tenant. Said personal property shall not be removed from the 
Premises without the consent of Landlord until all arrearage in Rent and other 
charges, as well as any and all other sums of money due hereunder shall first 
have been paid and discharged and until this Lease and all of the covenants, 
conditions, agreements and provisions have been fully performed by Tenant. 
Tenant shall from time to time execute a financing statement or statements 
immediately on the request of Landlord to perfect the security interest granted 
herein. The security interest and lien herein granted may be foreclosed in the 
manner and form provided by law for the foreclosure of security instruments, or 
in any other manner provided by law. 
 
Section 25.23 Waiver of Breach. No waiver of any breach of the covenants, 
warranties, agreements, provisions, or conditions contained in this Lease shall 
be construed as a waiver of said covenant, warranty, provision, agreement or 
condition or of any subsequent breach thereof, and if any breach shall occur and 
after which be compromised, settled or adjusted, this Lease shall continue in 
full force and effect as if no breach had occurred. 
 
Section 25.24 No Estate. This Lease shall create the relationship of landlord 
and tenant, and no estate shall pass out of Landlord. Tenant's interest shall be 
that of a usufruct, not subject to levy and sale and not assignable in whole or 
in part by Tenant except as herein provided. 
 
Section 25.25 Attachments. The attached Exhibits and any Schedules and Special 
Stipulations are incorporated into this Lease. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE 26 
                         RELOCATION / SUBSTITUTION SPACE 
 
Section 26.1 If this Lease is for less than one full floor of the Building, 
Landlord shall have the right at any time prior to the end of the Lease Term, or 
any renewal or extension hereof, to substitute instead of the Premises, other 
space within the Building, or other buildings within the Office Park (which 
space shall have a Net Rentable Area of not less than the Net Rentable Area in 
the Premises as of the date of such substitution) hereinafter called the 
"Substitution Space". If Landlord desires to exercise this right but, in 
Landlord's reasonable opinion there is no suitable Substitution Space then 
available in the Office Park, Landlord shall have the right to terminate this 
Lease by written notice to Tenant on a date specified by Landlord which date 
shall not be sooner than one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of 
Landlord's notice to Tenant. In the event that Landlord exercises said 
termination right, Tenant's Base Rent and Operating Expenses shall be abated in 
full, commencing on the date of Landlord's written notice to Tenant, and ending 
on the date this Lease is terminated. 
 
 
Section 26.2 If Landlord desires to exercise such right prior to the 
Commencement Date, Landlord shall give written notice thereof to Tenant not 
later than thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such substitution, 
which notice shall specify the Substitution Space in question and the 
description of the Premises set forth in the lease shall, without further act on 
the part of Landlord or Tenant, be deemed amended so that the Substitution Space 
shall, for all purposes, be deemed the Premises hereunder and all of the terms, 
covenants, conditions, provisions, and agreements of this lease, including those 
agreements to pay Rent, shall continue in full force and effect and shall apply 
to the Substitution Space. The Landlord's Work in the Substitution Space shall 
be completed in the manner set forth in Exhibit "C" hereof, and the costs 
thereof shall be allocated between Landlord and Tenant as described therein; 
provided, however, that if, prior to Landlord's notice of its election to 
substitute the Substitution Space for the Premises, Tenant has reasonably 
incurred costs or expenses in connection with planning or construction of the 
Leasehold Improvements in the original Premises and Tenant is (i) unable to use 
the plans or materials in question in connection with the Leasehold Improvements 
in the Substitution Space or (ii) unable to cancel orders for or return the 
materials in question for credit, Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for such costs 
and expenses (net of all applicable credits) upon presentation by Tenant of 
appropriate invoices and other substantiating materials therefor in form 
reasonably acceptable to Landlord. 
 
Section 26.3 If Landlord desires to exercise such right after the Commencement 
Date, Landlord shall give Tenant at least ninety (90) days prior written notice 
thereof specifying the effective date of such 
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substitution, whereupon, as of such effective date: (a) the description of the 
Premises set forth in this lease shall, without further act on the part of 
Landlord or Tenant, be deemed amended so that the Substitution Space shall, for 
all purposes, be deemed the Premises hereunder, and all of the terms, covenants, 
conditions, provisions, and agreements of this Lease, including those agreements 
to pay Rent, shall continue in full force and effect and shall apply to the 
Substitution Space, and (b) Tenant shall move from the present Premises into the 
Substitution Space and shall vacate and surrender possession to Landlord of the 
present Premises, and if Tenant continues to occupy the present Premises after 
such effective date, then thereafter, during the period of such occupancy, 
Tenant shall pay Rent for the present Premises as set forth in this Lease, in 
addition to the Rent for the Substitution Space at the above described rates. 
Tenant shall accept possession of the Substitution Space in its "as-is" 
condition as of such effective date. 
 
Section 26.4 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 26.3 above, if Landlord 
exercises its right to substitute the Substitution Space for the Premises after 
the Commencement Date, then Tenant shall have the option to require Landlord to 
alter the Substitution Space in substantially the same manner and quality as the 
Premises were finished out or altered pursuant to the Lease. Such option shall 
be exercised, if at all, by notice from Tenant to Landlord within fifteen (15) 
days after the aforesaid notice from Landlord to Tenant of such proposed 
substitution; otherwise, such option in favor of Tenant shall be null and void. 
Tenant shall not have the right to exercise such option at any time when Tenant 
is in default under any of the terms, covenants, conditions, provisions, or 
agreements of this Lease. If such option is validly so exercised by Tenant: (a) 
Tenant shall continue to occupy the present Premises (upon all of the terms, 
covenants, conditions, provisions, and agreements of this Lease, including the 
covenant for the payment of Rent) until the date on which Landlord shall have 
substantially completed such alteration work in the Substitution Space; and (b) 
Tenant shall move from the present Premises into the Substitution Space 
immediately upon the date of such substantial completion by Landlord and shall 
vacate and surrender possession to Landlord of the present Premises after such 
date, then, thereafter during the period of such occupancy, Tenant shall pay 
Rent for the present Premises as set forth in this lease up to the date of 
surrender, and then pay rent for the substituted premises commencing on the date 
of substantial completion. All such improvements to the Substitution Space shall 
be made at Landlord's sole cost and expense, provided, however, that with 
respect to such alteration work in the Substitution Space, if Tenant requests 
materials or installations other than those originally installed in the 
Premises, Tenant will be responsible for any increased costs. If Tenant shall 
make changes in the work (such non-original materials or installations or 
changes being subject to Landlord's prior written approval), and if such 
non-original materials or installations or changes shall delay the work to be 
performed by Landlord, or if Tenant shall otherwise delay the substantial 
completion of the work, the occurrence of such delays shall in no event postpone 
the date for the commencement of the payment of Rent for such Substitution Space 
beyond the date on which such work would have been substantially completed but 
for such delays, and in addition, Tenant shall continue to pay Rent for the 
present Premises as set forth in this Lease until it vacates and surrenders same 
as aforesaid. Landlord at its discretion may reasonably substitute materials of 
like quality for the materials originally utilized. 
 
Section 26.5 If Landlord exercises this relocation right after the Commencement 
Date, Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for all of Tenant's reasonable 
out-of-pocket expenses for moving Tenant's furniture, equipment, supplies and 
telephones and telephone equipment from the present Premises to the Substitution 
Space and for reprinting Tenant's stationery of the same quality and quantity of 
Tenant's stationery supply on hand immediately prior to Landlord's notice to 
Tenant of the exercise of this substitution right. Tenant shall also be 
reimbursed by Landlord for the Tenant's unamortized cost of Leasehold 
Improvements, if any, installed in the original Premises at Tenant's expense. 
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  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease under seal as 
of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
                                 LANDLORD: 
                                 --------- 
                                 ONE PEACHTREE POINTE ASSOCIATES, LLC, 
                                 a Georgia limited liability company 
 
                                       By:   One Peachtree Pointe Manager, Inc., 
                                             a Georgia corporation 
 
- -------------------------- 
Witness                                      By: 
                                                -------------------------------- 
                                               Name: Douglas G. Dewberry, II 
                                                     ----------------------- 
                                               Title: Vice President 
                                                      -------------- 
 
                                                        (SEAL) 
 
                                 TENANT: 
                                 ------- 
                                 TEAMSTAFF, INC., a New Jersey corporation 
 
- -------------------------- 
Witness                          By: 
                                    ----------------------------------------- 
                                 Name: 
                                      --------------------------------------- 
                                 Title: 
                                       -------------------------------------- 
 
                                                    (SEAL) 
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                                    PREMISES 
                                    -------- 
 
                                [TO BE ATTACHED] 
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                                   EXHIBIT "B" 
 
                                LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
                                ----------------- 
 
                                [TO BE ATTACHED] 
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                                   EXHIBIT "C" 
 
                                   WORK LETTER 
                                   ----------- 
 
         The following provisions shall govern (A) the preparation and approval 
process for the drawings and specifications for the build-out of the Premises, 
which Landlord shall perform in accordance with the terms of this Exhibit "C", 
and (B) terms and conditions relating to contractors and subcontractors in 
connection with the build-out of the Premises. 
 
         A. General Matters regarding Plans and Specification. Landlord shall 
cause its architect to prepare the "Working Drawings" and the "Final Plans" (as 
such terms are defined below) for Tenant's requirements of the Premises. 
 
         B. Working Drawings and Final Plans. Within ten (10) days after the 
execution of this Lease, Landlord shall cause its architects to prepare, with 
Tenant, preliminary architectural plans and construction drawings for the 
Premises (the "Working Drawings"), to be submitted to Landlord for review, 
including those base building improvements which are interior to the Premises. 
Said Working Drawings shall be submitted to Landlord in form sufficient for the 
permitting and construction of the Premises, and the bidding of Tenant's Work 
(that is, in such form so that, if approved by Landlord without revision, the 
same would be sufficient for the permitting and construction of the Premises, 
and the bidding of Tenant's Work). Landlord or its designated contractor shall 
provide Tenant with a list of its objections, modifications, deletions or 
qualifications to the same. Tenant shall have ten (10) days from receipt of 
Landlord's list of objections, modifications, deletions or qualifications to 
cause the architect and the engineer to prepare final drawings, plans, and 
specifications (the "Final Plans"), based on the Working Drawings but conforming 
to Landlord's objections, modifications, deletions or qualifications. No plans 
and specifications shall constitute the Final Plans hereunder unless and until 
the same have been approved in writing by both Landlord and Tenant. 
 
         C. Construction. Following the preparation and approval of the Working 
Drawings, Landlord agrees to build-out the Premises according to the Final Plans 
("Landlord's Work") at Landlord's sole cost and expense for scope outlined in 
Exhibits "C-1", "C-2" and "C-3". Any cost implications resulting from 
Tenant-driven changes outside the negotiated scope shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Tenant, and said changes shall be implemented upon receipt 
of payments related thereto. All construction for the Premises shall be awarded 
following a competitive bid format, with Dewberry Capital Corporation or its 
designee serving as construction manager ("Construction Manager"). The 
Construction Manager shall: (1) prepare a bid package approved by Landlord and 
Tenant; (2) solicit bids from qualified general contractors approved by Landlord 
and Tenant. On behalf of Landlord and Tenant, the Construction Manager shall 
supervise the construction for the Premises. 
 
         D. Tenant Delay. If Tenant does not complete preparation of Tenant's 
Space Plans and Working Drawings within the time period specified above (other 
than due to events of Force Majeure as defined in the Lease), and such delay 
causes Landlord to postpone substantial completion of the Premises or delays the 
Commencement Date, or should Tenant or its agents fail to timely comply with all 
of the provisions of this Exhibit "C" or otherwise cause a delay in substantial 
completion (collectively, a "Tenant Delay"), then Tenant shall pay to Landlord 
on the date Rent would have commenced hereunder in the absence of such delay, a 
sum of money equivalent to the Rent for the Premises for the period during which 
Tenant would have been obligated to pay Rent to Landlord had not the 
Commencement Date been so delayed. 
 
         E. Changes to Tenant Plans. Tenant shall have the right to request 
changes in the Final Plans and any such change shall be initiated by Landlord's 
architect and approved by Landlord and the general contractor. No change shall 
be permitted without the prior written consent of Landlord, which as to 
nonstructural changes, which do not affect building systems, shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. Further, if changes are made by 
Tenant to the Final Plans after Landlord's approval, and should these changes to 
Tenant's Final Plans cause Landlord to postpone substantial completion of the 
space or delay the Commencement Date and such postponement or delay is not 
attributable to a delay caused by Landlord or an event of Force Majeure as 
defined in the Lease, then Landlord shall have the right to refuse to permit the 
making of such changes unless and until Tenant shall have committed in writing, 
in a manner reasonably satisfactory to Landlord, to pay to Landlord on the date 
Rent would have commenced hereunder in the absence of such delay, a sum of money 
equivalent to the Rent for the Premises for the period during which Tenant would 
have been obligated to pay Rent to Landlord had not the Commencement Date been 
so delayed. Upon approval of changes by Landlord and Tenant, Tenant shall pay 
for all approved changes prior to the initiation of the change order. 
 
 
                    LANDLORD ___________ TENANT ____________ 



 
 
                                       32 
 
 
 
 
         F. Tenant's Work. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Exhibit "C", Tenant shall be responsible for all work, construction and 
installation in the Premises which is not designated as Landlord's Work 
(including but not limited to all fixtures, furniture, equipment and other 
office installations). Such work shall be referred to as "Tenant's Work," and 
shall be at Tenant's sole cost and expense. Tenant's Work shall be considered an 
alteration for purposes of this Lease, and shall be subject to the provisions of 
Article 10 thereof. Prior to commencing Tenant's Work, Tenant shall submit 
drawings and specifications for Tenant's Work to Landlord, showing all aspects 
of such work, to Landlord for Landlord's review and approval. 
 
         G. Permits, Certificate of Occupancy. Except as provided below, 
Construction Manager shall obtain all necessary permits in connection with 
Landlord's Work. On or before the date Landlord tenders delivery of the Premises 
to Tenant, Landlord agrees to obtain all final inspection approvals which are 
required for Landlord to deliver the Premises to Tenant with Landlord's Work 
completed, and that can be obtained by Landlord prior to Tenant installing its 
fixtures, furniture and equipment. Tenant shall be responsible for applying for 
and obtaining all permits required for Tenant to perform Tenant's Work, or to 
operate within the Premises, including without limitation the final certificate 
of occupancy or its equivalent, and for obtaining the final fire inspection 
approval after installation of its fixtures, furniture and equipment. 
 
         H. Notice. Tenant shall, by notice to Landlord in writing, designate a 
single individual who Tenant agrees shall be available to meet and consult with 
Landlord at the Premises as Tenant's representative respecting the matters which 
are the subject of this Exhibit and who, as between Landlord and Tenant, shall 
have the power to legally bind Tenant, in making requests for changes, giving 
approval of plans or work, giving directions to Landlord or the like, under this 
Exhibit "C". 
 
         I. Default. The failure by Tenant to comply with the provisions of this 
Exhibit "C" shall constitute a default by Tenant under the Lease and Landlord 
shall have the benefit of all remedies provided for in the Lease. 
 
         J. No Liability. Notwithstanding the review and approval by Landlord of 
Tenant's Working Drawings, Landlord shall have no responsibility or liability in 
regard to the safety, sufficiency, adequacy or legality thereof and Tenant shall 
be solely responsible for the compliance of such plans and specifications (and 
improvement constructed as a result thereof) with all applicable laws and 
regulations, the architectural completeness and sufficiency thereof and other 
matters relating thereto. 
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                        EXHIBITS , "C-1", "C-2" AND "C-3" 
 
                SCOPE OF WORK, SCHEMATIC PLAN AND DEMOLITION PLAN 
 
                                [TO BE ATTACHED] 
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                                   EXHIBIT "D" 
 
                              RULES AND REGULATIONS 
                              --------------------- 
 
 
The sidewalks, halls, passages, exits, entrances, elevators and stairways of the 
Building shall not be obstructed by any Tenants or used by them for any purpose 
other than for ingress to and egress from their respective Premises and for 
going from one part of the Building to another. The halls, passages, exits, 
entrances, elevators and stairways are not for the general public and Landlord 
shall in all cases retain the right to control and prevent access thereto of all 
persons whose presence, in the judgment of Landlord, would be prejudicial to the 
safety, character, reputation and interest of the Building and its Tenants, 
provided that nothing herein contained shall be construed to prevent such access 
to persons with whom any Tenant normally deals in the ordinary course of its 
business, unless such persons are engaged in illegal activities. 
 
Nothing shall be swept or thrown into the corridors, halls, elevator shafts, or 
stairways. No birds, animals, reptiles, or any other creatures shall be brought 
into or kept in or about the Building, except those guide dogs which are for the 
direct purposes of aiding and assisting the visually impaired. 
 
Corridor doors, when not in use, shall be kept closed. 
 
The plumbing facilities, including fixtures and appliances, shall not be used 
for any purpose other than that for which they are constructed, and no foreign 
substance of any kind shall be deposited therein. Any breakage, stoppage or 
damage resulting from repeated or excessive violation by Tenant or its agents or 
employees shall be paid for by Tenant directly upon receipt of an invoice for 
same. 
 



No sign, picture, name, advertisement or notice, visible from the exterior of 
the Building shall be inscribed, painted, affixed or otherwise displayed by any 
Tenant on any part of the Building without the prior written consent of 
Landlord. Landlord may adopt and enforce reasonable guidelines relating to signs 
in the corridors and Common Areas of the Building. Tenant agrees to conform to 
such guidelines, but may request approval of Landlord for modifications, which 
approval will not be unreasonably withheld; however, material visible from the 
exterior of the Building will not be permitted. No nails, hooks or screws shall 
be driven into or inserted in any part of the Building, except by Building 
maintenance personnel. No curtains or other window treatments shall be placed 
between the glass and the standard Building window treatments. 
 
Landlord shall provide all locks for doors to and in each Tenant's Premises, and 
no Tenant shall place any additional lock or bolt on any door within its 
Premises or the Building without Landlord's prior written consent, such consent 
not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Tenant shall in each case furnish 
Landlord with a key for any such lock. A reasonable number of keys to the locks 
on the doors in each Tenant`s respective Premises shall be furnished by Landlord 
to Tenant, and Tenant shall not have any duplicate keys made without Landlord's 
prior written consent. Upon the termination of its tenancy, Tenant shall deliver 
to Landlord all keys to doors in the Building which were furnished to Tenant. 
 
No Tenant shall allow the Premises to be used for lodging, nor shall cooking be 
done or permitted by any Tenant on the Premises. However, use by the Tenant of 
approved equipment for brewing coffee, tea, hot chocolate and similar beverages 
or microwave ovens or similar appliances installed for occasional use by 
Tenants, employees or invitees shall be permitted, provided that such use is in 
accordance with all applicable federal , state and city laws, codes, ordinances, 
rules and regulations. 
 
Tenant shall cooperate with Landlord's employees or agents in keeping the 
Premises, and the Project in general, neat and clean. No Tenant shall employ any 
person or persons other than those employed by the Landlord for the purpose of 
cleaning the Premises, unless otherwise agreed to by Landlord in writing. 
Cleaning services will not be furnished in areas which are occupied after 7:00 
p.m., unless Landlord specifically agrees to extend services to a later time. 
 
Tenant's access to the roof is limited to maintenance of equipment installed 
with Landlord's approval and inspections for damage to that equipment. Neither 
Tenant nor its agents or employees shall enter upon the roof at any time without 
the express prior written approval of Landlord. 
 
No aerial antenna, satellite dish or similar device shall be erected on the roof 
or exterior walls of the Building or on any part of the project, without the 
prior written consent of Landlord. Any such devise so installed without such 
consent shall be subject to removal without notice at any time and without 
liability to the Landlord therefore; costs incurred by Landlord for such removal 
shall be paid by Tenant. 
 
Directories will be placed by Landlord at Landlord's own expense, in conspicuous 
places throughout the Building. No other directories shall be permitted. 
 
No Tenant shall use or keep or permit to be used or kept any foul or obnoxious 
gas or substances on the 
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Premises, or permit or suffer the Premises to be occupied or used in a manner 
offensive or objectionable to Landlord or to other occupants of the Building by 
reason of noise, odors or vibrations, or interfere in any way with other tenants 
or those having business therein. 
 
No loudspeakers, televisions, phonographs, radios or other devices shall be used 
in a manner so as to be heard or seen outside of he Premises without the prior 
written consent of Landlord. 
 
Tenant shall not do anything or permit anything to be done in or about the 
Building or bring or keep anything therein that will in any way increase the 
possibility of fire or other casualty or obstruct or interfere with the rights 
of or otherwise injure or annoy other tenants or do anything in conflict with 
the valid pertinent laws, rules or regulations of any governmental authority. 
 
Tenants, their employees and invitees shall park their motor vehicles only by 



those parking areas designated for that purpose by Landlord, and Tenant shall 
provide Landlord with a list of its employees' automobile or motor vehicle 
license tag numbers. If Tenant and/or its employees are in violation of this 
rule, Landlord shall have the right to tow said automobile or vehicle at 
Tenant's expense. 
 
Landlord reserves the right to change the name and street address of the 
Building. 
 
Each Tenant shall store all of its trash and garbage with its Premises. No 
material shall be placed in the trash boxes or receptacles in the Common Areas 
or in their Premises if such material is of such a nature that it may not be 
disposed of in the ordinary and customary manner of removing and disposing of 
trash according to the ordinances governing such disposal. All garbage and 
refuse disposal shall be made only through entry ways and elevators provided for 
such purposes and at such times as Landlord shall designate. 
 
Should Tenant require telegraphic, telephonic, enunciator or any other 
communication service, Landlord will direct the electricians and contractors 
where and how the wires are to be introduced and placed, and none shall be 
introduced or placed except as Landlord shall direct. 
 
No Tenant shall use any method of heating or air conditioning other than that 
supplied by Landlord. 
 
Hand trucks shall not be used in any central areas of the Building, either by 
Tenant or others, except those equipped with rubber tires and side-guards or 
such other material handling equipment as Landlord may approve, and shall not be 
placed in any elevators servicing the Building other than designated freight 
elevators. No other vehicles of any kind shall be brought by any Tenant into the 
Building or kept in or about the premises. 
 
Neither Tenant, its agents, nor its employees shall solicit business or 
distribute handbills in the Common Areas nor shall Tenant, its agents, or 
employees distribute or display any handbills or other advertising matter in or 
on automobiles or other vehicles parked in the Parking Facilities or in other 
Common Areas. If any such materials are distributed, Tenant shall pay Landlord 
for the cost of cleanup. Furthermore, the Premises shall not be used for 
conducting any barter, trade or exchange of goods or sale through promotional 
giveaway gimmicks or any business involving the sale of second hand goods, 
insurance salvage stock, or fire sale stock, and shall not be used for any 
auction or pawn shop business, any fire sale, bankruptcy sale, going out of 
business dale, moving sale, bulk sale, or any other business which, because of 
merchandising methods or otherwise, would tend to lower the first class 
character of the Building or the Project. 
 
Landlord shall not be responsible for lost or stolen personal property, money or 
jewelry from Tenant's Premises or Common Areas, regardless of whether such loss 
occurs when any such area is locked against entry or not. 
 
Any maintenance or service requests of Tenants will be attended to only upon 
application by telephone at the office of Landlord, in person at the office of 
Landlord, or upon delivery of written notice to the office of Landlord. 
 
With respect to work being performed by Tenants in the Premises with the 
approval of Landlord, all Tenants will refer all contractors, contractor's 
representatives and installation technicians rendering any service to them to 
Landlord for Landlord's supervision approval and control before the performance 
of any contractual services. This provision shall apply to all work performed in 
the Building, including but not limited to installations of telephones, 
telegraph equipment, electrical devices and attachments, and any and all 
installations of every nature affecting the floors, walls, woodwork, trim, 
windows, ceilings, equipment or any other physical portion of the Building. 
 
Each Tenant shall see that the doors of its Premises are closed and locked and 
that all water faucets, water apparatus and utilities are shut off before Tenant 
or Tenant's employees leave the Premises, so as to prevent waste or damage. All 
Tenants shall keep the doors to the Building corridors closed at all times 
except for ingress and egress. 
 
Tenants, employees or agents or anyone else who desires to enter the Building 
after normal business 
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hours, may be required to provide appropriate identification, sign in upon 
entry, sign out upon leaving, and shall otherwise comply with any reasonable 
access control procedures as Landlord may form time to time institute. 
 
Landlord has the right to evacuate the Building in the event of an emergency or 
catastrophe. 
 
Landlord shall designate the time and manner by which all office equipment, 
furniture, appliances and other large objects or property (collectively the 
"Equipment") shall be moved in or out of the Building. The persons employed to 
move such Equipment in or out of the Building must be acceptable to Landlord. 
Landlord shall have the right to prescribe the weight, size and position of all 
equipment brought into the building. Heavy objects shall, if considered 
necessary by Landlord, stand on wood strips of such thickness as is necessary to 
properly distribute the weight. Landlord will not be responsible for loss of or 
damage to any such Equipment from any cause, and all damage done to the Building 
by moving or maintaining such Equipment shall be repaired at the sole cost and 
expense of Tenant. Tenant agrees to coordinate all moving activities of 
Equipment in and out of the Building with Landlord or Landlord's agent; and to 
use the services of an insured professional moving company. Tenant acknowledges 
that any attempts to bring in or take out any Equipment from the Building 
without prior written approval of Landlord or Landlord's agent will be prevented 
by the onsite security guard with no liability whatsoever to Landlord or its 
agents or employees. 
 
Tenant shall not place a load upon any floor of the Building, which exceeds the 
floor load per square foot, which such floor was designed to carry or which is 
allowed by applicable building code. Landlord may prescribe the weight and 
positions of all safes and heavy installations which Tenant desires to place in 
the Premises so as to properly distribute the weight thereof. All damage done to 
the Building by the improper placing of heavy items shall be repaired at the 
sole cost and expenses of the Tenant. 
 
No machinery of any kind shall be operated by any Tenant in its Premises (except 
normal office and banking equipment) without the prior written consent of 
Landlord which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, nor shall 
any Tenant use or keep in the Building any flammable or explosive fluid or 
substance. 
 
Landlord reserves the right to rescind any of these Rules and Regulations and 
make such other and further Rules and Regulations not inconsistent with the 
express terms of any Lease as in the judgment of Landlord shall from time to 
time be needed for the safety, protection, care and cleanliness of the Building 
or the Project, the operation thereof, the preservation of good order therein, 
and the protection and comfort of its Tenants, their agents, employees, and 
invitees. In addition, Landlord reserves the right to amend these Rules and 
Regulations to make Tenants subject to any Rules and Regulations promulgated 
with regard to Peachtree Pointe Phase II at such time as that phase is 
developed. Such Rules and Regulations, when made and notice thereof given to 
Tenants, shall be binding upon Tenants in a like manner as if originally herein 
prescribed. In the event of any conflict, inconsistency or other difference 
between the terms and provisions of these Rules and Regulations as now or 
hereafter in effect and the terms and provisions of any Lease now or hereafter 
in effect between Landlord and any Tenant in the Building, the term or provision 
in the Lease shall govern. 
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1.       SIGNAGE: Landlord, at Landlord's sole cost and expense, shall cause a 
         directory strip with Tenant's trade name to be installed on the 
         Building directory board located in the main lobby of the Building and 
         an interior suite panel with Tenant's trade name to be affixed to the 
         wall immediately outside of Tenant's interior entrance. In the event 
         Tenant changes its trade name, Tenant shall replace its directory strip 
         on the Building directory board and its interior suite panel at its 
         sole cost and expense. 
 
2.       RIGHT OF FIRST OFFER: Prior to execution of a lease for all or any 
         portion of the space immediately adjoining the Premises on the third 
         (3rd) floor of the Building, (the "First Offer Space"), and provided 
         Tenant is not then in default under this Lease, Landlord shall notify 
         Tenant of the terms and conditions upon which it would be willing to 
         lease the First Offer Space to Tenant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
         if Tenant fails to lease the First Offer Space, Landlord shall not be 
         obligated to offer said space again to Tenant at any time during the 
         Term of the Lease. 
 
         If within ten (10) days after receipt of Landlord's notice, Tenant 
         agrees in writing to lease the First Offer Space upon such terms and 
         conditions set forth in Landlord's notice, Landlord and Tenant shall 
         execute an amendment to this Lease adding the First Offer Space to the 
         Premises within thirty (30) days after Landlord's receipt of Tenant's 
         notice of intent to lease upon all the same terms as this Lease except 
         as modified by the terms in Landlord's notice. If Tenant does not 
         deliver its notice of intent to lease the First Offer Space or elects 
         not to lease the First Offer Space within such ten (10) day period, 
         then this right of first offer to lease the First Offer Space will 
         lapse and be of no further effect and Landlord will have the right to 
         lease the First Offer Space to any third party on the same or any other 
         terms and conditions, whether or not such terms and conditions are more 
         or less favorable than those offered to Tenant. The right granted to 
         Tenant under this paragraph is personal to Tenant, and in the event of 
         any assignment of this Lease or sublease by Tenant, this right of first 
         offer to lease the First Offer Space shall thenceforth be void and of 
         no further force and effect. 
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EXHIBIT 31.1 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
I, T. Kent Smith, certify that: 
 
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of TeamStaff, Inc.; 
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements 
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial 
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
 
4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial 
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the 
registrant and have: 
 
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure 
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that 
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly 
during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
 
b) [Reserved]; 
 
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and 
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness 
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered 
by this report based on such evaluation; and 
 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over 
financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal 
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) 
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 
 
5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on 
our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the 
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of 
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 
 
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or 
operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably 
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 
 
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other 
employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over 
financial reporting. 
 
Dated: February 14, 2006 
                                                      By: /s/ T. Kent Smith 
                                                          --------------------- 
                                                      T. Kent Smith 
                                                      Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
EXHIBIT 31.2 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
I, Rick J. Filippelli, certify that: 
 
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of TeamStaff, Inc.; 
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements 
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial 
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
 
4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial 
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the 
registrant and have: 
 
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure 
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that 
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly 
during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
 
b) [Reserved]; 
 
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and 
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness 
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered 
by this report based on such evaluation; and 
 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over 
financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal 
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) 
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 
 
5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on 
our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the 
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of 
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 
 
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or 
operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably 
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 
 
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other 
employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over 
financial reporting. 
 
Date: February 14, 2006 
                                        By: /s/ Rick J. Filippelli 
                                            ---------------------- 
                                        Rick J. Filippelli 
                                        Vice President, Finance and Chief 
                                        Financial Officer 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
EXHIBIT 32.1 
 
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY 
ACT OF 2002 
 
I, T. Kent Smith, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Quarterly 
Report of TeamStaff, Inc. on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2005 
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in such 
Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and 
results of operations of TeamStaff, Inc. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has set his hand hereto as of the 14th day 
of February 2006. 
 
                                                /s/ T. Kent Smith 
                                                ----------------- 
                                                Chief Executive Officer 
                                                (Principal Executive Officer) 
 
 
I, Rick J. Filippelli, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Quarterly 
Report of TeamStaff, Inc. on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2005 
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in such 
Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and 
results of operations of TeamStaff, Inc. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has set his hand hereto as of the 14th day 
of February 2006. 
 
                                                /s/ Rick J. Filippelli 
                                                ---------------------- 
                                                Vice President, Finance and 
                                                Chief Financial Officer 
                                                (Principal Financial Officer) 
 
This certification accompanies the Form 10-Q to which it relates, is not deemed 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated 
by reference into any filing of TeamStaff, Inc. under the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether 
made before or after the date of the Form 10-Q), irrespective of any general 
incorporation language contained in such filing. 
 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other 
document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that 
appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement 
required by Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be retained 
by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its 
staff upon request. 
 
 
 
 


